
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING 

THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 23, 2012 
***** 

CLOSED SESSION – 5:30 PM 

CITY MANAGER’S OFFICE  

An announcement regarding the items to be discussed in Closed Session will be made in the 
City Hall Council Chambers prior to the Closed Session.  Members of the public may, at this 
time, address the City Council on closed session items only. 
 

 
CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION  

Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to subdivision (b) of Govt. Code §54956.9:  
Three cases: 1)  Noble Gulch Storm Drain Failure in Pacific Cove Mobile Home Park; 

2)  Pacific Cove Mobile Home Park Flooding and Closure; 
3)  Save the Plastic Bag Coalition. 
 

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION (Govt. Code §54956.9)  
1. Kevin Calvert, D.D.S. and Pamela Calvert vs. City of Capitola, et al. [Superior Court of 

the State of California for County of Santa Cruz, Case #CV 172804] 
2. Katie Saldana vs. City of Capitola, et al. [Superior Court of the State of California for the 

County of Santa Cruz, Case #CV 172324] 
3. Foremost Insurance Company vs. the City of Capitola, et al. [Superior Court of the State 

of California for the County of Santa Cruz, Case #CV173228] 
4. Truck Insurance vs. the City of Capitola, et al. [Superior Court of the State of California 

for the County of Santa Cruz, Case #CV173071] 
 

CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR (Govt. Code §54957.6) 
Negotiator: Jamie Goldstein, City Manager 
Employee Organizations: Association of Capitola Employees, Capitola Police Captains, 

Capitola Police Officers Association, Confidential Employees, Mid-Management 
Group, and Department Head Group. 

 

LIABILITY CLAIMS (Govt. Code §54956.95)  
 Claimant:  Janice Jimenez 

Agency claimed against:  City of Capitola 
 

***** 

 

Mayor:      Michael Termini 
Vice Mayor:           Stephanie Harlan 
Council Members: Kirby Nicol 

    Dennis Norton 
    Sam Storey 

Treasurer      Jacques Bertrand 

City of Capitola Agenda 



 

 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL – 7:00 PM 

 
1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Council Members Stephanie Harlan, Dennis Norton, Kirby Nicol, Sam Storey, and Mayor 
Michael Termini 

 
2. PRESENTATIONS 

 
3. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION  
 
4. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS  

 
A. Additions and Deletions to Agenda 

 
B. Public Comments 

Oral Communications allows time for members of the Public to address the City Council on 
any item not on the Agenda.  Presentations will be limited to three minutes per speaker.   
Individuals may not speak more than once during Oral Communications.  All speakers must 
address the entire legislative body and will not be permitted to engage in dialogue. All 
speakers are requested to print their name on the sign-in sheet located at the podium so that 
their name may be accurately recorded in the minutes.  A MAXIMUM of 30 MINUTES is set 
aside for Oral Communications at this time. 

 
C. Staff Comments 

 
D. City Council/Treasurer Comments/Committee Reports 

City Council Members /City Treasurer may comment on matters of a general nature or identify 
issues for staff response or future council consideration.  Council Members/Committee 
Representatives may present oral updates from standing committees at this time. 

 
E. Committee Appointments 

 
1. Receive the Mayor’s appointment of Derek VanAlstine to the Architectural and Site 

Review Committee. 
 

F. Approval of Check Register Reports 

  1. Approval of City Check Register Reports dated February 3 and February 10, 
2012. 
 

 

ALL MATTERS LISTED ON THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA SHALL BE CONSIDERED AS PUBLIC HEARINGS. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 23, 2012  3 
 
5.  CONSENT CALENDAR 

All items listed in the “Consent Calendar” will be enacted by one motion in the form listed below.  
There will be no separate discussion on these items prior to the time the Council votes on the 
action unless members of the public or the City Council request specific items to be discussed for 
separate review.  Items pulled for separate discussion will be considered following General 
Government. 
 
Note that all Ordinances and Resolutions which appear on the public agenda shall be determined 
to have been read by title and further reading waived. 
 

 A.  Deny liability claim of Janice Jimenez for an undetermined amount, and 
forward to the City’s liability insurance carrier.  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Deny Liability Claim. 
 

 B.  Consideration of approval of the City Council/Redevelopment Agency Minutes 
of the Joint Regular Meeting of January 26, 2012. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Minutes. 
 

 C.  Receive City Treasurer’s Report for Month ended January 31, 2012 
(Unaudited). 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive Report. 
 

 D.  Consideration of a Resolution accepting a Homeland Security Grant in the 
amount of $9,910, and amending the Fiscal Year 2011/2012 General Fund 
Operating Budget by increasing both Revenues and Expenditures by $9,910. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Resolution. 
 

 E.  Consideration of approving a letter from the Mayor to the California Public 
Utilities Commission opposing the SmartMeter opt out one-time and monthly 
fees. 
RECOMMENDATION: Authorize Mayor to send letter. 
 

6. GENERAL GOVERNMENT/PUBLIC HEARINGS 

General Government items are intended to provide an opportunity for public discussion of 
each item listed. The following procedure is followed for each General 
Government/Public Hearing item:  1) Staff explanation; 2) Council questions; 3) Public 
comment; 4) Council deliberation; 5) Decision. 
 

 A.  Discussion regarding funding the Community Grants. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Discuss and provide direction. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 23, 2012  4 
 
6. GENERAL GOVERNMENT/PUBLIC HEARINGS (continued) 

 B.  Presentation regarding the Finance Advisory Committee’s Long-Term City 
Revenue/Expenditure Projections Analysis (continued from the January 26, 
2012 City Council meeting).  
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  

1. Continue to closely evaluate and implement cost saving opportunities 
during the upcoming Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) 
negotiations with the employee groups and future budgeting cycles. 

2. Prepare a “benchmark study” using existing in-house resources to 
assess the City’s fiscal accountability and answer the question: “is the 
City wisely using the resources it already has?” 

3. Develop user fee cost recovery policy, analyze key revenues and make 
recommendations for changes, as appropriate, as part of the 2012-13 
Budget process. 

 
 C.  Presentation by City financial management recommendations. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the financial management improvements 
recommended in the report and direct staff to return with follow up actions 
where necessary for formal implementation. 
 

 D.  Discussion regarding an Ordinance to reduce single-use plastic and paper 
carryout bags. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Discuss and provide direction. 
 

 E.  809/815/819 Bay Avenue ─ Project Application #10-038 
Presentation regarding the temporary relocation of the recycling facilities for 
Nob Hill Center and consider an Amendment to a Master Use Permit to 
permanently locate the facilities at the proposed site in the CC (Community 
Commercial) Zoning District; APN: 035-021-43. Property Owner: Bay Creek 
Properties / Filed: 5/18/10.  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Amendment to the Master Use Permit. 
 

 F.  835 Bay Avenue ─ Project Application #12-001 
Requests for a Conditional Use Permit to install a model manufactured home 
in conjunction with an existing manufactured home sales business (Ideal 
Homes) in the CC (Community Commercial) Zoning District. Environmental 
Determination: Categorical Exemption Property Owner: Redtree Properties, 
owner/filed: 1/3/12; Representative:  Richard Emigh (APN: 035-011-03, 035-
381-01) 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Deny application. 
 

 G.  101 Grand Avenue ─ Project Application #11-120 
Request for a 50-year extension to the amortization period for a legal 
nonconforming multi-unit residential use in the AR/R-1 (Automatic 
Review/Single-Family Residence) Zoning District. Environmental 
Determination: Categorical Exemption Property Owner: Papken S. Der-
Torossian (APN: 036-114-12); Representative:  Dennis Norton. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Grant extension. 
 

 
AT THIS POINT, ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT CALENDAR WILL BE CONSIDERED



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 23, 2012  5 
 
7. COUNCIL/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 
 
8. ADJOURNMENT 

Adjourn to the next Regular Meeting of the City Council to be held on Thursday, March 8, 
2012, at 7:00 p.m., in the City Hall Council Chambers, 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, 
California. 
 

NOTE:  Any person seeking to challenge a City Council decision made as a result of a proceeding in which, by law, 
a hearing is required to be given, evidence is required to be taken, and the discretion in the determination of facts is 
vested in the City Council, shall be required to commence that court action within ninety (90) days following the 
date on which the decision becomes final as provided in Code of Civil Procedure §1094.6. Please refer to code of 
Civil Procedure §1094.6 to determine how to calculate when a decision becomes “final.” Please be advised that in 
most instances the decision become “final” upon the City Council’s announcement of its decision at the completion 
of the public hearing. Failure to comply with this 90-day rule will preclude any person from challenging the City 
Council decision in court. 
 
Notice regarding City Council: The Capitola City Council meets on the 2nd and 4th Thursday of each month at 
7:00 p.m. (or in no event earlier than 6:00 p.m.), in the City Hall Council Chambers located at 420 Capitola Avenue, 
Capitola. 
 
Agenda and Agenda Packet Materials: The City Council Agenda and the complete agenda packet are available 
on the Internet at the City’s website: www.ci.capitola.ca.us. Agendas are also available at the Capitola Post Office 
located at 826 Bay Avenue, Capitola. 
 
Agenda Document Review:  The complete agenda packet is available at City Hall and at the Capitola Branch 
Library, 2005 Wharf Road, Capitola, on the Monday prior to the Thursday meeting. Need more information?   
Contact the City Clerk’s office at 831-475-7300. 
 
Agenda Materials Distributed after Distribution of the Agenda Packet: Pursuant to Government Code 
§54957.5, materials related to an agenda item submitted after distribution of the agenda packet are available for 
public inspection at the Reception Office at City Hall, 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, California, during normal 
business hours. 
 
Americans with Disabilities Act:  Disability-related aids or services are available to enable persons with a 
disability to participate in this meeting consistent with the Federal Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  Assisted 
listening devices are available for individuals with hearing impairments at the meeting in the City Council 
Chambers.  Should you require special accommodations to participate in the meeting due to a disability, please 
contact the City Clerk’s office at least 24-hours in advance of the meeting at 831-475-7300. In an effort to 
accommodate individuals with environmental sensitivities, attendees are requested to refrain from wearing 
perfumes and other scented products. 
 
Televised Meetings: City Council meetings are cablecast “Live” on Charter Communications Cable TV Channel 8 
and are recorded to be replayed at 12:00 Noon on the Saturday following the meetings on Community Television of 
Santa Cruz County (Charter Channel 71 and Comcast Channel 25).  Meetings are streamed “Live” on the City’s 
website at www.ci.capitola.ca.us by clicking on the Home Page link “View Capitola Meeting Live On-Line.”  
Archived meetings can be viewed from the website at anytime. 



R:\Agenda Staff Reports\2012 Agenda Reports\City Council\02-23-12\4.E.1. Mayors Arch and Site Appointment.docx

Item #: 4.E.1 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF FEBRUARY 23, 2012 

FROM:  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

SUBJECT: APPOINTMENT OF DEREK VAN ALSTINE TO THE ARCHITECTURAL AND 
SITE REVIEW COMMITTEE 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive the Mayor’s appointment of Derek Van Alstine to serves in 
the capacity as architect on the City’s Architectural and Site Review Committee 

BACKGROUND:  The City received a resignation letter from Frank Phanton who has served as 
the architect on the Architectural and Site Review Committee for the last several years.  The Mayor 
makes appointments to the Architectural and Site Review Committee.   

DISCUSSION: The Architectural and Site Review Committee is made up of professionals and 
staff which review development applications and make design recommendations to the Planning 
Commission.  Section 17.63 of the Zoning Ordinance establishes the Committee members and the 
appointment process.  The members of the Committee include an architect, landscape architect, 
building official, community development director or designated planning staff, public works 
director, and historian.  There is no requirement for these professionals to live within the City of 
Capitola.   

The ordinance states “The architect, historian and landscape architect members of the 
Architectural and Site Review Committee shall be appointed by the mayor; however, a majority of 
the City Council may remove the architect, historian or landscape architect.” 

Mayor Termini selection for this position is Derek Van Alstine.  Mr. Van Alstine has been designing 
home for over 30 years including a number of residential projects in Capitola including new 
construction and remodels.   Attachment 2 includes examples of Mr. Van Alstine’s work.   

FISCAL IMPACT:  None 

ATTACHMENT:
1. Mr. Phanton’s resignation letter dated February 6, 2012. 
2. Examples of Mr. Van Alstine’s work.   

Report Prepared By:  Susan Westman 
      Interim Community Development Director 

Reviewed and Forwarded 
         By City Manager: ________

1



ATTACHMENT 1 

2

ank Phanrn.ro 
150 Felker St., Ste. G, Santa Cruz CA 95060 

Architect C 24515 

February 6, 2012 

To: The City of Capitola 
c/o Ryan Bane 
420 Capitola Avenue 
Capitola, CA 95010 

Re: Resignation/Sabbatical from Architectural and Site Review Committee 

Ryan. 

(831) 475-5841 

As you know, I've been on the Arch. and Site Committee for quite some time. ·It has 
recently occurred to me that my holding this position for so long is, in a way, selfish. I 
feel it may be best if we spread this feeling of fulfilling civic duty around a bit. 

I've talked with who I think is the perfect candidate, Derek VanAlstine and he is morc 
than willing to perform this duty for the City. Derek and I have worked together before 
so ira licensed person becomes required I would be happy to work with him. 

Please know I will conti.nue to love the city and all the people who work there. 1 would 
like to consider this a sabbatical and keep the notion of a·possible return in future should 
it please the City. 

:ru IY~ 

Frank Pbanton 
Architect 



ATTACHMENT 2 

3

Derek Van Alstine Residential Design, Inc. Page 1 of2 

Cottages/5each Houses 

These are samples of some of the Cottages and Beach Houses that Derek has des igned. 

Shoaf Moy 

http://vanalstine.comlBeach.html 2/16120 12 



4

Derek Van Alstine Residential Design, Inc. Page 1 of2 

Remodels 
These arc samples of some remodels Derek has done. 

Airoldi Residence 

Bmton Residence 

Main Menu 

http;lIvanalstine.comlRemodels.html 2/ 16/2012 



5

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

Item #: 4.F.1 

MEETING OF FEBRUARY 23,2012 

FROM: FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF CITY CHECK REGISTER REPORT 

RECOMMENDED ACTION : By motion that the City Council approve the attached Check Register 
Reports for February 3 and February 10. 2012. 

DISCUSSION ' The attached Check Registers for" 

Date Starting Check # Ending Check # Total Checks Amount 

2/3/12 68740 68798 59 $97,927.87 

2/10/12 68799 68898 100 $146,959.49 

2/10/12 Payroll $156,661.62 

The check register of January 27, 2012 ended with check #68739. 

Following is a list of checks issued for more than $10,000.00, and a brief description of the 
expenditure: 

Check Issued to: Dept. Purpose Amount 
68746 Atchison, Barisone & CM Dec 201 1 Legal Services $13,897.33 CondoUi 
68753 Capitola-Soquel Chamber of CM 0 1, 2 & 3 FY11 /12 Visitor & $22,830.00 Commerce Econ Services 
68778 Pacific Gas & Electric PW Monthly Electric, all sites $13013.65 
68800 American Traffic Solutions PO Jul-Dec11 Red Light Camera 

$47,190.01 Exp 
68826 Employment Dev Dept CM 04 2011 Unemployment $18302.00 



6

2-23-12 AGENDA REPORT: Check Register Reports Page 2 

On March 28, 2002, Council adopted Ordinance 838, which amended the City Municipal Code as 
follows: 

"3.28.010 Auditing. All claims for salaries and wages of officers and employees and payroll
related with holdings, assessments, and attachments against the treasury of the City and all other 
claims for payment may be audited and allowed by the City Manager or his/her designee prior to 
payment thereof." 

"3 28.050 Approval. All claims against the City treasury are to be allowed for payment by the 
City Manager or his/her designee and are to be presented to the City Council as an informational 
item as part of their regularly scheduled meetings aft~r their issuance for ratiffcation.Q 

RESOLUTION NO. 2683 On September 22, 1994. Resolution No. 2683 was passed and adopted 
by the City Council. This resolution includes the following text: 

Be it hereby resolved by the City Councif of the City of Capitola that the City 
Manager is authorized, as cash shortages arise, to make temporary cash loans 
between and among the General Fund and all other City funds except the 
Redevelopment Agency; Speci9.1 Assessment District funds ; and The Village and 
Beach Parking Fund; and 

Be it further resolved that such inter-fund loans shall be repaid by the borrowing 
fund to the lending fund as soon as, in the opinion of the City Manager, it is 
fiscally prudent to do so; and 

Be it further resolved that the City Manager shall report to the City Council at its 
next regularly scheduled meeting, the amounts of such Interfund loans actually 
made; the funds from which and to which such Interfund loans were made; and 
the anticipated date the loans will be repaid. 

The bank statement reconciliation has not been completed for the month. Bank reconciliation is 
completed and reported in conjunction with the monthly Treasurer's report. All checks on these 
registers have been deducted from the corresponding fund's cash balance. Interfund loans are not 
recorded on the financial records on a regular basis, except at year-end for financial reporting 
purposes. 

There are several significant timing issues that create cash flow shortages: 

• Triple flip delay of Sales Tax from monthly to December and April (-$500,000/2x year) 
• One quarter of the annual Worker's Compensation premium was paid in July ($100,000) 
• One half of the Self Insurance/Liability annual payment was paid in July ($32,669) 
• One third of the Police Communication JPA annual payment was paid in July ($146,121) 

As of 2/15/12 the total cash available is $1,594,500. The General Operating Fund has a cash 
balance of $228,585. Internal Service Funds (#2210 through #2214) were created for City budget 
purposes and are reclassified for financial reporting into the General Fund. The Compensated 
Absences Fund (#2216) has a positive cash balance of $82,995. The Capital Improvement 
Projects has a positive cash balance of $696,894. By Council direction the Emergency Reserves 
Fun9 (#1020) may not participate in cash loans; the Emergency Reserves Fund has a fund 
balance of $151 ,804. 

For cash flow purposes these funds are available to the General Fund. A consolidation of these 
cash balances results in a cash position of $1 ,594,500. 



7

2-23-12 AGENDA REPORT: Check Register Reports Page 3 

The following table shows the funds that are consolidated: 

CASH POSITION - CITY OF CAPITOLA 2/15/12 

General Fund 
Worker's Compo Ins. Fund 
Self Insurance Liability Fund 
Stores Fund 
Information Technology Fund 
Equipment Replacement 
Compensated Absences Fund 
Contingency Reserve Fund 
Public Employee Retirement - PERS 
Open Space Fund 
Capital Improvement Projects 
TOTAL GENERAL FUND & COUNCIL DESIGNATED FUNDS 

Net Balance 
228,585 

58,210 
197,719 

7,858 
28,401 
10,065 
82,995 

283,518 
256 

696,894 
1,594,500 

The Emergencv Reserve Fund balance is $151,804.17 and is not included above. 

On a fiscal year basis the City's annual budget balances expenditures and revenue in the 
General Fund. Due to the timing of revenue receipts , during most of the fiscal year General Fund 
expenditures will outpace revenue. 

To resolve this cash flow issue, loans in the amount of $939,895.66 were made from the 
following funds to the general fund: 

Loans Between funds: 
Contingency Reserve 
Equipment Replacement 
Information Technology 

Total Loans 

$464,895.66 
$325,000.00 
$150,000.00 

$939,895.66 

It is anticipated that these loans to General Fund will be repaid by June 30, 2012. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Check Register for February 3, 2012 
2. Check Register for February 10, 2012 

Report Prepared By: Linda Benko 
AP Clerk 

Reviewed and FO~P..., 
By City Manager: r ~ 



8

ATTACHMENT 1 
Checks dated 2/3/12 numbered 68740 to 68798 for a total of $97,927.87 have been reviewed and 
authorized for distribution by the City Manager and City Treasurer. 

As of 2/3/12 the unaudited cash balance is $1,790,874 

CASH POSITION -CITY OF CAPITOLA 2/3/12 

General Fund 
Worker's Compo Ins. Fund 
Self Insurance Liability Fund 
Stores Fund 
Information Technology Fund 
Equipment Replacement 
Compensated Absences Fund 
Contingency Reserve Fund 
Public Employee Retirement - PERS 
Open Space Fund 
Capital Improvement Projects 
TOTAL GENERAL FUND & COUNCIL DESIGNATED FUNDS 

Net Balance 
613,079 

58,210 
17,890 
11,268 
29,911 
10,065 
82,995 

270,757 
256 

696,444 
1,790,874 

The Emergency Reserve Fund balance is $151,804.17 and is not included above. 

On a fiscal year basis the City's annual budget balances expenditures and revenue in the 
General Fund. Due to the timing of revenue receipts, during most of the fiscal year General Fund 
expenditures will outpace revenue. 

To resolve this cash flow issue, loans in the amount of $1,139,895.66 were made from the 
following funds to the general fund: 

Loans Between funds: 

Contingency Reserve 
Equipment Replacement 
Information Technology 
Self Insurance Liability 

Total Loans 

$464,895.66 
$325,000.00 
$150,000.00 
$200,000.00 

$1,139,895.66 

It is anticipated that these loans to the General Fund will be repaid by June 30, 2012. 

2/3/12 
Date 

/l . '2-z . 1 ~ 
Date 



9

City of Capitola 

City Checks Issued 2/3/2012 
Check Invoice Status Invoice Date Description Payee Name Transaction 
Number Number Amount 

68740 02/03/2012 Open BECK'S SHOES INC $130.59 

Licensee Type 01/25/12 Refund Overpayment Transaction Type 

Business Refund Business License Overpayment Refund 

68741 02/03/2012 Open BOGNER'S ALL AIR, INC. $45.00 

Licensee Type 01/25/12 Refund Overpayment Transaction Type 

Business Refund Business License Overpayment Refund 

68742 02/03/2012 Open HIRSCH & ASSOCIATES $17.50 

Licensee Type 01/25/12 Refund Overpayment Transaction Type 

Business Refund Business License Overpayment Refund 

68743 02/03/2012 Open LENSCRAFTERS 5778 $250.00 

Licensee Type 01/25/12 Refund Overpayment Transaction Type 

Business Refund Business License Overpayment Refund 

68744 02/03/2012 Open SCRIPT CRAFTICAPITOLA REEF $25.00 

Licensee Type 01/25/12 Refund Overpayment Transaction Type 

Business Refund Business License Overpayment Refund 

68745 02/03/2012 Open ALLSAFE LOCK COMPANY $19.44 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

43097 01/27/2012 Keys for motor shed-PD $8.64 

43100 01/30/2012 Keys-PD $10.80 

68746 02/03/2012 Open ATCHISON, BARISONE, & CONDOTTI $13,897.33 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

Dec2011 12/31/2011 Dec 2011 General Legal Services $13,897.33 

68747 02/03/2012 Open AUTOMATED TEST ASSOCIATES $92.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

38276 01/22/2012 Pac Cove MHP meter reading Jan12 $67.00 

38275 01/22/2012 Wharf meter reading Jan12 $25.00 

68748 02/03/2012 Open BACK TO EDEN LANDSCAPING INC. $575.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2859 01/18/2012 Jan2012 Landscape Fee, Pac Cove MHP $575.00 

68749 02/03/2012 Open BAYSIDE OIL II, INC. $25.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

930499 01/31/2012 Used Oil Disposal $25.00 

68750 02/03/2012 Open BOB MURRAY & ASSOCIATES $7,805.33 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

4528 01/17/2012 Professional Services, Police Chief Searct $7,805.33 

68751 02/03/2012 Open CA. LAW ENFORCEMENT ASSOC OF RECORDS SUPER. $50.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2012 02/01/2012 Membership for 2012 Hernandez $50.00 

Pages: 1 of 6 Friday, February 03,2012 



10

City of Capitola 

City Checks Issued 2/3/2012 

Check Invoice status Invoice Date Description Payee Name Transaction 
Number Number Amount 

68752 02/03/2012 Open CA. LAW ENFORCEMENT ASSOC. $370.50 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

CLEA-Feb12 01/17/2012 Long Term Disability Ins, PO $370.50 

68753 02/03/2012 Open CAPITOLA-SOQUEL CHAMBER OF COMMERCE $22,830.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

CoC-2012 01/12/2012 2012 renewal dues-PO $330.00 

114 10/26/2012 Q1 FY11/12 Visitor & Econ Services $7,500.00 

115 10/26/2011 Q2 FY11/12 Visitor & Econ Services $7,500.00 

117 01/30/2012 Q3 FY11/12 Visitor & Econ Services $7,500.00 

68754 02/03/2012 Open CHEVROLET OF WATSONVILLE $86.96 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

172656 01/20/2012 auto parts $86.96 

68755 02/03/2012 Open CRUZIO THE INTERNET STORE INC. $39.95 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

28750-33 02/02/2012 webhosting 2/23/12-3/22/12 $39.95 

Fund 1313, Gen Plan Update 

68756 02/03/2012 Open ENTENMANN-ROVIN $138.90 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

0077047-IN 01/06/2012 Badge 512 and 529-PD $138.90 

68757 02/03/2012 Open FEDERAL EXPRESS $311.17 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

7-764-16057 01/20/2012 Shipping Expense, City Hall $311.17 

68758 02/03/2012 Open FLYERS ENERGY, LLC $5,311.91 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

12-691107 01/19/2012 397 Gal Ethanol $1,562.18 

12-691108 01/19/2012 100 Gal Diesel $384.85 

12-689400 01/13/2012 509 Gal Ethanol $1,966.17 

12-689401 01/13/2012 180 Gal Diesel $730.31 

12-693471 01/31/2012 55 Gal Oil $668.40 

68759 02/03/2012 Open GALLI UNIFORM COMPANY $327.02 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

161 01/05/2012 Uniform Expense, PO (Mendoza) $327.02 

68760 02/03/2012 Open GOVERNMENTAL & NONPROFIT ASSISTANCE CENTER $145.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

DM-2012 01/26/2012 Exam Registration, Saldana, Debt Manage $145.00 

68761 02/03/2012 Open GROGAN, JASON $2,481.17 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

Jan2012a 01/26/2012 PERS pymt in advance of lOR, Jan8-21 $1,654.11 

Jan2012 01/26/2012 PERS pymt in advance of lOR, Jan 1-7 $827.06 

68762 02/03/2012 Open HUB INTERNATIONAL OF CA INSURA~ $126.02 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

1/31/2012 01/31/2012 Insurance, Comm Ctr rentals $126.02 

Pages: 2of6 Friday, February 03, 2012 



11

City of Capitola 

City Checks Issued 2/3/2012 

Check Invoice Status Invoice Date Description Payee Name Transaction 
Number Number Amount 

68763 02/03/2012 Open IT CREATIONS INC. $3,382.13 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

58557 01/17/2012 Computer Hardware-Fund 2211, IT $3,382.13 

68764 02/03/2012 Open KBA Docusys $83.34 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

109501 11/15/2011 Rec Center Copier Lease Agreement $83.34 

Fund 2211, IT 

68765 02/03/2012 Open LANSING, KAREN $500.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

20120111 01/11/2012 Prof Svcs, Critical Incident Debrief-PO $500.00 

68766 02/03/2012 Open LIEBERT CASSIDY WHITMORE $2,962.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

144732 12/29/2011 Membership, Employment Relations Cons, $2,962.00 

68767 02/03/2012 Open LLOYD'S TIRE SERVICE INC. $88.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

221200 01/10/2012 auto parts $88.00 

68768 02/03/2012 Open MARCHESE, HELEN $421.98 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

PC-Jan2012 01/26/2012 Replenish Petty Cash, Jan 2012 $421.98 

68769 02/03/2012 Open McMENAMIN, GEORGE $619.88 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

R17 02/01/2012 Riparian restoration $619.88 

68770 02/03/2012 Open MICROFLEX CORP #774353 $136.17 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

1252367 01/10/2012 Latex Gloves-PO $136.17 

68771 02/03/2012 Open MID-COUNTY AUTO SUPPLY $223.87 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

288511 01/08/2012 Motorcycle fluids $20.98 

289825 01/19/2012 auto parts $69.44 

289652 01/18/2012 auto parts $121.15 

289675 01/18/2012 auto parts $12.30 

68772 02/03/2012 Open MOFFATT & NICHOL $932.98 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

59365 01/24/2012 Capitola Flume Rehabilitation Engineering $932.98 

Fund 1200, CIP 

68773 02/03/2012 Open MONTEREY BAY SYSTEMS $1,192.29 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

126801 01/09/2012 Copier Main! Contract, Oct-Dec11 $212.52 

126802 01/09/2012 PO Copier Main! Contract, Oct-Dec11 $437.79 

127020 01/10/2012 Oc!-Dec2011 Copier Use fees-PO $541.98 

Pages: 30f6 Friday, February 03,2012 



12

City of Capitola 

City Checks Issued 2/3/2012 

Check Invoice Status Invoice Date Description Payee Name Transaction 
Number Number Amount 

68774 02/03/2012 Open MORENO, LEO $112.57 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2012-01 01/26/2012 Reimb Training Travel Exp $112.57 

POST reimbursable 

68775 02/03/2012 Open NATIVE REVIVAL NURSERY $173.83 

. Invoice Date Description Amount 

11521 01/24/2012 landscape supplies $173.83 

68776 02/03/2012 Open NORTH BAY FORD $2,261.66 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

FOC272258 01/13/2012 Transmission Repair, PD-072 $2,261.66 

68777 02/03/2012 Open ORCHARD SUPPLY HARDWARE $221.64 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

6013-7820882 01/19/2012 auto parts $4.42 

6013-137820882 01/11/2012 auto parts $47.84 

6011-4794330 01/17/2012 Cleaning & painting supplies $100.74 

6014-4786498 01/17/2012 Batteries $27.57 

6009-3693720 01/17/2012 Paint $3.02 

6011-4794625 01/18/2012 Glue $14.60 

6007-3525582 01/19/2012 Chain - Prospect trash cans $16.42 

6007-3526654 01/24/2012 batteries for dog scanner $7.03 

68778 02/03/2012 Open PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC $13,013.65 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2012-00000525 01/16/2012 Monthly Elec $13,013.65 

Fund 1300, SLESF=$94.86 

Fund 1310, Gas Tax=$923.01 

Fund 1311, Wharf Fund=$1505.75 

68779 02/03/2012 Open PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC $633.77 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2012-00000526 01/19/2012 Pac Cove MHP Elec and Gas $633.77 

68780 02/03/2012 Open PACIFIC PRODUCTS AND SERVICES $420.33 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

14284 01/05/2012 Steel rivets $420.33 

68781 02/03/2012 Open PALACE ART & OFFICE SUPPLIES $562.36 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

938957 01/09/2012 Office Supplies, City Hall-Fund 2210, StorE $89.11 

940320 01/17/2012 Office supplies-PO $385.19 

8724452-0 01123/2012 shop office supplies $88.06 

68782 02/03/2012 Open PHOENIX GROUP INFORMATION SYS $765.24 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

122011070 01/10/2012 Dec 2011 Citation processing expense $765.24 

68783 02/03/2012 Open POLAR AUTOMOTIVE & RADIATOR $812.80 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

20324 01/31/2012 Bobcat Radiator $812.80 

Pages: 4of6 Friday, February 03,2012 



13

City of Capitola 

City Checks Issued 2/3/2012 

Check Invoice Status Invoice Date Description Payee Name Transaction 
Number Number Amount 

68784 02/03/2012 Open PRAXAIR DISTRIBUTION INC. $60.68 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

41546211 12/20/2011 Acetylene, etc $60.68 

68785 02/03/2012 Open REPUBLIC ITS INC. $1,856.52 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

RR-124314 01/12/2012 FY 11/12 Traffic Signal Maintenance $698.24 

RR-124315 01/12/2012 FY 11/12 Traffic Signal Maintenance $1,158.28 

Fund 1310, Gas Tax 

68786 02/03/2012 Open ROBERT SEELEY & ASSOCIATES $105.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

20120123 01/23/2012 OcUNovlDec 2011 Admin Hearings $105.00 

68787 02/03/2012 Open RYAN, SARAH $137.87 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

Tng-Jan2012 01/26/2012 Travel Exp, Training Course $137.87 

POST Reimbursable 

68788 02/03/2012 Open S&S WORLDWIDE $128.13 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

7188457 01/04/2012 Sports equipment-Rec $128.13 

68789 02/03/2012 Open SANTA CRUZ COUNTY SHERIFF $35.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

SmClaim-1 01/26/2012 Bank Levy Process Serving $35.00 

68790 02/03/2012 Open SANTA CRUZ COUNTY SHERIFF $35.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

SmClaim-2 01/26/2012 Bank Levy Process Serving $35.00 

68791 02/03/2012 Open SOQUEL CREEK WATER DISTRICT $1,241.43 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2012-00000519 01/20/2012 Semi-monthly irrigation water, Nov-Jan12 $1,241.43 

68792 02/03/2012 Open STAPLES $36.04 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

29813 01/19/2012 IT Supplies $33.89 

9224152758 01/19/2012 IT Supplies $2.15 

Fund 2211, Stores 

68793 02/03/2012 Open STATLER, WILLIAM, C. $5,890.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

Dec2011 01/24/2012 Dec 2011 Interim Finance Dir Services $5,890.00 

68794 02/03/2012 Open SUMMIT UNIFORM CORP $1,779.63 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

44248 01/09/2012 Uniform Exp, Josh Murray-PD $1,779.63 

68795 02/03/2012 Open. SWIFT, CAROLYN $342.73 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

Museum-Jan12a 01/26/2012 Reimb Purchase of Museum Display ItemE $342.73 

Pages: 50f6 Friday, February 03,2012 



14

Check Invoice Status 
Number Number 

68796 02/03/2012 Open 

Invoice 

Dues 12-2-11 

68797 02/03/2012 Open 

Invoice 

194452819 

68798 02/03/2012 Open 

Invoice 

2012-00000524 

Check Totals: 

City of Capitola 

City Checks Issued 2/3/2012 

Invoice Date 

Date 

12102/2011 

Date 

01/08/2012 

Date 

01/27/2012 

Description Payee Name 

UPECLIUNA LOCAL 792 

Description 

Union Dues, 12/2/2011, Employee Funded 

Amount 

$908.50 

Description 

Copier Lease, C4540, PD 

Description 

US BANCORP EQUIPMENT FINANCE 

Amount 

$250.06 

Britannia Arms 

Refund parking permits #720-729 

Amount 

$500.00 

Count 59 Total 

Transaction 
Amount 

$908.50 

$250.06 

$500.00 

$97,927.87 

Pages: 6 of6 Friday, February 03,2012 



15

ATTACHMENT 2 
Checks dated 2/10/12 numbered 68799 to 68898 for a total of $146,959.49 have been reviewed 
and authorized for distribution by the City Manager and City Treasurer. 

As of 2/10/12 the unaudited cash balance is $1,596,220 

CASH POSITION - CITY OF CAPITOLA 2/10/12 

General Fund 
Worker's Compo Ins. Fund 
Self Insurance Liability Fund 
Stores Fund 
Information Technology Fund 
Equipment Replacement 
Compensated Absences Fund 
Contingency Reserve Fund 
Public Employee Retirement - PERS 
Open Space Fund 
Capital Improvement Projects 
TOTAL GENERAL FUND & COUNCIL DESIGNATED FUNDS 

Net Balance 
228,920 

58,210 
197,719 

7,858 
29,786 
10,065 
82,995 

283,518 
256 

696,894 
1,596,220 

The EmergencvReseNe Fund balance is $151,804.17 and is not included above. 

On a fiscal year basis the City's annual budget balances expenditures and revenue in the 
General Fund. Due to the timing of revenue receipts, during most of the fiscal year General Fund 
expenditures will outpace revenue. 

To resolve this cash flow issue, loans in the amount of $939,895.66 were made from the 
following funds to the general fund: 

Loans Between funds: 

Contingency Reserve 
Equipment Replacement 
Information Technology 
Total Loans 

$464,895.66 
$325,000.00 
$150,000.00 
$939,895.66 

It is anticipated that these loans to the General Fund will be repaid by June 30, 2012. 

2/10/12 
Date 

Jacques J.J. Bertrand, City Treasurer Date 



16

City of Capitola 

City Checks Issued 2/10/2012 

Check Invoice Status Invoice Date Description Payee Name Transaction 
Number Number Amount 

68799 02/10/2012 Open AFLAC $464.50 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

Jan2012 01/25/2012 Jan Insurance Premium, Employee Funde, $464.50 

68800 02/10/2012 Open AMERICAN TRAFFIC SOLUTIONS, INC. $47,190.01 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

INVOO013112 01/31/2012 Red Light Camera Exp, Jul-Dec2011 $47,190.01 

68801 02/10/2012 Open ARITCHITA, WIND, C. $280.80 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2012-00000530 02/07/2012 Winter Inst.Payments 2012 $280.80 

68802 02/10/2012 Open ARROWHEAD SCIENTIFIC, INC. $217.15 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

53479 01/06/2012 Evidence supplies-PD $217.15 

68803 02/10/2012 Open B & B SMALL ENGINE REPAIR $7.50 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

257493 01/30/2012 Sthil 440 chainsaw repair $7.50 

68804 02/10/2012 Open BARRETT, SHARON $100.75 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2012-00000531 02/07/2012 Winter Inst.Payments 2012 $100.75 

68805 02/10/2012 Open BARTLETT, GERRY $1,545.70 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2012-00000532 02/07/2012 Winter Inst.Payments 2012 $1,545.70 

68806 02/10/2012 Open BEN'S MOTORCYCLE WORKS $1,616.60 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

0412 01/27/2012 2007 Harley $1,616.60 

68807 02/10/2012 Open BETZ, SHERRI $3,581.50 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2012-00000533 02/07/2012 Winter Inst.Payments 2012 $3,581.50 

68808 02/10/2012 Open BIG CREEK LUMBER $184.95 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2963348 12/05/2011 Cliff Dr. posts $92.85 

2963599 12/08/2011 Pallet deposit $18.40 

2963886 12/12/2011 PC fence $73.70 

68809 02/10/2012 Open BRESLIN-KESSLER, PAUL $3,640.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2012-00000534 02/07/2012 Winter Inst.Payments 2012 $3,640.00 

68810 02/10/2012 Open C&N TRACTORS $13.90 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

6729W 01/25/2012 Parts $13.90 

Pages: 1 of9 Friday, February 10, 2012 



17

City of Capitola 

City Checks Issued 2/10/2012 

Check Invoice Status Invoice Date Description Payee Name -Transaction 
Number Number Amount 

68811 02/10/2012 Open CA DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE $17.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

890217 01/23/2012 H & S analyses 11 c-01624-PD $17.00 

68812 02/10/2012 Open CAPITOLA PEACE OFFICERS ASSOC $858.08 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

POA2-10-12· 02/08/2012 POA Dues, Employee Funded $858.08 

68813 02/10/2012 Open CHEVROLET OF WATSONVILLE $175.73 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

172903 01/28/2012 auto parts $118.23 

127946 01/31/2012 auto parts $57.50 

68814 02/10/2012 Open CLARK, DAVE $427.70 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2012-00000535 02/07/2012 Winter Inst.Payments 2012 $427.70 

68815 02/10/2012 Open CLEAN SOURCE $988.31 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

1024312 01/17/2012 Cleaning supplies $744.75 

1024312-01 01/20/2012 Doggie bags $243.56 

68816 02/10/2012 Open COLEY HEATH INVESTIGATIONS $1,000.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

13 01/23/2012 Background Investigation, New Hire-PO $1,000.00 

68817 02/10/2012 Open COMPLETE MAILING SERVICE INC $1,329.75 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

60149 01/30/2012 Mailing Service-Rec Brochures $1,329.75 

68818 02/10/2012 Open CORLISS, TROY $900.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

Corliss 02/02/2012 Public Art Project Honorarium $900.00 

Fund 1315, Public Art 

68819 02/10/2012 Open CRESTOR INC. $1,287.90 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

R211557 12/16/2011 Memorial plaques $601.02 

R212565 01/23/2012 Memorial plaques $686.88 

68820 02/10/2012 Open CRUZIO THE INTERNET STORE INC. $65.70 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2989-124 01/25/2012 Rec Web hosting 2/15 to 5114/12 $65.70 

68821 02/10/2012 Open DAVIDSON, ANA LUCIA $139.75 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2012-00000537 02/07/2012 Winter Inst.Payments 2012 $139.75 

68822 02/10/2012 Open DE LAGE LANDEN FINANCIAL SVC, INC $334.07 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

12464120 01/21/2012 Jan-Feb2012 Copier Lease $334.07 

Fund 2210, Stores 

Pages: 2 of9 Friday, February 10, 2012 



18

City of Capitola 

City Checks Issued 2/10/2012 

Check Invoice Status Invoice Date Description Payee Name Transaction 
Number Number Amount 
68823 02/10/2012 Open De MA TIEIS, LUNA $1,270.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

20120206 02/06/2012 Public Art Proj Artist selection honorarium $1,270.00 

Fund 1315, Public Art 

68824 02/10/2012 Open DEPT OF HOUSING AND COMM DEV (HCD) $70.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

RegTrx 02/02/2012 Sale of Mobile Home Reg Fee $70.00 

Fund 2213, Self Ins Liability 

68825 02/10/2012 Open DICKS, CHUCK $370.50 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

. 2012-00000538 02/07/2012 Winter Inst.Payments 2012 $370.50 

68826 02/10/2012 Open EMPLOYMENT DEVELOPMENT DEPT $18,302.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

Q4 CY2011 01/25/2012 Unemployment Tax, Q42011 $18,302.00 

Fund 2213, Self Ins Liability 

68827 02/10/2012 Open EVANS, PAT $370.50 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2012-00000540 02/07/2012 Winter Inst.Payments 2012 $370.50 

68828 02/10/2012 Open EWING IRRIGATION $62.83 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

4312768 01/27/2012 Irrig·ation repair supplies $62.83 

68829 02/10/2012 Open EXTRA SPACE STORAGE OF SC INC $282.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

Feb2012 01/27/2012 Evidence storage rent-Feb2012 $282.00 

68830 02/10/2012 Open FITZGERALD, AIMEE $422.50 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2012-00000541 02/07/2012 Winter Inst.Payments 2012 $422.50 

68831 02/10/2012 Open FLYERS ENERGY, LLC $2,367.83 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

12-693644 01/27/2012 150 Gal Diesel $595.40 

12-693643 01/27/2012 454 Gal Ethanol $1,772.43 

68832 02/10/2012 Open FLYNN, CAROLYN $3,837.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

. CBF-1-2012 01/26/2012 Jan12 Professional Services $3,837.00 

Fund 1313, General Plan=$1159 

Fund 1350, CDBG Grants=$2478 

Fund 1351, CDBG Programs=$200 

68833 02/10/2012 Open FRANCA, CLAUDIO $260.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2012-00000542 02/07/2012 Winter Inst.Payments 2012 $260.00 

68834 02/10/2012 Open GALLI UNIFORM COMPANY $43.36 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

172 01/11/2012 Uniform Expense, Parking Enf. $43.36 

Pages: 3 of 9 Friday, February 10, 2012 



19

City of Capitola 

City Checks Issued 2/10/2012 

Check Invoice Status Invoice Date Description Payee Name Transaction 
Number Number Amount 

68835 02/10/2012 Open GEDDES, SESE EGAN $300.30 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2012-00000539 02/07/2012 Winter Inst.Payments 2012 $300.30 

68836 02/10/2012 Open GORDON HUETHER & PARTNERS, INC. $900.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

ZPA1-CPT 02/06/2012 Public Art Project, Honorarium $900.00 

Fund 1315, Public Art 

68837 02/10/2012 Open GRAHAM-GARCIA, BARBARA $250.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

128 01/19/2012 Ergonomic Eval, Sneddon $250.00 

68838 02/10/2012 Open GROGAN, JASON $1,654.11 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

Feb2012 01/26/2012 PERS Pymt in advance of lOR, Jan22-Feb $1,654.11 

68839 02/10/2012 Open HAINES & COMPANY, INC. $383.47 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

323180 02/01/2012 2012 annual directory-PD· $383.47 

68840 02/10/2012 Open HEINEGG, MARCIA $179.40 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2012-00000543 02/07/2012 Winter Inst.Payments 2012 $179.40 

68841 02/10/2012 Open HILL, CAROL $156.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2012-00000544 02/07/2012 Winter Inst.Payments 2012 $156.00 

68842 02/10/2012 Open HO KUK MU SUL CORPORATION $243.75 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2012-00000536 02/07/2012 Winter Inst.Payments 2012 $243.75 

68843 02/10/2012 Open HOWARD, CHARLIE $1,430.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

Jan-4 02/06/2012 Mechanic $720.00 

1/30-2/3/12 02/0612012 Mechanic $710.00 

68844 02/10/2012 Open ICMA RETIREMENT TRUST 457 $4,787.58 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

ICMA2-10-12 02/08/2012 Retirement Plan Contribution, Employee F $4,817.58 

Credit 02/02/2012 Overpayment from Jan deposit ($30.00) 

68845 02/10/2012 Open IFLAND ENGINEERS INC. $529.28 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

00426 01/31/2012 Brommer St. Traffic Island Modification $529.28 

68846 02/10/2012 Open INK, BRUCE $518.70 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2012-00000545 02/07/2012 Winter Inst.Payments 2012 $518.70 

Pages: 4 of9 Friday, February 10, 2012 



20

City of Capitola 

City Checks Issued 2/10/2012 
Check Invoice Status Invoice Date Description Payee Name Transaction 
Number Number Amount 

68847 02/10/2012 Open INTERNATIONAL CODE COUNCIL $250.00 

Invoice Date . Description Amount 

Dues-2012 02/02/2012 2012 Dues, Building Dept-Wheeler $250.00 

68848 02/10/2012 Open INTERSTATE BATTERY SYSTEM $107.11 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

50224019 01/24/2012 auto parts $107.11 

68849 02/10/2012 Open JAMES PALLEN & ASSOC $495.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

020212 02/02/2012 consulting arborist $90.00 

121911 12/19/2011 consulting arborist $405.00 

68850 02/10/2012 Open KAPLAN, PHIL $698.75 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2012-00000546 02/07/2012 Winter Inst.Payments 2012 $698.75 

68851 02/10/2012 Open KING'S CLEANERS $587.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

Jan2012 01/12/2012 Dec 2012 uniform cleaning-PO $587.00 

68852 02/10/2012 Open KINNAMON, LORRAINE $144.95 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2012-00000547 02/07/2012 Winter Inst.Payments 2012 $144.95 

68853 02/10/2012 Open LAB SAFETY SUPPLY $258.17 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

1018397787 01/16/2012 Safety supplies $258.17 

68854 02/10/2012 Open LEAGUE OF CALIFORNIA CITIES $150.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

8001 01/01/2012 2012 Membership Dues $150.00 

68855 02/10/2012 Open LLOYD'S TIRE SERVICE INC. $364.92 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

221378 01/13/2012 auto parts $364.92 

68856 02/10/2012 Open LOOMIS $1,234.73 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

11004480 01/31/2012 Armored Car Service Feb 2012 $1,234.73 

68857 02/10/2012 Open LUCAS, SAMANTHA $373.10 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2012-00000548 02/07/2012 Winter Inst.Payments 2012 $373.10 

68858 02/10/2012 Open MARRUJO, SANDY $395.20 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2012-00000549 02/07/2012 Winter Inst.Payments 2012 $395.20 

Pages: 50f9 Friday, February 10, 2012 



21

City of Capitola 

City Checks Issued 2/10/2012 
Check Invoice Status Invoice Date Description Payee Name Transaction 
Number Number Amount 

68859 02/10/2012 Open MATTERN,MARK $325.00 

Invoice Date Description . Amount 

2012-00000550 02/07/2012 Winter Inst.Payments 2012 $325.00 

68860 02/10/2012 Open MCCUTCHEN,SUELLEN $357.50 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2012-00000551 02/07/2012 Winter Inst.Payments 2012 $357.50 

68861 02/10/2012 Open MCLAUGHLIN, MARY $546.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2012-00000552 02/07/2012 Winter Inst.Payments 2012 $546.00 

68862 02/10/2012 Open McMENAMIN, GEORGE $425.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

R18 02/08/2012 riparian restoration $425.00 

68863 02/10/2012 Open MILES, MITCHELL, A. $1,264.90 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2012-00000553 02/07/2012 Winter Inst.Payments 2012 $1,264.90 

68864 02/10/2012 Open MISSION PRINTERS $230.01 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

42690 01/13/2012 City Window Envelopes $230.01 

Fund 2210, Stores 

68865 02/10/2012 Open MITCHELL, JEANI $719.55 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2012-00000554 02/07/2012 Winter Inst.Payments 2012 $719.55 

68866 02/10/2012 Open MONTEREY SAY AREA SELF INSURANI $1,800.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

MSA11-0715 12/28/2011 Claim Settlement, Myers $1,800.00 

Fund 2213, Self Ins Liability 

68867 02/10/2012 Open MONTEREY SAY SYSTEMS $295.13 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

127705 01/17/2012 City Hall, PD Copier Maint Agreement $295.13 

68868 02/10/2012 Open MORRISON, EDWARD, LAWRENCE $2,250.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

02/03/2012 Jan12 PW Inspection Contract Svcs $2,250.00 

68869 02/10/2012 Open MORRISSEY, YOSHIE $198.90 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2012-00000555 02/07/2012 Winter Inst.Payments 2012 $198.90 

68870 02/10/2012 Open NATIVE REVIVAL NURSERY $173.83 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

35353 01/24/2012 Plants $173.83 

68871 02/10/2012 Open OFFUTT, MELISSA $236.60 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2012-00000556 02/07/2012 Winter Inst.Payments 2012 $236.60 

Pages: 6of9 Friday, February 10, 2012 



22

City of Capitola 

City Checks Issued 2/10/2012 
Check Invoice Status Invoice Date Description Payee Name Transaction 
Number Number Amount 

68872 02/10/2012 Open OLIVE SPRINGS QUARRY, INC. $79.06 

Invoice Date Description Amo\1nt 

81873 01/23/2012 1 112" drain rock! Soquel Creek bio swale $79.06 

68873 02/10/2012 Open ORCHARD SUPPLY HARDWARE $73.35 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

6012-4762681 01/19/2012 Mortar $9.94 

6011-4795010 01/20/2012 Misc. $59.97 

6009-1384630 01/23/2012 Wood screws $3.44 

68874 02/10/2012 Open PALACE ART & OFFICE SUPPLIES $971.67 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

940910 01/20/2012 Office Supplies, City Hall $32.44 

940932 01/20/2012 Office Supplies, City hall $239.94 

939993 01/20/2012 Office Supplies, City Hall $6.48 

941318 01/24/2012 Office Supplies, City Hall $143.95 

941554 01/25/2012 Office Supplies, City hall $9.29 

941489 01/25/2012 Office Supplies, City Hall $176.45 

941027 01/25/2012 Office Supplies, City Hall $16.93 

8724974 01/24/2012 Office Supplies, Museum $89.28 

C940910 01/26/2012 Return Office Supplies, City Hall ($32.44) 

942567 01/31/2012 Office supplies-PO $10.71 

942615 01/31/2012 Paper, City Hall $232.20 

940934 01/20/2012 Paper-PO $46.44 

Fund 2210, Stores=$825.24 

68875 02/10/2012 Open PANARO, YVONNE $845.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2012-00000557 02/07/2012 Winter Inst.Payments 2012 $845.00 

68876 02/10/2012 Open PITNEY BOWES INC. $2,019.99 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

RefiIl1-19-12 01/19/2012 Postage Meter Refill, City Hall $2,019.99 

Fund 2210, Stores 

68877 02/10/2012 Open POT, TRENISE $1,106.30 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2012-00000558 02/07/2012 Winter Inst.Payments 2012 $1,106.30 

68878 02/10/2012 Open ROM, HILLEL $262.50 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2012-00000528 02/03/2012 Sport officials January to Feb 4 2012 $262.50 

68879 02/10/2012 Open ROSEMAN, LEWIS $2,947.24 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

11512 01/12/2012 January 2012 parking meter services $2,947.24 

68880 02/10/2012 Open SANTA CRUZ MUNICIPAL UTILITIES $688.40 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2012-00000523 01/25/2012 WATER BILLS FOR STREET MEDIANS $688.40 

Pages: 7of9 Friday, February 10, 2012 



23

City of Capitola 

City Checks Issued 2/10/2012 
Check Invoice Status Invoice Date Description Payee Name Transaction 
Number Number Amount 

68881 02/10/2012 Open SANTA CRUZ SENTINEL $262.24 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2040516-Jan12 01/31/2012 Jan 2012 Legal Liners $262.24 

68882 02/10/2012 Open SEE-CABARGA, DIANE $362.70 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2012-00000559 02/07/2012 Winter Inst.Payments 2012 $362.70 

68883 02/10/2012 Open SUMMIT UNIFORM CORP $768.57 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

44455 01/02/2012 Uniform Exp, Murray-PO $53.04 

44525 01/09/2012 Uniform Expense, Ryan-PO $117.99 

44526 01/09/2012 Uniform Expense, Ryan-PO $21.65 

44524 01/09/2012 Uniform Expense, Blankenship-PO $575.89 

68884 02/10/2012 Open SWIFT, CAROLYN $203.74 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

ArtNouv 02/02/2012 Reimburse Museum Display Purchase $160.00 

716509 02/06/2012 Reimb Museum Display Exp $43.74 

68885 02/10/2012 Open SWIFT, STEVE $96.76 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

20120202 02/02/2012 Reimb Purch of Museum Display Supplies $96.76 

68886 02/10/2012 Open THILL, WENDY $120.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2012-00000527 02/03/2012 Sport officials January to Feb 4 2012 $120.00 

68887 02/10/2012 Open TLC ADMINISTRATORS, INC. $9,288.53 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

Feb2012 01/26/2012 Employee Vision & Dental Ins, $9,288.53 

Employee Funded 

68888 02/10/2012 Open TLC ADMINISTRATORS, INC. $175.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

15530 02/01/2012 Feb 2012 Cafeteria Plan Admin Fee $175.00 

68889 02/10/2012 Open UNION BANK OF CALIFORNIA $273.23 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

PARS2-10-12 02/0812012 PARS Contribution, Employee Funded $273.23 

68890 02/10/2012 Open US BANCORP EQUIPMENT FINANCE, It $92.93 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

195539853 01/24/2012 Copier Lease, Jade Street $92.93 

68891 02/10/2012 Open Van Den Heuvel, Dana $1,815.49 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

IDR-Feb10 01/26/2012 PERS payments in advance of lOR $1,815.49 

68892 02/10/2012 Open WALBRIDGE, BREIGE $117.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

2012-00000560 02/07/2012 Winter Inst.Payments 2012 $117.00 

Pages: 8 of9 Friday, February 10, 2012 



24

City of Capitola 

City Checks Issued 2/10/2012 
Check Invoice Status Invoice Date Description Payee Name Transaction 
Number Number Amount 

68893 02/10/2012 Open WATSONVILLE POLICE DEPT $250.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

Dec2011 01/19/2012 Dec 2011 Watsonville range use-PD $250.00 

68894 02/10/2012 Open WHITLOW CONCRETE, INC. $4,171.50 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

5317 01/25/2012 Curb & gutter repair-Wharf Rd $4,171.50 

68895 02/10/2012 Open ZEE MEDICAL SERVICE CO. $307.48 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

66577140 01/25/2012 Safety supplies $307.48 

68896 02/10/2012 Open Shorebreak Hotel $360.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

4050953 02/02/2012 POST reimbursable, lodging for Sloma $360.00 

68897 02/10/2012 Open Suiffet,Clementine $25.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

1161 02/07/2012 Refund for permit #1161 $25.00 

68898 02/10/2012 Open Zimmerman, Cindy $36.00 

Invoice Date Description Amount 

243518 02/07/2012 Refund for citation 243518 $36.00 

Check Totals: Count 100 Total $146.959.49 

Pages: 90f9 Friday, February 10, 2012 



R:\Agenda Staff Reports\2012 Agenda Reports\City Council\02-23-12\5.A. Liability Claims_report.docx 

Item #: 5.A. 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF FEBRUARY 23, 2012 

FROM:  CITY MANAGER’S DEPARTMENT 

SUBJECT: LIABILITY CLAIMS  
______________________________________________________________________________

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Deny liability claims and forward to the City’s liability insurance carrier. 

DISCUSSION:

The following claimant has filed a liability claim against the City of Capitola: 

1.  Janice Jimenez:  undetermined amount. 

ATTACHMENTS:  None 

Report Prepared By: Liz Nichols      
                  Executive Assistant to the City Manager

          
         Reviewed and Forwarded 
         by City Manager: ________  

25



R:\Agenda Staff Reports\2012 Agenda Reports\City Council\02-23-12\5.B. RDA-Council Minutes SR.docx 

Item #: 5.B. 

CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF FEBRUARY 23, 2012 

FROM:  OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK/REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY SECRETARY 

SUBJECT: CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL/REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY MINUTE APPROVAL:  
MINUTES OF THE JOINT REGULAR MEETING OF THE CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL/ 
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF JANUARY 26, 2012

________________________________________________________________________________

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  By motion that the City Council/Redevelopment Agency Directors 
approve the subject minutes as submitted.

DISCUSSION: Attached for City Council/Redevelopment Agency review and approval are the minutes 
to the subject meetings. 

ATTACHMENTS
1. January 26, 2012 Minutes 

Report Prepared By:  Susan Sneddon, CMC 
 City Clerk/RDA Secretary 

       Reviewed and Forwarded by 
          City Manager/Executive Director: _____ 

26



27

12139 
ATTACHMENT 1 

NOT OFFICIAL UNTIL APPROVED BY COUNCIL/RDA DIRECTORS 

CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CITY COUNCIUREDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

MINUTES OF A REGULAR JOINT MEETING 

January 26,2012 
Capitola, California 

5:00 P.M. - CLOSED SESSION - CITY MANAGER'S OFFICE 

CALL TO ORDER 
At 5:00 p.m. in the City Hall Council Chambers, Mayor/Chairperson Termini noted that all 
Council Members/Redevelopment Agency Directors were present. Mayor/Chairperson Termini 
made an announcement regarding the items to be discussed in Closed Session, as follows: 

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 
Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to subdivision (b) of Govt. Code §54956.9: 
Two cases: 1) Noble Gulch Storm Drain Failure in Pacific Cove Mobile Home Park 

2) Pacific Cove Mobile Home Park Flooding and Closure 

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION (Govt. Code §54956.9) 
Kevin Calvert, D.D.S. and Pamela Calvert vs. City of Capitola, et al. [Superior Court of 
the State of California for County of SantaCruz, Case #CV 172804] 

CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR (Govt. Code §54957.6) 
Negotiator: Jamie Goldstein, City Manager 
Employee Organizations: Association of Capitola Employees, Capitola Police Captains, 

Capitola Police Officers Association, Confidential Employees, Mid-Management 
Group, and Department Head Group 

LIABILITY CLAIMS (Govt. Code §54956.95) 
Claimant: William Hoey Morris 
Agency claimed against: City of Capitola 

PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION (Government Code §54957) 
Title: City Manager 

Mayor/Chairperson Termini noted that there was no one in the audience; therefore, the City 
Council/Redevelopment Agency recessed at 5:05 p.m. to the Closed Session in the City 
Manager's Office. 



28

12140 CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL/REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY - JANUARY 26, 2012 

6:00 P.M. - OPEN SESSION 

'REGULAR JOINT MEETING OF THE CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL/REDEVELOPMENT 
AGENCY 

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor/Chairperson Termini called the Regular Joint Meeting of the Capitola City 
Council/Redevelopment Agency to order at 7:00 p.m. on Thursday, January 26, 2012, in 
the City Hall Council Chambers, 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, California. 

1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

PRESENT: 

ABSENT: 
OTHERS: 

STAFF: 

Council Members/Directors Stephanie Harlan, Dennis Norton, Kirby 
Nicol, Sam Storey, and Mayor/Chairperson Michael Termini 
None 
City Treasurer Jacques Bertrand and Interim Redevelopment 
Agency Treasurer Jamie Goldstein 
City Manager/Executive Director Jamie Goldstein, Assistant City 
Attorney/General Counsel Adair Paterno, Interim Community 
Development Director/Deputy Executive Director Susan Westman, 
Public Works Director Steve Jesberg, Interim Finance Director Bill 
Statler, and City Clerk/Secretary Susan Sneddon 

2. PRESENTATIONS (None provided) 

3. REPORT ON GLOSED SESSION [520-25] 

Assistant City Attorney Paterno stated that Council discussed the items listed 
on the Closed Session Agenda. She reported that the City Council had a 
conference with their legal counsel regarding two cases: (1) Noble Gulch Storm 
Drain Failure in Pacific Cove Mobile Home Park; and (2) Pacific Cove Mobile 
Home Park Floodin'g and Closure. No reportable action was taken. The City 
Council had conference with legal counsel regarding existing litigation, entitled 
Kevin Calvert, D.D.S. and Pamela Calvert vs. City of Capitola. Assistant Attorney 
Paterno reported that the City Council provided direction to legal counsel but took 
no reportable action. She stated that the City Council had a conference with their 
labor negotiator and took no reportable action. She also stated that the William 
Hoey Morris vs. City of Capitola liability claim will be considered by the City 
Council on the Consent Agenda in open session this evening. In addition the City 
Council had a public employee performance evaluation of its City Manager with 
no reportable action. 

3. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

A. Additions and Deletions to Agenda (none provided) 



29

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL/REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY - JANUARY 26,2012 12141 

B. Public Comments: 

Marilyn Garrett spoke against the SmartMeters and submitted written 
material for Council. 

Molly Ording, Capital Village Residents' Association (CVRA) 
representative, stated she will provide the CVRA with a report of tonight's 
City Council actions. 

C. Staff Comments (None provided) 

D. City Council/RDA Director/Treasurer Comments/Committee Reports 
(None provided) 

E. Committee Appointments (None provided) 

F. Approval of Check Register Reports 

1. City: Approval of City Check Register Reports dated January 6, 2012, 
and January 13, 2012. [300-10] 

Motion by Council Member Norton, seconded by Council Member 
Storey, to approve the Check Register Reports dated January 6, 2012, 
and January 13, 2012. The motion was unanimously carried. 

2. RDA: Approval of Redevelopment Agency Check Register Report 
dated January 13, 2012. [760-25] 

Motion by Director Norton, seconded by Director Nicol, to approve 
the Redevelopment Agency Check Register Reports dated January 
13, 2012. The motion was unanimously carried. 

5. CONSENT CALENDAR 

A. Deny liability claim of William Hoey Morris in the amount of $1,500 and 
forward to the City's liability insurance carrier. 
Action: Liability Claim denied [Claims Binder]. 

B. City/RDA: Approve minutes of the Regular Joint Meetings of the City 
Council/Redevelopment Agency of November 22, 2011, and December 8, 
2011. 
Action: Minutes were approved. 

C. Receive City Treasurer's Report for Month ended December 31, 2011 
(Unaudited). 
Action: Received and Filed [380-30] 



30

12142 CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL/REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY - JANUARY 26,2012 

5. CONSENT CALENDAR (continued) 

D. Consideration of approval of City's participation in PG&E On-Bill 
Financing Program for retrofit of City-owned streetlights to energy
efficient LED lights. [940-55/500-10 AlC: PG&E] 
Action: (1) Approval of a PG&E Off-Bill Financing Loan Agreement 
authorizing the City's participation in PG&E's On-Bill Financing 

Program; (2) Approval of a PG&E Products and Services Agreement for 
the retrofit of city-owned streetlight to LED lights; and (3) Authorization 
the Public Works Director to sign both agreements on behalf of the City. 

Motion by Council Member/Director Harlan, seconded by Council 
Member/Director Nicol, to approve the Consent Calendar. The motion 
was unanimously carried. 

6. GENERAL GOVERNMENT/PUBLIC HEARINGS 

A. Consideration of concept plans for the skate park and related 
improvements at Monterey Park. [1040-20] 
[NOTE: The City Council received additional materials on this item.] 

Public Works Director Jesberg provided a brief background of this item. He 
stated that in November 2011 staff provided Council with a work plan for the 
development of a skate park at Monterey Park and authorized staff to prepare 
a preliminary plan. He provided a PowerPoint presentation of Dreamland 
Skatepark's concept plans. 

Mark Scott, Dreamland Skateparks, provided an overview of the skate park 
concept plan. 

The following members of the public spoke against the proposed skate park 
at Monterey Park. 

Chris Bowman, 714 Orchid Avenue, Capitola. 

AI Globus, 219 Junipero Court, Capitola. 

Nancy Stucker, Capitola resident. 

Harley Robertson, Soquel Elementary School District Assistant 
Superintendent of Business Services. 

Marilyn Warter, 218 Junipero Court, Capitola. 

Helen Bryce, 722 Orchid Avenue, Capitola. 

Karla Sorensen, Orchid Avenue, Capitola. 

Glenn (no last name provided), Capitola resident. 

David Nazareth, Monterey Avenue, Capitola resident. 

Sandra Wallace, Capitola resident. 

Lisa Steingrube, 701 Monterey Avenue, Capitola 



31

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL/REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY - JANUARY 26, 2012 

6. GENERAL GOVERNMENT/PUBLIC HEARINGS (continued) 

Cheryl Devline, Monterey Avenue, Capitola. 

Bob Mitchell, 710 Orchid Avenue, Capitola. 

12143 

The following members of the public spoke in favor of the proposed skate 
park at Monterey Park. 

Tori Delfavero, Capitola Public Skate Park Treasurer. 

Emily Martin, Capitola resid~nt. 

Kamel Arona, Capitola resident. 

Derek (no last name provided), Santa Cruz County resident. 

Thomas Freel, Santa Cruz County resident. 

Michele Shearer, Capitola resident. 

Danny (no last name provided), Santa Cruz County resident. 

Jason Smedley, Santa Cruz County resident. 

Christy Hadland, Santa Cruz County resident. 

Terry Campion, Santa Cruz County resident. 

Seth (no last name provided), Santa Cruz County resident. 

Shah Tupman, Capitola resident. 

Trisha Proctor, Capitola resident. 

Marie Margarella, Capitola resident. 

Jacques Bertrand, Capitola resident. 

Jason Miller, Santa Cruz resident. 

Travis (no last name provided), Capitola resident. 

Brian (no last name provided), Capitola resident. 

Richard Lippi, Monterey Avenue, Capitola. 

Jake (no last name provided), Capitola resident. 

Jordon (no last name provided), Capitola resident. 

Judi Oyama, Capitola resident. 

Kyle (no last name provided), Capitola resident. 

Kaleb (no last name provided), Capitola resident. 

Kyle Foster, Capitola resident. 

Kevin Skinner, Capitola resident. 

T J Welsh, Capitola resident. 

Evan (no last name provided), Capitola resident. 

Brandon Irwin, Capitola resident. 

Ben and Joe Miller, Capitola residents. 



32

12144 CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL/REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY - JANUARY 26, 2012 

6. GENERAL GOVERNMENT/PUBLIC HEARINGS (continued) 

Timothy Wagner, Wagner Family Trust representative, requested that the 
City Council table this item until there is more extensive public noticing. 

Mayor Termini closed the public comment period for this item. 

City Council discussion ensued regarding this item. 

Council Member Nicol made a motion to redesign the skate park more for used 
by preteens, not to remove the trees, to reduce the proposed park size to a 
maximum of 6,000 square feet, to "soften" the park features so they are safer 
and less noisy, and for the City to commit to the site at Monterey Park. 

Council Member Norton stated that he is in favor of the replacement trees 
because it would provide a better skating bowl with minimal change to the 
contour of the land. He stated that he prefers a 7,OOO-square-foot design. He 
said he would second the motion jf Council Member Nicol removed his motion 
regarding the removal of the trees. 

The motion failed for lack of a second. 

Council Member Harlan stated that it is premature to make a motion on this 
item until further study is completed. She suggested that the organizers of the 
proposed skate park come back to the City with a revised plan. 

Mayor Termini stated that the City needs to provide a skate park for the youth in 
the community, and he is favor of Monterey Park location; however, it may need 
to be reduced in size. He stated the City Council needs to listen to the community 
and their desires; he suggested that more studies take place to address 
intensification issues. 

Motion by Council Member Nicol, seconded by Mayor Termini, to return to 
Council with a revised 6,OOO-square-foot skate park design at Monterey 
Park and to not replace the trees. The motion carried on the following vote: 
A YES: Council Member Norton, Council Member Nicol, and Mayor Termini. 
NOES: Council Member Harlan, and Council Member Storey. ABSENT: 
None. ABSTAIN: None. 

Public Works Director Jesberg stated that the next step is for staff to work with 
the fund raisers, neighbors, and the community regarding Council's proposal; this 
item will come back to Council at a future City Council meeting. 

Mayor Termini called for a ten-minute recess from 9:32 p.m. to 9:42 p.m. 

B. Consideration of a financing plan for the Pacific Cove Mobile Home Park 
closure. [260-1 0/330~1 0] 



33

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL/REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY - JANUARY 26, 2012 12145 

6. GENERAL GOVERNMENT/PUBLIC HEARINGS (continued) 

Interim Finance Director Statler introduced this item. He stated that on January 
12, 2012, Council approved the Relocation Impact Report for the closure of City
owned P.acific Cove Mobile Home Park. He stated the cost of the relocation 
project is estimated at about $2.2 million, including a professional relocation 
consultant to assist residents in locating suitable replacement housing. He stated 
the best option available for funding this project is to spread the one-time cost 
over time; the annual debt service costs are estimated to range between 
$225,000 - $250,000 depending on the terms and interest rate. He reviewed the 
two most likely funding sources; City's Housing Trust Fund (2'50/0) 

and the General Fund (75%). He suggested sending out requests for proposals 
to select a lender in order to obtain the best financing rate. He suggested using 
the City Hall as a capital asset for collateral, or the underlying land with Capitola 
FinanCing Authority (FAC) with the lease-revenue structure. He stated that FAC 
would rent the facility back to the City, and the City's rent payments would be 
equal to the debt service payments. He recommended using professional 
assistance to ensure that the City receives the best market response. He 
recommended the City contract with KNN Public Finance for financial advice and 
assistance with the RFP process, and for bond counsel he suggested Jones Hall. 
He recommended the following: (1) adopt of the draft resolution implementing the 
financing plan for the Park relocation; (2) amend the City's Fiscal Year 
2011/2012 Budget to include $2.375 million in additional revenue from debt 
proceeds and authorize its expenditure pursuant to this financing plan; and (3) 
authorize staff to issue the six-month written notice of termination of tenancy to 
the residents of the Park. 

Council Member Nicol asked about the draft notice of termination to be mailed 
to the Park tenants regarding when they need to vacate. 

City Manager Goldstein responded that this is the required notice under the 
Civil Code Section 798.56(G); state law requires that before you terminate 
someone's tenancy in a mobilehome park, you must approve a Relocation 
Impact Report and provide a notice of termination 180 days in advance. 

Council Member Storey asked for clarification on the type of adjustments 
needed in the Fiscal Year 2012/2013 Budgets. He asked about the possibility of 
delaying this proposal until the City is able to determine the disposition of the 
Park property. He felt the City could apply for a grant that would defray a large 
portion of the expense. 

City Manager Goldstein stated that at this time it is difficult to predict the Fiscal 
Year 2012-2013 Budget; the costs for this proposal will be incorporated in 
various funding options. He listed significant concerns associated with delaying 
this proposal: (1) project timelines; (2) possibility of future flooding; and (3) the 
current condition of the mobilehome park. He stated that most grant programs 
focus primarily around habitat restoration and include long-term 
conditions/restrictions. 



34

12146 CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL/REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY - JANUARY 26,2012 

6. GENERAL GOVERNMENT/PUBLIC HEARINGS (continued) 

Council Member Norton stated that he misspoke at the January 12, 2012, City 
Council meeting regarding the percentage of homeowners sub-renting at the 
Park; ·the correct number is three individuals who are sub-renting. 

Mayor Termini opened the public hearing. 

Ann Schroedel, Pacific Mobile Home Park resident, stated concerns 
regarding the Relocation Impact Report. 

John Hannon, Law Office of John Hannon II, suggested that staff meet with 
residents of the Park to address their concerns prior to approving a financial plan. 

Carol Lerno, Pacific Cove Mobile Home Park, Space 66, suggested delaying 
the implementation of the financial plan until the City deals with the pending 
lawsuits regarding the Park's flooding. 

Nels Westman, Capitola resident, stated that the Park property is unsafe for 
mobile homes, and the City should move forward with the finance plan and the 
Park closure. 

Dr. Jackson, Pacific Cove Mobile Home Park, Space 83, stated that residents 
of the Park need fair compensation in order to relocate. 

Mayor Termini closed the public hearing. 

Council Member Harlan stated that long-term residency was never in the plan. 
She supports the proposed financial plan; however we may be "putting the cart 
before the horse." She wants to know how the City with pay for the Park closure; 
the priority at this time is to have a balanced budget with adequate reserves. 

Council Member Norton stated that $2.4 million is a poor investment to take 
back this property and convert it to bare land. He supports moving forward on the 
proposed financial plan. 

Council Member Storey stated that he supports the Park's closure. His 
concerns regard servicing this debt; the Rispin property is not a likely source of 
revenue to fund this debt. He suggested that staff prepare some preliminary 
Fiscal Year 2012/2013 budget projections. 

Motion by Council Member Nicol, seconded by Council Member Norton, to 
approve the staff recommendations for this item. 

Mayor Termini stated that he is in favor of the Park closure. He asked if the 
Relocation Impact Report consultant is certain that there is sufficient housing 
stock to fulfill the City's obligation for relocating the low-income-household 
tenants. 



35

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL/REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY - JANUARY 26,2012 12147 

6. GENERAL GOVERNMENT/PUBLIC HEARINGS (continued) 

City Manager Goldst~in responded that with Council's approval the City will be 
issuing a six-month written notice of termination of tenancy and approving 
incurring costs related to the financing. He stated that the City could begin 
incurring costs associated with the Park closure within the next several weeks. 

Interim Finance Director Statler stated that one option would be for the City 
Manager to be authorized to accept the best proposal and lender so an interest 
rate can be locked, or form a City Council subcommittee to review the proposals 
and make the final decision on a lender. 

David Brodsly, KNN Public Finance, stated an alternative would be for the City 
Manager to communicate with the City Council regarding the various rates as 
stated in the proposals; it takes approximately one month for the documen"ts to 
be drafted allowing staff time to proceed with the loan. 

City Manager Goldstein recommended that a City Council subcommittee be 
formed to review the different proposals to facilitate the decision making process 
and report back to the City Council. 

Council Member Norton amended the motion for Council Member Nicol and 
Mayor Termini to be on a subcommittee to review the requests for 
proposals. 

Motion by Council Member Nicol, seconded by Council Member Norton, to 
approve the staff recommendations as listed below and amend the motion 
to form a subcommittee comprised of Council Member Nicol 'and Mayor 
Termini along with the City Manager and the Finance Director to give the 
final approval on the lender. 
1. Adopt Resolution No. 3907 implementing the financing plan for the 

Pacific Cove Mobile Home Park relocation; 
2. Amend the Fiscal Year 201112012 budget to include $2.375 million in 

additional revenue from debt proceeds and authorize its expenditure 
pursuant to this financing plan; 

3. Authorize staff to issue the six-month written notice of termination of 
tenancy to the residents of the Pacific Cove Mobile Home Park. 

The motion carried on the following vote: A YES: Council Members Norton, 
Nicol, and Mayor Termini. NOES: Council Member Harlan and Council 
Member Storey. ABSENT: None. ABSTAIN: None. 

c. Consideration of a contract with AutoTemp in an amount not to exceed 
$117,500 for relocation of the Pacific Cove Mobile Home Park residents and 
authorizing the City Manager to execute a contract. [260-10/500-10 Ale: 
AutoTemp] 



36

12148 CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL/REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY - JANUARY 26,2012 

6. GENERAL GOVERNMENT/PUBLIC HEARINGS (continued) 

Housing/Redevelopment Planner Foster provided a brief history of this item. 
He stated that requests for proposals were issued in December 2011; two 
proposals were received, and staff is recommending AutoTemp provide 
relocation services. He stated that there are thirty-six households needing 
relocation assistance over a six-month period. 

Council Member Nicol asked if staff could provide relocation assistance. 

Housing/Redevelopment Planner Foster responded that there is not sufficient 
City staffing to be actively involved with the relocation process. 

Mayor Termini opened this item for public comment. 

Carol Machado Lerno, resident of Pacific Cove Mobile Home Park, 
suggested that the $117,500 for relocation services go to the Park residents 
instead of to the proposed contractor; she also suggested that if the City does 
contract \AJith Auto Temp that a representative from the Park be involved in any 
discussions related to relocation of the residents. 

City Manager Goldstein stated that the primary service provided by the 
relocation consultant is to verify the different benefits that the Park residents are 
entitled to under the Relocation Impact Report and State law. He stated that 
there is an appeal process the residents can undertake if they are not happy with 
the relocation decisions. 

Mayor Termini closed this item for public comment. 

City Manager Goldstein stated that there are multiple reasons for contracting 
for these services: (1) City staff lacks the time to provide the services -over the 
next six months; (2) a portion of these services require specialized skills; and (3) 
these services need to be provided by a company with experience to ensure that 
services are done correctly; he has been advised that the process works better 
using a third party. He stated that staff will help with this process to help reduce 
some of the costs. 

Motion by Council Member Norton, seconded by Council Member Harlan, to 
approve a contract with AutoTemp in an amount not to exceed $117,500 for 
relocation of the Pacific Cove Mobile Home Park residents, and authorizing 
the City Manager to execute a contract. The motion was unanimously 
carried. 

D. Consideration of the following: (1) Adoption of an amended Enforceable 
Obligation Payment Schedule (EOPS); and (2) Ongoing funding for Capitola 
Chamber of Commerce and Santa Cruz County Conference and Visitors 
Council. [760-10/760-25] 
[NOTE: The City Council received additional material on this item recommending 
ongoing funding for Capitola Chamber of Commerce and Santa Cruz County 
Conference and Visitors Council]. 



37

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL/REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY - JANUARY 26,2012 12149 

6. GENERAL GOVERNMENT/PUBLIC HEARINGS (continued) 

Interim Community Services Director Westman introduced this item. She 
stated that pursuant to Assembly Bill 26 redevelopment agencies ar~ to be 
terminated, and the City Council needs to adopt an Enforceable Obligation 
Schedule no later than January 31, 2012. She stated that the City's 
Redevelopment Agency attorney has advised the creation of an extensive list of 
redevelopment funding needs. She stated that staff will need to bring back to 
Council an amended list in February 2012 because of some uncertainties 
regarding interpretation of the law. 

Council Member Storey stated a concern regarding the City's ongoing funding 
to the Capitola Chamber of Commerce and Santa Cruz County Conference and 
Visitors Council (SCCCVC) are on the proposed list. 

Interim Community Services Director Westman stated that staff was advised 
to list both the Capitola Chamber of Commerce and the SCCCVC on the EOPS 
because they have been part of the City's Redevelopment Agency's budget; the 
nevv lavv does not allovv a contract vliith a third party. 

Mayor Termini stated that there appears to be a timing issue because both the 
Capitola Chamber of Commerce and the SCCCVC depend on support from local 
government, and it will take six months to figure out what tasks the Successor 
Oversite Board will be charged with. 

Interim Community Services Director Westman stated that the City will most 
likely not receive funding; however, the City's redevelopment attorney 
recommends that staff list all items on the EOPS. She stated that the City has 
not distributed funds to the Chamber and SCCCVC this fiscal year (both were 
listed in the City's Redevelopment Agency budget); they have not been paid due 
to the uncertainty of the future of the City's Redevelopment Agency. 

Mayor Termini stated that funding the Capitola Chamber of Commerce and the 
SCCCVC will affect the City's Fiscal Year 2011/2011 Budget, and there will be 
similar requests for the Fiscal Year 2012/2013 Budget. 

Motion by Council Member Norton, seconded by Council Member Storey, to 
adopt an amended Enforceable Obligation Payment Schedule (EOPS). 
The motion was unanimously carried. 

Mayor Termini opened the public comment period. 

Maggie Ivy, SCCCVC CEO and Executive Vice President, stated that the City 
has partnered with the SCCCVC for fifteen years. She commented that funding 
received from the Santa Cruz County Tourism Marketing District is restrictive and 
is not meant to replace funding provided by public agencies. 



38

12150 CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL/REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY - JANUARY 26,2012 

6. GENERAL GOVERNMENT/PUBLIC HEARINGS (continued) 

Carin Hanna, Craft Gallery, stated that she 'supports the City's continued 
funding to the SCCCVC. 

Carol Machado Lerno, resident of Pacific Cove Mobile Home Park, stated 
that it only costs the City $62 per day to continue funding the SCCCVC. 

Dan Aspromonte, Best Western and Marriott Fairfield Inn, provided his 
support for the SCCCVC. 

Toni Castro, Capitola/Soquel Chamber of Commerce, thanked the City 
Council for their continued support. She briefly discussed benefits that the 
Chamber provides the City. 

Mayor Termini closed the public comment period for this item. 

Motion by Council Member Harlan, seconded by Council Member Storey, in 
support of the City providing ongoing funding for Capitola Chamber of 
Commerce and Santa Cruz County Conference and Visitors Council. The 
motion was unanimously carried. 

E. Consideration of a staff report analyzing the Finance Advisory Committee 
Report regarding Long-Term City Revenue/Expenditure Projections. [330-
40] 

Mayor Termini stated that the Finance Advisory Committee is not available to 
present this item, so it is being continued to a future Council meeting. 

Council Member Harlan moved, seconded by Council Member Storey, to 
continue this item to a future City Council Agenda when members of the 
Finance Advisory Committee are available. 

F. Consideration of a contract for public opinion polling. [160-50/500-10 AlC: 
City of Santa Cruz/Bregman & Associates or FM3] 

Interim Finance Director Statler provided a brief history of this item. He stated 
that the City needs to ensure long-term fiscal health and service levels; the 
Council may want to explore a revenue ballot measure. He reviewed the steps in 
pursuing a revenue ballot measure, which includes a public opinion survey to 
assess the feasibility. He suggested that if Council wants to consider a measure 
on the November 2012 ballot, they need to move forward with the public opinion 
research so the results are available by March 2012. He stated that the revenue 
concepts that came out of the City Council and the Finance Advisory Committee 
Joint Study Session held in October 2011 included looking at improving the City's 
cost recovery and possibly increasing sales tax and the transient occupancy tax. 
He reviewed the following steps for successful measures: (1) feasibility 
assessment whereby public opinion research and assessments are done; (2) 
educational campaign; and (3) community-based group to campaign for its 



39

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL/REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY - JANUARY 26,2012 12151 

6. GENERAL GOVERNMENT/PUBLIC HEARINGS (continued) 

passage. He suggested that if the City Council wants to conduct public opinion 
research, they could consider a contract with Fairbank, Maslin, Maullin, Metz and 
Associates (FM3), a recognized leader in the field of public opinion polling in 
California. 

City Council discussion ensued regarding various options in conducting 
public opinion polling. 

Mayor Termini opened the public comment period for this item. 

Carin Hanna, Craft Gallery, asked how much a one-quarter-cent increase in 
sales tax would result in annually. (City Manager Goldstein replied that the 
increase would amount to approximately $900,000 per year; possibly $1 million 
per year increase after Target is open). Ms. Hanna stated as a retailer she 
supports an increase in sales tax. 

Dan Aspromonte, Best Western and Marriott Fairfield Inn, expressed 
concerns regarding increasing the TOT. 

Mayor Termini closed the public comment period for this item. 

Council Member Nicol stated that tourists typically do not select their 
destination based on .TOT. He stated that he believes most residents are not in 
favor of any type of tax increase; the community finds that the most popular taxes 
are those that somebody else pays. He stated the last survey indicated that 170/0 
of the sales tax paid in the City was paid by the residents. He stated that 
currently there is Measure "0" (to sunset in year 2017) which is a one-quarter
cent sales tax. He stated it is reasonable to ask the voters to approve an 
additional one-quarter-cent sales tax. He stated that in order for the voters to 
approve a sales tax increase, the City would need to demonstrate that 
expenditures have been reduced and that the City plans to spend the added 
revenue for projects, such as deferred street maintenance. He stated that if the 
City does a sales tax measure, it should be a General Fund Tax because it ·may 
be unlikely that the required 51 % of voters would approve a tax increase. He 
stated that he does not support a TOT increase. In addition, he does not support 
spending $23,000 for a public opinion survey; instead the City can make a case 

. with the mid-year budget report. He asked about the approximate cost to put a 
measure on a ballot (City Manager Goldstein responded approximately 
$5,000). 

City Council discussion ensued regarding this item. 

Council Member Storey made a motion to authorize the City Manager to 
expend $10,000 to complete a public opinion polling with Bregman & Associates 
on the question of a sales tax increase measure for the November 2012 ballot. 

Council Member Harlan seconded the motion with the amendment of including 
public opinion polling for a TOT increase. 



40

12152 CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL/REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY - JANUARY 26,2012 

6. GENERAL GOVERNMENT/PUBLIC HEARINGS (continued) 

Motion by Council Member Storey, seconded by Council Member Harlan, to 
authorize the City Manager to expend $10,000 to complete a public opinion 
polling with Bregman & Associates on the question of a sales tax measure 
for the November 2012 ballot with an amendment to include public opinion 
polling on TOT. The motion failed with the following roll call vote: A YES: 
Council Member Storey and Mayor Termini. NOES: Council Members 
Harlan, Norton, and Nicol ABSENT: None. ABSTAIN: None. 

Motion by Council Member Harlan, seconded by Council Member Norton, to 
authorize the City Manager to enter into a contract with FM3 in the amount 
of $23,000 to conduct public opinion research for both sales tax and TOT 
measures to determine if a revenue ballot measure should be pursued and 
to assess current community perception of City services and to approve an 
amendment to the Fiscal Year 2011/2012 Budget, moving $13,000' from 
Contingency Reserves to Contract Services. The motion carried on the 
following vote: A YES: Council Members Harlan, Norton, and Mayor 
Termini. NOES: Council Members Nicol and Storey. ABSENT: None. 
ABSTAIN: None. 

G. Consideration of increasing the existing half time Building Inspector 
position to a full-time position. [660-10/330-10] 

Motion by Council Member Harlan, seconded by Council Member Norton, to 
approve increasing the existing half-time Building Inspector position to a 
permanent fuJi-time position effective February 5, 2012; and approve a 
budget amendment Resolution No. 3908 increasing expenditures in the 
Green Building Fund by $25,000, reducing the Public Works Contract 
Services by $5,000, increasing the Community Development Department 
revenues' by $25,000 and increasing the Community Development 
Department Personnel costs by $30,000 to cover the increased salary 
expenditures for the remainder of Fiscal Year 201112012 Budget. The 
motion carried on the following vote: A YES: Council Members Harlan, 
Norton, Nicol, and Storey, and Mayor Termini. NOES: None. ABSENT: 
None. ABSTAIN: None. 

7. COUNCIL/RDA DIRECTOR/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 

8. ADJOURNMENT 
Adjourned at 12: 16 a.m. to the next Regular Joint Meeting of the City Council to 
be held on Thursday, February 9,2012, at 7:00 p.m., in the City Hall Council 
Chambers, 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, California. 



R:Agenda Staff Report/2-23-12/City Treasurer Report for Month Ended 1-31-12 

Item #: 5.C.
          

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF FEBRUARY 23, 2012

FROM:        CITY TREASURER 

DATE:          FEBRUARY 14, 2012 

SUBJECT:   TREASURER’S REPORT FOR THE MONTH ENDED JANUARY 31, 2012     
(UNAUDITED)

_________________________________________________________________________________

RECOMMENDED ACTION: By motion, that the City Council accept the City Treasurer’s Report for the  
month ended January 31, 2012 (unaudited) for the City of Capitola. 

BACKGROUND
California Government Code Section 41004 requires that the City Treasurer submit to the City Clerk and 
the legislative body a written report and accounting of all receipts, disbursements, and fund balances. 

The attachment provides various financial data and analysis for the City of Capitola funds, and the State 
Treasurer’s Office (Local Agency Investment Fund) “LAIF” interest rates. 

DISCUSSION - EXECUTIVE SUMMARY AT JANUARY 31, 2012
The City Cash Position at January 31, 2012 totals $3,233,800.  LAIF deposits include $2,557,800 of City 
and Assessment District Funds. The LAIF investment return as of January 31, 2012 was .385%. 

The General Fund Balance Sheet consists of: 
 Total Assets  $2,904,400 (includes Rispin receivable of $1,350,000) 
 Total Liabilities $2,232,300 
 Total Fund Balance     $  672,100 (includes Rispin receivable of $1,350,000) 

 Fund Balance
General Fund 672,100$     
Designated Reserves: 699,700
Capital Improv. Projects 651,600
Special Revenues: 1,209,700
Debt Service 36,500
Internal Services: 1,032,700

  Total 4,302,300$

FISCAL IMPACT: None.

ATTACHMENTS:
1. January 31, 2012 City Treasurer’s Report 
2. LAIF rates 

Report Prepared By:     Reviewed and Forwarded  
Lisa Saldana      By City Manager: ______
Supervising Accountant 

41



 ATTACHMENT 1 

     
         

Treasurer’s Report for Month Ended January 31, 2012 
(UNAUDITED) 

                             
 
BACKGROUND 
 
California government code section 41004 requires that the City Treasurer submit to the City Clerk and 
the legislative body a written report and accounting of all receipts, disbursements, and fund balances.  
Additionally with the passage of Chapter 687, Statutes of 2000 (AB 943 Dutra), effective January 1, 
2001 cities are now required to forward copies of their second and fourth quarter calendar year 
investment portfolio reports to the California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission (CDIAC) within 
60 days.  
 
The CDIAC will use the report as an additional opportunity to examine public investment practices in a 
more consistent basis than before. 
 
Cities, such as the City of Capitola, that are 100 percent invested in the Local Agency Investment Fund 
(LAIF) are exempt from the new investment portfolio reporting requirements and are only required to 
send a letter to CDIAC indicating the total and composition of their investments.  This Treasurer’s 
Report will satisfy our reporting requirement to the CDIAC. 
 
The following pages provide various financial data and analysis for the City of Capitola’s Funds 
collectively as well as specifically for the City’s General (Operating) Fund, with an attachment from the 
State Treasurer’s Office of quarterly LAIF rates from the 1st quarter of 1977 to present. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
The following information is for the month ended January 31, 2012. Such information is unaudited.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 42



Treasurer’s Report for Month Ended January 31, 2012  2 
 
 
  
 
CASH BALANCE BY FUND 
As of January 31, 2012, the LAIF deposits include $2,557,800 of City and Assessment District funds. 
The LAIF investment return as of January 31, 2012 was .385%. The following summarizes the City’s 
total cash balance of $3,233,800 at January 31, 2012 amongst the funds: 
 
                January 31, 2012 
 
General Fund 699,300                  

Special Revenues S L E S F 28,600                    
SCC NARCOTICS ENFORCEMENT TEAM (7,100)                     
GAS TAX 16,900                    
WHARF FUND 76,700                    
DEVELOPMENT FEES FUND 3,400                      
PEG CABLE TV ACCESS FUND 64,500                    
CAPITOLA VILLAGE & WHARF BIA 23,900                    
GREEN BUILDING 91,700                    
PARlING RESERVE FUND (2,600)                     
TECHNOLOGY FEE FUND 20,400                    
CDBG - GRANTS 4,500                      
CDBG PROGRAM INCOME (17,100)                   
CDBG PROGRAM INCOME 07-08 RLF -                              
HOUSING PROGRAM LOAN FUND 3,100                      
HOME GRANT FUND 5,200                      
AFFORDABLE HOUSING TRUST FUND 170,700                  
BEGIN GRANT FUND 60,100                    
PUBLIC ART FUND 398,400                  
OPEN SPACE PURCHASE 300                         
GENERAL PLAN UPDATE 261,200                  

Internal Service
WORKER'S COMPENSATION 58,200                    
SELF INSURANCE 17,900                    
STORES 11,400                    
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 32,300                    
EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT 10,100                    
PUBLIC EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT 270,800                  

Reserves
EMERGENCY RESERVES 151,800                  
CONTINGENCY RESERVES -                              
COMPENSATED ABSENCES 83,000                    

Capital Projects
VARIOUS CAPITAL PROJECTS 657,400                  

Debt Service
DEBT SERVICE FUND 38,800                    

  TOTAL ALL FUNDS 3,233,800              

General Fund 699,300                  
Internal Services 400,700                  
Reserves 234,800                  

1,334,800                 
       
 
 43



Treasurer’s Report for Month Ended January 31, 2012  3 
 
 
 
GENERAL FUND SUMMARY BALANCE SHEET 
 
The following is the General Fund summary balance sheet:  
 

   
 
1   A/R-Intergovernmental is primarily for State Mandated Cost Reimbursements. 
 
2 Fund Balance is segregated for the amounts related to the Rispin Mansion Note Payable to the City 
and amount available. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

General  Fund: Sum mary Balance Sheet 6/30/2011 Incr/Decr 1/31/2012

Cash (240,500)           939,800       699,300       
Prepaid Expenditures 3,700                (2,000)          1,700           
Accounts Receivable 59,300              (36,300)        23,000         
Accounts Receivable - Intergovernmenta l 1 1,179,300         (966,900)       212,400       

Accounts Receivable -  RDA (Risp in) 1,350,000         -               1,350,000    
Short Term Loans - RDA -                    -               -               
Long Term Loans - RDA 618,000            -               618,000       

TOTAL ASSETS 2,969,800$      (65,400)$     2,904,400$  

Accounts Payable 261,200            (202,200)      59,000         
Payro ll Rela ted L iabilities 335,800            (392,300)      (56,500)        
Other Deposits and Other Liabilities 243,800            11,200         255,000       
Deferred Revenue -- RDA 618,000            -               618,000       
Deferred Revenue 368,700            (151,800)       216,900       
Due to Other  Funds -                    1,139,900    1,139,900    

TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,827,500$      404,800$    2,232,300$  

FUND B ALANCE 2

Rispin  Mansion Transaction 1,350,000         -               1,350,000    
Fund Balance Reserves 12,600              -               12,600         
Available  Fund Balance:

Prior Year Fund Balance -                    -                (219,900)      
Current  Year Operating Results -                    (470,600)      (470,600)      

Net, Availab le Fund Balance (219,900)$         (470,600)$    (690,500)$    

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 1,142,300$       (470,600)$    672,100$     

44



Treasurer’s Report for Month Ended January 31, 2012  4 
 
 
 
 
CASH BALANCE & FUND BALANCE 
The following graphs compare the monthly Cash and Fund Balance totals in the consolidated 
General Fund, Internal Service Funds, and Reserves for FY 10/11 and FY 11/12. 
 

0

500,000

1,000,000

1,500,000

2,000,000

2,500,000

3,000,000

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan

Cash Balances 
[Consolidation of General Fund , Internal Services &  

Reserves]

10/11 11/12

 
 
January 31, 2012 Total= $1,334,800: Gen Fund= $699,300, Internal Service= $400,700, Reserves= 
$234,800 
 
 

0 

500,000 

1,000,000 

1,500,000 

2,000,000 

2,500,000 

3,000,000 

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan

Fund Balances 
[Consolidation of Gen Fund (Net Available),  Internal 

Services &  Reserves]

10/11 11/12

 
January 31, 2011 Total= $1,041,900: Gen Fund= ($690,500), Internal Service= $1,032,700, 
Reserves= $699,700 
 45



Treasurer’s Report for Month Ended January 31, 2012  5 
 
 

 
CHANGES IN TOTAL FUND BALANCE 
This table presents the ending Fund Balances for the City’s major fund types.  (It excludes agency funds where 
the City acts merely as a third party custodian of an outside party’s funds.) 
 

46



Treasurer’s Report for Month Ended January 31, 2012  6 

 Beginning 
Fund Balance: 

7/01/11
 Incr/(Decr) 

July-Dec Revenue Expenditure
Interfund 
Transfers

Unaudited 
Fund Balance: 

1/31/12

General Fund: Rispin 1,350,000       -                  -                  -              1,350,000        
General Fund: Reserved 12,600            -                  -                  -              12,600             

General Fund: Available (219,900)        (871,600)        1,268,900       (867,900) -              (690,500)          
. -                 

Designated Reserves: -                  -                 
Emergency Reserves @ 5% 134,700          33,900            0 (16,800) -              151,800           
Compensated Absences 64,700            65,100            0 (46,800) -              83,000             
Contingency Reserves @10% 934,900          (470,000)        0 0 -              464,900         

-                  -                 
Capital Improv. Projects: 1,053,900       (202,700)        0 (199,900) -              651,300           

Open Space Purchase 300                 -                  0 0 300                  

Special Revenues: -                  -                   
Gas Tax -                  1,300              19,700 (12,900) -              8,100               
Law Enforcement Grants 9,900              16,000            4,700 (4,900) 25,700             
PEG Cable TV Access 77,500            (13,100)          100 0 -              64,500             
Capitola & Wharf BIA 5,500              26,600            0 (5,600) 26,500             
Development Fees 2,000              -                  0 0 2,000               
Wharf Fund 46,400            30,000            1,400 (2,300) 75,500             
Green Building 48,700            44,500            0 (1,500) 91,700             
Parking Reserve Fund 180,700          (182,400)        0 (900) -              (2,600)              
Technology Fee Fund 11,300            8,600              500 0 20,400             
CDBG-Grants (Reimburseme (4,100)            26,800            0 (6,400) -              16,300             
CDBG - Program Income (15,500)          (1,400)            0 (200) (17,100)            
CDBG - Prog Inc 07-08 RLF -                  -                  0 0 -                   
HOME Program Re-Use 5,100              (3,100)            1,100 0 -              3,100               
HOME Grant Fund 5,200              -                  97,400 (97,400) 5,200               
Affordable Housing Trust 343,100          (176,400)        4,000 0 170,700           
Begin Grant Fund 60,000            -                  100 0 60,100             
Public Art Program 127,700          270,700          0 0 398,400           
General Plan Maintenance 303,300          64,800            3,800 (110,700) -              261,200           

-                   
Debt Service:POB 252,900          (13,600)          0 (202,800) -              36,500             

Internal Services: -                  -                  -                   
Equipment Replacement 305,900          31,500            0 (2,300) -              335,100           
Information Technology 173,200          16,400            0 (13,000) -              176,600           
Public Employee Retirement 473,700          (240,900)        0 0 -              232,800           
Self-Insurance Liability 277,400          (51,800)          0 (5,900) 219,700           
Stores 14,300            (300)               0 (3,700) -                10,300             
Worker's Compensation 174,800          (233,500)        116,900 0 -              58,200             

-                   
-                   

TOTAL CITY 6,210,200       (1,824,600)     1,518,600     (1,601,900)    -              4,302,300      

 
 
 
General Fund Balance:  Fund Balance is segregated for: the amounts related to the Rispin Mansion 
Note Payable   to the City, the amount reserved for disabled parking, and amount available.  
 

47



Treasurer’s Report for Month Ended January 31, 2012  7 
General Fund Revenues:  For the month ending January 31, 2012, total revenues were $1,268,900 
which included Charges for Services of $412,400 (32%), Sales Tax of $310,200 (24%), and Business 
License of $140,400 (11%). 
 
General Fund Expenditures: For the month ending January 31, 2012, total expenditures were 
$867,900 which includes Staffing for (2) pay periods of $415,000 (47%), Contract Services of 
$279,500 of which $100,700 is for the quarterly 911 JPA, (32%), Internal Service Charge, and 
Supplies of $47,400 (5%). 
 
CDBG Grant Fund: This fund operates on a reimbursement basis. Therefore the balance will be 
negative as expenditures are incurred prior to reimbursement.  
 
Internal Services: During the month of January 2012, $116,900 was transferred from the General 
Fund to the Workers Compensation Internal Service Fund. 
 
 
 
 
Reviewed By: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Jacques Bertrand, City Treasurer 
 
 

48



49

PMIA Average Monthly Effective Yields 

Jan Feb Mar 

1977 5.770 5.660 5.660 

1978 6.920 7.050 7.140 

1979 8.777 8.904 8.820 

1980 10.980 11.251 11.490 

1981 10.987 11.686 11 .130 

1982 11.683 12.044 11.835 

1983 10.251 9.887 9.688 

1984 10.312 10.280 10.382 

1985 10.579 10.28~ 10.11 8 

1986 9.252 9.090 8.958 

1987 7.365 7.157 7.205 

1988 8.078 8.050 7.945 

1989 8.698 8.770 8.870 

1990 8.571 8.538 8.506 

1991 8.164 8.002 7.775 

1992 6.122 5.863 5.680 

1993 4.678 4.649 4.624 

1994 4.359 4.176 4.248 

1995 5.612 5.779 5.934 

1996 5.698 5.643 5.557 

1997 5.583 5.575 5.580 

1998 5.742 5.720 5.680 

1999 5.265 5.210 5.136 

2000 5.760 5.824 5.851 

2001 6.372 6.169 5.976 

2002 3.068 2.967 2.861 

2003 2.103 1.945 1.904 

2004 1.528 1.440 1.474 

2005 2.264 2.368 2.542 

2006 3.955 4.043 4.142 

2007 5.156 5.181 5.214 

2008 4.620 4.161 3.777 

2009 2.046 1.869 1.822 

2010 0.558 0.577 0.547 

201 1 0.538 0.512 0.500 

2012 0.385 

Pooled Money Investment Account 

PMIA Average Monthly Effective Yields 

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct 

5.650 5.760 5.850 5.930 6.050 6.090 6.090 

7.270 7.386 7.569 7.652 7.821 7.871 8.11 0 

9.082 9.046 9.224 9.202 9.528 9.259 9.814 

11.480 12.017 11 .798 10.206 9.870 9.945 10.056 

11.475 12.179 11.442 12.346 12.844 12.059 12.397 

11.773 12.270 11.994 12.235 11 .909 11.151 11.111 

9.868 9.527 9.600 9.879 10.076 10.202 10.182 

10.594 10.843 11.119 11 .355 11.557 11.597 11.681 

10.025 10.180 9.743 9.656 9.417 9.572 9.482 

8.621 8.369 8.225 8.141 7.844 7.512 7.586 

7.044 7.294 7.289 7.464 7.562 7.712 7.825 

7.940 7.815 7.929 8.089 8.245 8.341 8.397 

8.992 9.227 9.204 9.n56 8.833 8.801 8.771 

8.497 8.531 8.538 8.517 8.382 8.333 8.321 

7.666 7.374 7.169 7.098 7.072 6.859 6.719 

5.692 5.379 5.323 5.235 4.958 4.760 4.730 

4.605 4.427 4.554 4.438 4.472 4.430 4.380 

4.333 4.434 4.623 4.823 4.989 5.106 5.243 

5.960 6.008 5.997 5.972 5.910 5.832 5.784 

5.538 5.502 5.548 5.587 5.566 5.601 5.601 

5.612 5.634 5.667 5.679 5.690 5.707 5.705 

5.672 5.673 5.671 5.652 5.652 5.639 5.557 

5.119 5.086 5.095 5.178 5.225 5.274 5.391 

6.014 6.19"0 6.349 6.443 6.505 6.502 6.517 

5.760 5.328 4.958 4.635 4.502 4.288 3.785 

2.845 2.740 2.687 2.714 2.594 2.604 2.487 

1.858 1.769 1.697 1.653 1.632 1.635 1.596 

1.445 1.426 1.469 1.604 1.672 1.771 1.890 

2.724 2.856 2.967 3.083 3.179 3.324 3.458 

4.305 4.563 4.700 4.849 4.946 5.023 5.098 

5.222 5.248 5.250 5.255 5.253 5.231 5.137 

3.400 3.072 2.894 2.787 2.779 2.774 2.709 

1.607 1.530 1.377 1.035 0.925 0.750 0.646 

0.588 0.560 0.528 0.531 0.513 0.500 0.480 

0.588 0.413 0.448 0.381 0.408 . 0.378 0.385 

hltp://www.treasurer.ca.gov/pmia- laiflhistoricalJav~mn_yJds.asp 

Page 2 of2 

ATTACHMENT 2 

Nov Dec 

6.610 6.730 

8.286 8.769 

10.223 10.218 

10.426 10.961 

11 .887 11.484 

10.704 10.401 

10.164 10.227 

11.474 11.024 

9.488 9.371 

7.432 7.439 

8.121 8.071 

8,467 8.563 

8.685 8.645 

8.269 8.279 

6.591 6.318 

4.659 4.647 

4.365 4.384 

5.380 5.528 

5.805 5.748 

5.599 5.574 

5.715 5.744 

5.492 5.374 

5.484 5.639 

6.538 6.535 

3.526 3.261 

2.301 2.201 

1.572 1.545 

2.003 2.134 

3.636 3.808 

5.125 5.1 29 

4.962 4.801 

2.568 2.353 

0.611 0.569 

0.454 0.462 

0.401 0.382 

2/14/2012 



R:\Agenda Staff Reports\2012 Agenda Reports\City Council\02-23-12\5.D. Homeland Security Grant 2012_Report.docx 

Item #: 5.D. 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF FEBRUARY 23, 2012 

FROM:  POLICE DEPARTMENT  

SUBJECT: ADOPT RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A HOMELAND SECURITY GRANT IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $9,910 AND AMENDING THE FY 2011-12 GENERAL FUND OPERATING 
BUDGET BY INCREASING BOTH REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES BY $9,910 

________________________________________________________________________________

RECOMMENDED ACTION: By motion adopt the proposed Resolution Amending the General Fund FY 
2011-12 Operating Budget to Accept Homeland Security Grant Program Funds in the Amount of 
$9,910 and Authorizing Budget Expenditures of $9,910 for the purchase of mobile radios. 

BACKGROUND: The City of Capitola, in conjunction with other public safety and health care agencies 
in Santa Cruz County, applied for and received Homeland Security Grant Program funding for FY 
2011-12.  The City’s share of the Homeland Security Grant Program is $9,910.  Funding for this grant 
is based on each city’s or jurisdiction’s proportion of the total county population.  Funding for this 
Homeland Security Grant is designed to provide financial support to the City to purchase federally 
mandated narrow banded emergency communications equipment.

DISCUSSION: As required by the grant, the Police Department intends to utilize the funds to pay for 
the purchase of narrowband compliant mobile radios.

FISCAL IMPACT: All of the funds from this grant must be used for the purchase of narrowband 
compliant mobile radios for the Police Department.

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Draft Resolution 
2. Letter from County of Santa Cruz OES 
3. Budget Adjustment  

Prepared by:  Tom Held, Police Captain 
    Reviewed and Forwarded 

         By City Manager: ________

50



51

ATTACHMENT 1 
DRAFT 

RESOLUTION NO. 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
AMENDING THE BUDGET TO ACCEPT HOMELAND SECURITY GRANT FUNDS OF 

$9,910 AND AUTHORIZING BUDGET EXPENDITURES OF $9,910 FOR 
THE 2011-2012 FISCAL YEAR 

WHEREAS, the Capitola Police Department is a recipient of a Homeland Security 
Grant; and 

WHEREAS, a budget amendment must be enacted before funds can be accepted and 
expended for their intended and legally mandated purposes. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 
Capitola that the 2011-2012 budget is amended as follows: 

1. Accept $9,910 in Homeland Security Grant funds for fiscal year 2011-2012; 
2. Authorize expenditures of $9,91 0 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Finance Department shall record these 
changes into the City's accounting records in accordance with appropriate accounting' 
practices. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that these grants will be expended pursuant to the 
conditions of the grant program. 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the above and foregoing resolution was passed and 
adopted by the City Council of the City of Capitola at its regular meeting held on the 23rd 
day of February, 2012, by the following vote: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

Michael Termini, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

___________ ,CMC 
Susan Sneddon, City Clerk 



ATTACHMENT 2 

52

COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ 

Chief Mike Card 
Capitola Police Department 
422 Capitola Avenue 
Capitola, CA 950 I 0 

Dear Chief Card , 

OFFICE OF EMERGENCY SERVICES 
495 UPPER PARK ROAD, SANTA CRUZ, CA 95065-212 1 

(831)458-7150 FAX: (831)458-7139 
PAUL HORVAT, DES 

POI< l. {'''r1'( 1/1 If'C 0. $(1111 a-{ ru: t fu, II S 

January 17, 2012 

I' m pleased to inform you that on January 10,2012,2012 the Board of Supervisors accepted the 20 11 
State Homeland Security Grant that allocates a total of $9,9 10 10 the Capito la Police Department for 
Mobi le Rad io Equipment. With this approval , you can proceed with the approved project in accordance 
with your City's financial procedures. 

As with previous grants, thi s grant is funded on a re imbursement basis. Because of the project-based 
allocat ion method that separates the funding sources for each project, it will be necessary to keep your 
records so that charges can be tracked. When request ing reimbursement, please separate your claim by 
project number and funding source within each project. The attached instruction sheet will also provide 
additional information necessary for us to process your re imbursement expedi tious ly. The State is 
instituting tighter moni toring and auditing requi rements and will be reviewing files to assure that all 
requi rements have been met. BeclIlIse of ,It is we are requirill(! tit at reqlles/,f for reimhllr.fement (Iliff 

supporting docllmentation be submitted to 0111" office ill PDF form ill at/t/itionto Ital"d copy. 

Submit your reimbursement requests along with documentation of your expenses to Carol Johnson at 
70 1 Ocean Street, Room 330 Santa Cruz, CA 96060, who will submit reimbursement requests to the 
State. As soon as cash is received from the State, the County will process the payment to the Capitola 
Police Department. As you know, our experience with State reimbursements is that it can take as long as 
three or four months before cash is actually received. 

Thanks for all your help in bringing thi s project togetJler. As always, if there's any way in which I can 
assist your office in meeting the grant requirements, please let me know. 

Sincerely, 

Paul I larval 
Emergency Services Manager 

Attachment: 01 / 10/ 12 Board of Supervisors Agenda Item Letter 
11 / 171J2 Cal EMA Letter - Approval of Grant #20 11 -S5-0077, Cal EMA ID#087-00000 



ATTACHMENT 3 

53

Administrative 

Counci l 

City of Capitola Budget Adjustment Form 

'AccoOnt!#" 'lVi' '{" --,' .,- _ ..... , .;--.' >.~,.", ~ AecountDe,scrililionWP}t iWinJ.lncrEii!i§eIIDecYe,,,{,j." x 

1 000-20-20-000-331 0.1 00 Federal Grant Revenue 9910 
1000-20-20:000-4450.100 Grant Funded Supplies 9910 

Net Change 19820 

Comments: Adjust the FY12 budget for Acceptance of 2011-12 
Homeland Security Grant 

Department Head Approval ____________________ _ 

City Manager Approval 

Council date (if applicable) _____ ~_~2"'1=23"'1";2;:_01~2 
Item # 5.D. 

2117/20122:56 PM 5.0 . Attachment 1 Budget AdjustmentGeneral Fund 



R:\Agenda Staff Reports\2012 Agenda Reports\City Council\02-23-12\5.E. Smartmeter Opt-out Fee Objection Letter to 
CPUC_Report.docx 

          Item #: 5.E. 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
MEETING OF FEBRUARY 23, 2012 

 
 

FROM:  DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

SUBJECT: DRAFT LETTER TO CALIFORNIA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION 
 REGARDING FEES FOR THE SMARTMETER OPT-OUT PROGRAM 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: By motion authorize and direct the Mayor to send the attached letter 
to the California Public Utilities Commission regarding the imposition of fees include in the PG&E 
Smartmeter opt-out program. 
 
BACKGROUND:  On February 9, 2012 the City Council directed staff to prepare a letter for the 
Mayor’s signature to the California Public Utilities Commission object to the fees included in the 
PG&E Smartmeter opt-out program.   
 
DISCUSSION: A draft letter is included as an attachment for council consideration.  If approved the 
letter will be signed and sent. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

1. Draft letter 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Report Prepared By:   Steven Jesberg 
      Public Works Director 
         Reviewed and Forwarded 
           By City Manager:   ________ 

54



55

<date> 

Michael R. Peevey, President 
California Public Utilities Commission 
505 Van Ness Avenue 
San Francisco, CA 94102 

DRAFT 

Subject: PG&E Smartmeter Opt-out Program 

Dear Mr. Peevey; 

ATTACHMENT 1 
420 CAPITOLA AVENUE 

CAPITOLA , CALIFORN I A 95010 

TELEPHONE (831 ) 475-7300 

FAX ( 831) 479·8879 

Since the inception of the PG&E Smartmeter program the City of Capitola has strongly 
supported the implementation aran opt-Ollt plan for those customers who prefer to be serv ice by 
analog meters. The reasons for an individual to select to opt-out vary from invasion of privacy to 
hea lth concerns. The City Council for the City of Capi tola was delighted that the California 
Public Utilities Commission finally adopted an opt-out program earlier thi s month. 

However, the City Council fo r the City of Capitola strongly objects to the imposition of fees 
included in the program. Req ui ring customers to pay a $75 set up fee fo r a meter they never 
wanted, and in some cases asked to have the installation delayed seems outrageous. In addition, 
unless a service fee reduction equal to the $10 monthly fee was approved for those with a 
Smartmeter, the monthly fee also is out-of - li ne. 

The City Council fo r the City of Capitola believes a free opt-out program should have been 
included in the Smartmctcr program from the beginning, and the customers should not have to 
pay now for the California Public Utilities Commission and PG&E failure to do so. It is now up 
to your agency to provide the proper direction to PG&E and provide a program that meets the 
demands of public. 

Sincerely, 

Michael Tennini 
Mayor 



R:\Agenda Staff Reports\2012 Agenda Reports\City Council\02-23-12\6.A. Community Grants Funding Restoration_report.docx

Item #: 6.A. 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF FEBRUARY 23, 2012 

FROM:  CITY MANAGER’S DEPARTMENT 

SUBJECT: COMMUNITY GRANT PROGRAM FUNDING FOR FY11-12 
_______________________________________________________________________________

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Determine if the remaining $137,000 of funding for the FY11-12 
Community Grants should be allocated.

BACKGROUND:  In prior fiscal years, $275,000 was allocated to grantees in the City’s Community 
Grant program. This year the City withheld 50% of that allocation pending the reimbursement of at 
least $500,000 for damages relating to the failed storm drain pipe in the Pacific Cove Mobile Home 
Park (Park). To date, no reimbursements have been received.  The City’s insurance provider has 
denied coverage, and state and Federal reimbursements will not occur.  The City has retained the law 
firm of Gumbiner & Eskridge in an attempt to recover funds from the City’s insurance carrier. 

DISCUSSION: During the FY11-12 budget deliberations, City Council allocated $337,000 to the City’s 
reserve funds, which were under funded by approximately $1.6 million due to the City’s disaster 
response.  The funding for the reserve funds came from $200,000 (CIP) and 50% of the Community 
Grant funding ($137,000).

If City Council would like to fund the remaining $137,000 to the Community Grants there are several 
options as listed below, none of which are from the current fiscal year general fund revenue, as there 
are no available funds. 

1. Reserve Fund: this would bring the combined Emergency & Contingency Reserve year end 
fund balance down to $380,000.  This is utilizing one-time funding for an ongoing expense and 
would bring the Reserve Fund deficit to $1.4 million.

2. Equipment Reserve Fund: There is an estimated fund balance of $300,000 in the Equipment 
Reserve.  This is also a one-time funding source. The primary impact would be to the deferred 
replacement of old police and public works vehicles, resulting in increased repair costs.

In either case, the City Council needs to be aware the City may be faced with additional unanticipated 
expenditures in the coming months.  The dissolution of the Redevelopment Agency has both one-time 
and on-going impacts that are impossible to predict today, and could result in significant impacts to 
future City budgets.

FISCAL IMPACT:  To fully fund the Community Grant program, an additional $137,000 would need to 
be allocated from one of the identified funds. Staff does not recommend funding the remaining amount 
until the City receives reimbursement from the City’s insurance company for damages incurred from 
the disaster in March 2011.

Report Prepared By:  Lisa G. Murphy      
    Administrative Services Director      

Reviewed and Forwarded 
         By City Manager: ________

56



R:\Agenda Staff Reports\2012 Agenda Reports\City Council\02-23-12\6.B. Long Range Fiscal Strategy Report - Continued.docx

          Item #: 6.B. 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF FEBRUARY 23, 2012 

FROM:  CITY MANAGER AND FINANCE DEPARTMENTS 

SUBJECT: LONG RANGE FISCAL STRATEGY FOLLOW-UP  
(CONTINUED FROM JANUARY 26, 2012) 

BACKGROUND: This item was on the Agenda for the January 26, 2012 City Council meeting.  As 
representatives from the Financial Advisory Committee (FAC) were unable to attend the meeting 
that evening, City Council continued the item to a future hearing date when FAC representatives 
could be present.  Christine Buechting, FAC Chairperson, has indicated she will attend the 
February 23, 2012 Council meeting and be available to answer questions and offer a short 
presentation in response to the staff report. 

Attached is the complete City Council Agenda Report for the Meeting of January 26, 2012.  There 
is no new information for this item.  

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Agenda Report for January 26, 2012 

Report Prepared By:  Tori Hannah
  Finance Director 

        Reviewed and Forwarded 
           By City Manager:    ________ 

57



CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF JANUARY 26, 2012 

FROM:   CITY MANAGER AND FINANCE DEPARTMENTS 

SUBJECT: LONG RANGE FISCAL STRATEGY FOLLOW-UP 
______________________________________________________________________________

RECOMMENDED ACTION: That the City Council:

1. Continue to closely evaluate and implement cost saving opportunities during the 
upcoming Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) negotiations with the employee 
groups and future budgeting cycles. 

2. Prepare a “benchmark study” using existing in-house resources to assess the City’s 
fiscal accountability and answer the question: “is the City wisely using the resources it 
already has?” 

3. Develop user fee cost recovery policy, analyze key revenues and make 
recommendations for changes, as appropriate, as part of the 2012-13 Budget process. 

DISCUSSION:
This report is in follow-up to the joint Council/Finance Advisory Committee (FAC) study session 
held on October 12, 2011, which considered the FAC’s report to the Council on long-term fiscal 
issues.  Based on the discussion from that meeting, this report addresses three key questions: 
� Is the FAC’s determination of the long-term “budget gap” accurate?  

� Is the “gap” a problem of revenues that are too low or expenditures that are too high?  (Or 
some combination of the two?)  How can we best assess if the City is effectively using 
existing resources? 

� What are the action steps needed to address the long-term gap and create fiscal 
sustainability? 

It should be stressed that this report is staff’s response to the FAC’s report.  This report does 
not diminish or change any of the FAC recommendations.  It is not intended to define the City’s 
policy response to a long term funding gap, but rather lay out options and alternatives the City 
may wish to consider. 

Short-Term Versus Long Term Challenges Facing the City 
It is important to stress that the City has a balanced budget.  Under the two-year budget 
adopted by the Council for 2011-13, General Fund sources cover outlays.  However, this was 
achieved through budget reductions (and related service level reductions in most cases), 
including the following: 

� Reducing funding for capital improvement plan (CIP) and pavement management projects 
(one time).  This has resulted in a decrease in the pavement quality throughout the City, and 
deferred the implementation of a number of important infrastructure projects.  

ATTACHMENT 1 

58



1-26-12 AGENDA REPORT: Long Range Fiscal Strategy Follow-Up 2 

R:\Agenda Staff Reports\2012 Agenda Reports\City Council\02-23-12\6.B. Long Range Fiscal Strategy_Report Follow-up.docx

� Eliminating Planner and Finance Technician positions (ongoing). 

� Holding Police Captain, Finance Director (and now Community Development Director), two 
Public Works crew, Community Service Officer, one Records Clerk positions vacant (one-
time).

� Reclassifying Building Inspector and Public Works Maintenance Crew positions, resulting in 
the establishment of true entry level positions and a salary savings to the City (ongoing). 

� Reducing overall contract expenditures by over $300,000 through renegotiations or 
consolidation of responsibilities (ongoing). 

� Eliminating the Paid Officer Reserve Program (ongoing). 

While the City’s budget is fiscally balanced, that does not mean it is balanced from a service 
perspective.  As reflected above, achieving a balanced budget has required service and CIP 
reductions that may not serve the community well in the longer term.         

Accordingly, the challenge facing the City at this point is not about balancing this year’s budget: 
the City has a strong tradition of making the tough fiscal decisions needed to ensure a balanced 
budget.  The City has always adopted a balanced budget, and will continue to do so in the 
future.  The question is: does the City budget appropriately provide for desired service levels, 
capital improvements and appropriate provisions for the future needs of the City.  Are the 
reduced service levels acceptable for the community in the long run? 

Stated simply, the long-term challenge facing the City is not solely a fiscal one; but rather, the 
challenge is determining if the current day-to-day services and facility/infrastructure 
maintenance and improvements are the level the community wants – and is willing to pay for.  In 
short, what kind of community does Capitola want to be? 

Defining the Long-Term Gap: 

In its October 12 presentation to the Council, the FAC defined two kinds of fiscal challenges 
facing the City: 

� One-time needs to restore the contingency reserve and fund relocation of the Pacific Cove 
mobile home park, and  

� The need to fund ongoing service levels and important CIP projects. 

The following table summarizes both of these, with one-time needs of $3.7 million and a long-
term gap ranging between $1.8 to $2.8 million annually in addressing “unfunded” needs: 

59



1-26-12 AGENDA REPORT: Long Range Fiscal Strategy Follow-Up 3 

R:\Agenda Staff Reports\2012 Agenda Reports\City Council\02-23-12\6.B. Long Range Fiscal Strategy_Report Follow-up.docx

    

This conclusion assumes the revenue and expenditure snapshot in the 2011-13 Budget remains 
about the same into the future, and the only variables are those identified above.   

However, what if future costs outpace projected revenues and the underlying gap grows larger?  
On the other hand, what if revenues grow faster than costs?  In this case, perhaps an improving 
revenue outlook alone will close most, if not all, of the gap.  The FAC’s approach, which staff 
concurs with, was that it would be inappropriate to only rely on a strategy that “hopes” future 
revenue alone will grow the City out of the problem.      

In many cities, identifying the long-term gap is achieved by preparing a multi-year forecast 
(covering five to ten years), where future revenues and costs are projected based on individual 
assumptions for key drivers.  Along with assessing the longer-term impacts of short-term budget 
decisions, a five or ten year fiscal forecast can help most local governments better manage 
long-term fiscal sustainability.  For those agencies that have prepared longer-term forecasts and 
follow-on financial plans, this did not magically make their fiscal problems disappear: they still 
had tough decisions to make.   
           
However, due to its unique circumstances outlined below, the City may be able to assess its 
longer General Fund fiscal challenges using the second year of the 2011-13 Budget as the 
baseline (which was the FAC’s approach in defining the problem), and avoid dedicating the 
significant resources needed to prepare a long-term fiscal forecast.            

� Operating cost drivers.  Most cities, the projection for significant increases in their required 
contributions to the California Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS) is the single 
largest future cost driver.  However, in Capitola’s case, contribution rates are “capped:" 
under existing employee agreements, any increases in employer contribution rates are the 
employee’s responsibility. 

This provides the City with structural cost containment on a major cost element that most 
other cities simply do not have.  And in terms of key drivers, this removes a significant cost 
increase factor from the forecast that other cities would need to consider.  For all other 
operating costs, it is likely that a multi-year forecast would assume cost increases similar to 
increases in the consumer price index (CPI) – about 2% annually based on past trends.                    

Long-Term Funding Gap
One Time 

Restore Contingency Reserve 1,500,000      
Pacific Cove Relocation 2,200,000      
Total One-Time 3,700,000    

Ongoing (Annual)
Deferred Operating Expenses 850,000         
Pavement Management 450,000         
Measure D/RDA/Bond Expiration 500,000         

Total Operating 1,800,000   
Annual Reserve for Unfunded CIP
(About $25 million in identified projects) 1,000,000   
Total Ongoing (Annual) $2,800,000

60



1-26-12 AGENDA REPORT: Long Range Fiscal Strategy Follow-Up 4 

R:\Agenda Staff Reports\2012 Agenda Reports\City Council\02-23-12\6.B. Long Range Fiscal Strategy_Report Follow-up.docx

� Key revenues.  The second year of the 2011-13 Budget already reflects stronger sales tax 
revenues from Target and the improved transient occupancy tax (TOT) revenues resulting 
from the opening of the Fairfield Suites.  This second-year baseline for these two top 
General Fund revenue sources is likely to be the assumption for future years in the forecast, 
growing modestly by a factor similar to increases in the CPI.  Lastly, while property tax 
revenues - the City’s other top General Fund revenue source - will probably increase in the 
future, they are likely to rise modestly, in close alignment with the 2% annual increase 
allowed under Proposition 13.  In short, growth in key revenues is likely to closely mirror 
increases in operating costs.  

In summary, due to existing CalPERS cost containment and the key revenue assumptions 
already assumed in the 2012-13 base, a longer-term forecast is likely to simply reflect the 
existing situation.  Accordingly, while preparing a long-term fiscal forecast is often an essential 
step in defining the long-term “gap,” this may not be necessary for the City.  In the simplest 
terms, staff suggests the FAC’s determination of the long term budget gap is probably as 
accurate an assessment as can be reasonably obtained, and should be used for this process.              

Is the Gap a Revenue or Expenditure Problem?  
The FAC’s report to the Council identified both expenditure reduction as revenue increase 
options, wisely recognizing that before asking Council members to raise fees and asking voters 
to support tax increases, the City first needs to demonstrate that services are currently being 
provided in a cost-effective manner.  There are typically three ways of demonstrating this: 

� Comprehensive organizational analysis 
� Compensation study 
� Benchmark analysis 

Comprehensive Organizational Analysis 
Under this approach, most cities contract with an independent consulting firm that specializes in 
comprehensively evaluating the effectiveness and efficiency of an agency’s organization and 
service delivery methods, policies, systems and procedures; and then making recommendations 
for improvement as appropriate.  These assessments often include an evaluation of the City’s 
budget process, which would directly respond to one the FAC’s top recommendations for a 
“bottom-up budgeting process.” 

While used by many cities in developing and implementing long-term cost reduction and service 
improvement plans, these types of reviews take a long time to prepare, and if comprehensive in 
their scope, can be very expensive to prepare.  The City of Santa Cruz recently completed such 
a study, at a cost of $90,000 with Avery and Associates. 

On the other hand, this type of analysis may be prepared within-house resources; however, 
there are three drawbacks to this approach: 

� Staff resource limits.  Existing staff resources, especially in light of recent reductions, 
vacancies and frozen positions, are dedicated to providing day-to-day services.  It would be 
extremely difficult to reallocate limited staff resources to this effort.  Given its intensive, “one-
time” nature, this type of special project is usually best performed by outside resources. 

� Objective, third party view.  Agencies embarking on this type of review typically want an 
outside, independent view of its operations.  Real or perceived, current agency staff may too 
wedded to the “way we’ve always done it” to provide an objective assessments of current 
practices and opportunities for review.  

61



1-26-12 AGENDA REPORT: Long Range Fiscal Strategy Follow-Up 5 

R:\Agenda Staff Reports\2012 Agenda Reports\City Council\02-23-12\6.B. Long Range Fiscal Strategy_Report Follow-up.docx

� Expertise.  Firms specializing in this type of analysis bring a depth of experience and “best 
practice” knowledge to the review. 

Given the time and cost involved – either in staff or consultant resources – combined with the 
nearly continuous effort by the entire City organization over the past three years in identifying 
cost reduction strategies and improving operations, we do not recommend pursuing this 
approach at this time.  Rather, staff recommends continuing to utilize the annual budget process 
and MOU updates with the employee groups to implement the FAC recommendations. 

Compensation Study 
The FAC recommended the City undertake a comprehensive “benchmark” analysis of employee 
compensation.  This recognizes that in a service organization like the City, where most key 
services – like police protection – are delivered by City staff, employee compensation is large 
factor in determining ongoing operating costs.  And as such, ensuring compensation levels are 
sufficient to retain and attract qualified employees while at the same time are not excessive and 
are in-line with the market, is essential in ensuring reasonable costs that are commensurate 
with the value received. 

One approach to this is to conduct a comprehensive compensation study, which may include 
private sector benchmarks.  However, like the comprehensive organizational study approach 
discussed above, this takes time and can be expensive to prepare.  Moreover, given the 
CalPERS cost containment already in place, there is the risk of unintended consequences in 
undertaking this type of analysis.      

Accordingly, we do not recommend taking this approach.  Instead, as noted in the City 
Manager’s joint study session report, current agreements with the various employee groups will 
expire at the end of June 2012.  That negotiation process will be an opportunity to work 
cooperatively with the various groups to find solutions to fiscal issues, and ensure that the City’s 
compensation programs are appropriate.  

Lastly, as noted above, the City has in place significant cost containment as its compensation 
“baseline” compared with most other cities in the State and nation: the City’s CalPERS 
employer contribution rates are capped and any increases are the employee’s responsibility.  
An alternative approach, which is outlined below, is to include key compensation factors as part 
of a “benchmark analysis.” 

Benchmark Analysis 
The third approach is to “benchmark” the City’s costs, revenues and service outcomes with 
similar cities: in short, using benchmarks to assess the City’s fiscal accountability, and as a 
management strategy to find opportunities to improve organizational efficiencies. 

Though true “apples-to-apples” benchmark comparisons between cities (there are over 480 of 
them in the State) are probably not possible, it is possible to discern meaningful trends and 
develop valuable data by developing a thoughtful benchmarking study.  

The key to making effective comparisons between cities is to find the right common 
denominator.  In doing so, simple per capita comparisons are tempting.  However, the fact is 
that every city faces different challenges due to a wide variety of factors, including: 

� Service level expectations 
� Daytime versus resident service population 
� Fiscal constraints 
� Community demographics 

62



1-26-12 AGENDA REPORT: Long Range Fiscal Strategy Follow-Up 6 

R:\Agenda Staff Reports\2012 Agenda Reports\City Council\02-23-12\6.B. Long Range Fiscal Strategy_Report Follow-up.docx

� Scope services (full service or contract city?) 
� And not least, geography 

For example, San Luis Obispo has higher than average fire costs largely due to geography in 
meeting minimum response times.  Between mountains, freeways and railroad tracks – and the 
access limitations they create – San Luis Obispo needs four fire stations to meet its four-minute 
response time goal.  Other communities with a similar population size but less challenging 
geography might be able to meet a similar standard with fewer stations – and thus lower costs. 

Similarly, per capita street maintenance costs in South Lake Tahoe – which include snow 
removal – are likely to be much higher than another  similar-sized city.    

Mitigating the pitfalls.  While imperfect, in the real world, “per capita” is the most workable 
common denominator.  Accordingly, avoiding these pitfalls and making meaningful per capita 
comparisons requires carefully selecting the benchmark cities to ensure they represent as close 
a possible match as possible, understanding a “perfect” match is impossible.  This means that 
along with making comparisons of key benchmarks such as comparably size cities, it is 
important to select cities that share other important service, economic, geographic and 
demographic characteristics as well.  Additionally, to avoid a “race to the bottom,” comparison 
cities should also be selected that have a reputation for being well-managed and leaders in the 
use of “best practices.”  

After selecting comparison cities, it is also important to carefully select the benchmarks.  On one 
hand, they need to be data points that can be reliably gathered and measured (such as data 
from budgets and annual financial reports).  On the other hand, they need to measure 
something meaningful.  Areas likely to be covered in effective benchmark studies include: 

� How does the City compare financially with similar cities?  (Such as key revenues per 
capita, operating costs per capita, debt service per capita, staffing per capita; and as noted 
above, key employee compensation benchmarks)       

� How do “service outcomes” compare with similar cities?  (Service costs are one thing; value 
for cost – service outcomes – is another.) 

� How have City workloads and staffing changed over time? 

� And has the City adopted and implemented the use of “best practices” in wisely managing 
the public resources that have been entrusted to it 

When carefully prepared, benchmark analysis can be a powerful tool in assessing the fiscal 
performance of city – either good or bad.  Where benchmark results show that a city compares 
favorably with others, then reasonable assurance can be provided that the city is managing its 
fiscal affairs effectively.  Where this is not the case, then areas for improvement can be 
identified and changes made. 

An example of a benchmark study prepared by the City of San Luis is available on its web site 
at: http://slocity.org/finance/download/benchmark-report06.pdf.  As reflected in the headline 
below, the results of the study were widely (and favorably) reported by the local media; and 
were helpful in providing an analytical basis on the cost side for a subsequent general purpose, 
½-cent sales tax measure, which was adopted in November 2006 with 65% voter approval.         

63



1-26-12 AGENDA REPORT: Long Range Fiscal Strategy Follow-Up 7 

R:\Agenda Staff Reports\2012 Agenda Reports\City Council\02-23-12\6.B. Long Range Fiscal Strategy_Report Follow-up.docx

Compared with other the other two options, staff recommends that preparing a benchmark study 
is a cost-effective approach in answering the question: is the City wisely using the resources it 
already has?  This work can be completed with existing in-house resources with a target 
completion date of March 2012.  

Service Priorities 
All three of these approaches (organizational analysis, compensation study and benchmarking) 
focus on the effective and efficient delivery of services.  However, none of them directly 
addresses the question of service priorities: in short, even if it is provided effectively and 
efficiently, does the service meet an important community goal?  Virtually every government 
program had its roots in meeting an important need at some point.  However, over time the 
need it addressed may no longer be the case; or its priority relative to new needs that have 
surfaced since its inception may be much lower.  Stated simply, there is no “magic” bullet for 
assessing service priorities.  Staff believes that the best approach to this is ongoing review of 
services and programs via the budget process.    

Capital Improvements 
A key component of the FAC’s definition of the gap facing the City is $1.0 million in annual 
funding for capital improvements, plus an additional $450,000 annually for pavement 
management.  One suggestion that surfaced from the joint Council/FAC study session is the 
need to more clearly identify the long term capital improvement priorities in considering revenue 
increases.  Staff does not recommend taking this approach for several reasons: 

� Two of the key revenue proposals (extending the Measure D ¼-cent sales tax and 
increasing the transient occupancy tax) surfaced by the FAC are for a general purpose 
revenue ballot measure.  Specifying projects is more appropriate for a special purpose tax 
measure.

� Second, over the course of time necessary to implement these projects, the City’s priorities 
will change.  New projects will be identified, and other projects may become obsolete prior 
to implementation.  That said, it may still be important to develop an inclusive list of current 
projects under consideration should voter consideration of new revenue concepts be 
required, but staff recommends against trying to firmly pin those projects down at this point. 

� Three, given the changing nature of fiscal circumstances, it is important to retain flexibility in 
prudently responding to new priorities.  As past experience has shown, the fiscal challenges 
facing the City are subject to change over time, such as the worst recession since the Great 
Depression, which was not on the City’s radar (or anyone else’s, for that matter) in 2007.  

64



1-26-12 AGENDA REPORT: Long Range Fiscal Strategy Follow-Up 8 

R:\Agenda Staff Reports\2012 Agenda Reports\City Council\02-23-12\6.B. Long Range Fiscal Strategy_Report Follow-up.docx

And fortunately, because Measure D was a general purpose measure, the Council was able 
to respond flexibility in responding to revenue downturns.   

� Last, in ensuring adequate maintenance of existing facilities and creating the fiscal capacity 
to respond to community needs for new ones, it may be appropriate to set policy targets for 
the amount of revenues that should be set aside for this purpose, such as 10% of General 
Fund revenues.  This would establish a general policy framework for balancing day-to-day 
services such as police protection with the need to adequately maintain infrastructure such 
as streets, storm sewers, street lighting, landscaped areas and public facilities.  In this case, 
the $1 million identified by the FAC (or $1.5 million including paving) is close to this 10% 
benchmark.

New Revenues 
As discussed above, while the City needs to remain vigilant in containing expenditures and in 
ensuring value-for-costs, staff believes that expenditure-side ideas surfaced by the FAC are 
best addressed through the City’s ongoing budget and labor negotiations process.  The 
exception to this is the recommended benchmark study.  This leaves the revenue side of the 
budget-balancing equation for further consideration. 

New revenues can be raised in three basic ways: 

� Economic development: grow the underlying economy and improve the tax base, thus 
producing more revenues with the same (or lower) tax rates.     

� Improved cost recovery through service charges and opportunities to use City assets for 
greater revenue gain (such as property leases or sales). 

� New or increased taxes. 

The FAC’s top revenue recommendations reflect all three of these.  The top “new revenue” 
ideas supported by the FAC fall into the economic development category: 

Economic Development Concept Estimated Annual Revenues  
Additional retail business $100,000 
Additional hotels $500,000 to $1,000,000 
Additional events (clambake)            $1,000 to $10,000 
Annex areas in sphere of influence Unknown 

As discussed in the City Manager’s October 12 joint report to the Council and FAC, improving 
the economic base for retail and hotel sales – the areas surfaced by the FAC with the greatest 
revenue potential – is largely driven by market factors that are beyond the City’s control.   

Moreover, in the case of expanding hotel rooms, while the City does have private-public 
partnership opportunities, past experience both in Capitola and other communities shows these 
are complex undertakings, require long-term timeframes to achieve, and the outcome is far from 
certain. 

In the case of the last two economic development concepts, the opportunity to consider 
additional special events as revenue-raisers is always available for consideration on a case-by-
case basis as sponsoring organizations present them to the City; and as recommended by the 
City Manager in his joint report to the Council and FAC, while there may be positive impacts 
associated with annexation, this issue is best addressed as part of the General Plan update.  

65



1-26-12 AGENDA REPORT: Long Range Fiscal Strategy Follow-Up 9 

R:\Agenda Staff Reports\2012 Agenda Reports\City Council\02-23-12\6.B. Long Range Fiscal Strategy_Report Follow-up.docx

This leaves new or increased revenues as one of the few options for measurable, long-term 
budget balancers, over which the City has (some) direct control. 

The following summarizes the new or increased revenue options available to cities in California 
(many of which were considered by the FAC) along with their approval requirements.  As 
reflected below, virtually all the options that have significant revenue-raising ability require voter 
approval: majority approval in for general purpose revenues and two-thirds for special purposes.  

Required Approval: New or Increased Revenues

As reflected above, in a post-Proposition 218 world, there are few discretionary revenue 
decisions available to local government elected officials.  The most significant of these is 
determining user fees: in short, what services are funded by fees and which ones are funded by 
general purpose taxes? 

Based on the Council and FAC discussion at the joint meeting, three revenue concepts 
emerged as candidates for further consideration: 

� Improve Cost Recovery: $85,000 

Increase recreation fees by 10% ($75,000); increase other city fees ($5,000); improve 
accident recovery ($5,000) 

� Extend Measure D Sales Tax: $900,000 

� Increase Transient Occupancy Tax (TOT) rate from 10% to 12%-14%: $200,000 to 
$400,000

It should be noted these revenue concepts together generate about $1.4 million annually ($1.6 
million if the TOT rate is set at 14%).  This is only about half of the gap $2.8 million gap.  
Accordingly, in coming closer to closing this gap, the City may also want to discuss the 

Council Majority Two-Thirds
Sales Tax General purpose Special purpose
Transient Occupancy Tax General purpose Special purpose
Property Transfer Tax (charter cities only) General purpose Special purpose
Business Tax General purpose Special purpose
General Obligation Bond x
Parcel Tax x
Utility Users Tax General purpose Special purpose
Admissions Tax General purpose Special purpose
Parking Tax General purpose Special purpose
Excise Tax General purpose Special purpose
Maintenance Assessments x
Mello-Roos: Existing Development x
Mello-Roos: New Development **
Development Impact Fees x
Use of Property/Assets x
Higher Cost Recovery x
Franchise Fees x
Donations/Partnerships x
Fines x

Voter

66



1-26-12 AGENDA REPORT: Long Range Fiscal Strategy Follow-Up 10 

R:\Agenda Staff Reports\2012 Agenda Reports\City Council\02-23-12\6.B. Long Range Fiscal Strategy_Report Follow-up.docx

implications of setting the City’s sales tax rate at ½-cent rather than the current ¼-cent rate.  
The added $900,000 this would generate annually would closely mirror the $1.0 million annual 
target for ongoing CIP improvements. 

Improved Cost Recovery
As discussed above, of the three revenue candidates, improved cost recovery is within the 
Council’s decision-making authority.  However, before setting targets for new revenues, it is 
important to address two key issues: 

� Under state law, costs cannot exceed the reasonable cost of providing the service 
� Fees should be set within an overall cost recovery policy framework 

Before increasing or adopting new fees, the City should consider four key questions: 

� What does it cost the City to provide the service? 
� Is this cost reasonable? 
� What is the current cost recovery level? 
� What should the cost recovery level be? 

The first three questions can be answered through careful analysis.  For example, it is a 
relatively straightforward analytical task to determine that it costs $100 to issue a building permit 
(including direct and indirect costs); the cost is reasonable considering city service levels; and 
the current fee is only $50.  However, deciding to raise or lower the fee is determined by the 
fourth policy question that only the Council can answer: what should the cost recovery level be?  

For example, if the Council believes that fees should only cover 25% of the cost, with the 
balance funded by General Fund revenues, then the fee should be reduced by 50% to $25.  On 
the other hand, if the Council believes that this service should be fully recovered from the 
applicant, then raising the fee to $100 would be warranted. 

This example reflects one of the fundamental issues of public finance: which services should be 
funded from user fees?  And which from general purpose tax revenues? 

In determining appropriate cost recovery, staff recommends these decisions should be made in 
a policy context.  Accordingly, we conceptually concur with the FAC recommendation for 
improved cost recovery.  However, before raising fees – such as recreation fees by 10% - we 
recommend first developing and approving user fee cost recovery policies; and then following-
up with analysis in selected fee areas to assess where increases (or decreases) might be 
warranted.               

Voter Approved Revenue Increases 
Both of remaining revenue concepts require majority voter approval if the proceeds will be used 
for general purposes. 

� Extending Measure D sales tax: $900,000 
� Increasing the TOT rate from 10% to 12%-14%: $200,000 to $400,000 

Measure D is scheduled to sunset in 2017.  While this is six years away, at the joint Council-
FAC study session the City Manager outlined several advantages to placing the extension of 
Measure D before its sunset: 

67



1-26-12 AGENDA REPORT: Long Range Fiscal Strategy Follow-Up 11 

R:\Agenda Staff Reports\2012 Agenda Reports\City Council\02-23-12\6.B. Long Range Fiscal Strategy_Report Follow-up.docx

� The City’s long-term fiscal planning would be enhanced by having greater certainty about 
this revenue’s future. 

� Given the requirement that general purpose revenue measures be considered by voters at 
the same time as Council member elections (unless there unanimous declaration of a fiscal 
emergency), November 2012 presents an early opportunity to consider extension.     

The November 2012 ballot also presents a window of opportunity to consider an increase in the 
City‘s TOT rate. 

As discussed in a separate Council agenda report also being considered on January 26, 2012, if 
the Council is interested in seriously considering a revenue ballot measure in November 2012, 
there are several key actions that should be undertaken now, including public opinion research.

Next Steps 

The following outlines recommended next steps: 

Task Target Date 

� Continue to closely evaluate cost saving opportunities Ongoing

� Prepare “benchmark study” to assess the City’s fiscal accountability in 
answering the question: how do we know the City is wisely using the 
resources it already has? 

March 2012 

� Develop user fee cost recovery policy and present to Council for 
approval.

April 2012 

� Analyze key revenues in accordance with the adopted user fee cost 
recovery policy and make recommendations for changes as 
appropriate as part of the 2012-13 Budget process. 

June 2012 

FISCAL IMPACT: There are no added budget costs associated with the recommended actions.  

ATTACHMENT:

1. Council Agenda Report: October 12, 2011 Joint Council/Finance Committee Meeting      

Report Prepared By:  Jamie Goldstein, City Manager 
       Bill Statler, Interim Finance Director 

Reviewed and Forwarded 
By City Manager: ______      

68



                             Item #: 6.C. 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF FEBRUARY 23, 2012 

FROM:   CITY MANAGER AND FINANCE DEPARTMENTS 

SUBJECT: FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT IMPROVEMENTS 
______________________________________________________________________________

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve the financial management improvements recommended in this report and direct staff to 
return with follow-up actions where necessary for formal implementation.   

BACKGROUND:
Bill Statler served as the Interim Finance Director from September 15, 2011 through February 5, 
2012.  Based on his observations and a review of the City’s financial management policies, 
procedures and practices, this report presents recommended system improvements.   

DISCUSSION:
The recommended financial management improvements presented below are based on two key 
principles:  

Effective Use of Limited Resources.  All of the proposed changes stem from the concept that 
the City should focus its limited resources on high-value, high-priority services.  In light of recent 
staffing reductions and resource constraints, this means modifying and/or eliminating “red tape,” 
low-value efforts – while still maintaining appropriate internal controls, accountability and 
transparency.  Ensuring that current policies, procedures and practices continue to make sense 
is especially important in the context of other system improvements that may have been made 
over time (and thus are now duplicative in their goals but with increased resource commitments 
because the organization has not let go of the old procedures when the new ones were 
implemented). This includes technology changes that provide the foundation for productivity 
improvements; “best practices” that have surfaced since policies and procedures were last 
reviewed; and the simple passage of time since authority limits were last set.  In short, being 
good stewards of the public resources entrusted to the City means using limited resources 
wisely in achieving the City’s goals and objectives. 

Effective Council Policy and Decision Making.  Like most of us, the Council is agenda-
driven: if something appears on the Council’s agenda, it should be a reasonable to assume the 
item relates to an important policy decision that only the Council should make.  That said, there 
are times when items are on the agenda when there is no discretionary action for the Council to 
take.  Virtually all “receive and file” actions fall into this category: if this is truly the only action 
required of the Council, the action could be as readily achieved – and with far fewer staff 
resources - by placing the item in the Council’s mail box.  Many “ratification” actions fall into this 
category as well.  For example, if the Council is simply reviewing an action that has already 

69



2-23-12 AGENDA REPORT: Financial Management Improvements 2 

taken place and cannot be revoked, then what is the discretionary action that being asked of the 
Council?  In this case, informing the Council on a more timely basis than the next agenda via a 
number of other communication methods may be far more effective. 

Why does this matter?  Because as a practical matter, even the most minor of Council agenda 
items requires significant staff resources to produce: it requires preparation by the assigned 
staff member and review by the department head; possible review by Finance for any fiscal 
considerations and by the City Attorney for legal ones; final review and approval by the City 
Manager; and agenda coordination; and after action follow-up and records management by the 
City Clerk’s Office.  Stated simply, there is a significant transaction cost associated with all 
agenda items.  Where there are legitimate policy issues the Council needs to decide, this effort 
is certainly justified.  However, where there are not, placing items on the agenda diverts limited 
resources from higher priority areas in delivering important services to the community.  And 
given the wide variety of communication media available than in the past, there are equally 
effective ways (perhaps more so) of ensuring transparency and community access to City 
information.

Lastly, placing items on the agenda where the Council does not have a meaningful role makes 
poor use of the Council’s time, too.  There are many issues that require significant hours of 
Council commitment, including attending community meetings and events; making site visits on 
planning items; reading numerous and lengthy reports; and preparing for and attending Council 
meetings.  Limiting the placement of items on the agenda where the Council action is truly 
needed will help Council members focus their efforts on things that matter and make a 
difference. 

While these two principles apply to all of the City’s “business practices,” the following are 
recommended changes to the City’s financial management practices.  

Register of Warrants 

Historically, Council approval was required before any disbursements could be made.  For this 
reason, city councils throughout the State approved a Register of Warrants.  Over time, the 
State has made changes allowing for greater discretion in approving disbursements prior to 
council approval in recognizing the need to pay vendors on a timely basis, improve productivity 
by making accounts payable an ongoing process rather than a peak workload twice per month; 
and that many disbursements were being made electronically through wire transfers and 
automated clearing house (ACH) transactions rather than by check.  Based on State law 
changes (primarily Government Code Section 37208), the City adopted Ordinance 806 in 1998 
allowing for payment approval by the City Manager (or designee), but with check disbursements 
to be returned to the Council after their issuance for ratification. 

Since then, Government Code Section 37208(c) has been added that “warrants or checks may 
be presented to the legislative body for ratification and approval in the form of an audited 
comprehensive annual financial report.”  The City prepares audited comprehensive annual 
financial reports; and accordingly, Council ratification is no longer required.  Accordingly, in 
accordance with the principles discussed above, staff recommends discontinuing the placement 
of the Register of Warrants on the Council agenda for ratification: under authorization provided 
by the Council 14 years ago in 1998, there is no discretionary action to be taken by the Council; 
and this will free-up staff resources for more important tasks.  The check register will remain a 
public document and available for public (or Council) review at any time.  

70



2-23-12 AGENDA REPORT: Financial Management Improvements 3 

Accounting for Cash Flow Interfund Borrowings    

As the Council is aware, the City used significant reserves in responding to the storm drain 
damage in March 2011.  This has led to the need to borrow from other funds on a temporary 
basis to cover short-term General Fund cash flow needs. 

There are two conceptual approaches in accounting for these types of short-term interfund 
borrowings:

� Formally posting “due to/due from” between affected funds on a periodic basis in the general 
ledger.

� Only posting interfund payables and receivables (due to/due from) at year-end (if applicable 
at all by then). 

This second approach is the most prevalent financial management practice:  

� In most cases (and in the case of Capitola), there will not be an outstanding 
receivable/payable at year-end; and as such, significant staff effort goes into posting 
transactions during the year for no net effect at year-end.  If there is an outstanding due 
to/due from at year end, this is significant and should be shown this way.  In accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), it will also be fully disclosed in the 
audited financial statements. 

The City’s financial position on a cash basis is better presented by showing negative cash 
balances if they in fact arise.  In fact, posting interfund cash “due to's” and “due from's” masks 
the cash position of any fund needing short-term advances: it will never show a cash deficit. 

Accordingly, in order more effectively use limited staff resources and better reflect individual 
fund financial condition, staff recommends not posting interfund payables and receivables 
during the fiscal year, but showing any applicable interfund “due to/due from” as appropriate 
under “GAAP” in the City’s audited financial statements.   

Streamline and Improve Financial Reporting 
Traditionally, the monthly “Treasurer’s Report” was focused on cash and investments.  Over 
time, the City has expanded this to also provide broader monthly financial information and 
placed this report on the Council agenda.   

A drawback with this approach is it diverts attention away from its core purpose: reporting on 
cash and investments. There are more effective ways of reporting on the City’s fiscal status, 
such as a quarterly financial newsletter that is emailed to, Council, all employees, and posted on 
the City’s web site. This report could consolidate existing quarterly revenue and budgetary 
reports with cash and investment information to produce a document that provides an overall 
view of the City’s financial status. Quarterly reports will be more meaningful for their intended 
audience: the Council, community, senior managers and the organization as a whole.  

In overcoming this drawback, staff recommends the following financial reporting improvements: 
�

� Shift the focus to quarterly reporting, where more meaningful information and analysis will 
be provided.  Along with general purpose reporting, this could include focused reports on 
key revenues such as sales tax and transient occupancy tax (TOT).   

� File monthly information with the City Clerk and Council containing the information that is 
required in Government Code Section 41004.  This would include a one to two page 
summary of receipts, disbursements, and fund balances   

71



2-23-12 AGENDA REPORT: Financial Management Improvements 4 

� Discontinue providing these reports as Council agenda items but instead more broadly 
distribute this information in other ways.    

In short, shifting to quarterly off-agenda reporting will result in more meaningful reports, better 
monitoring of the City’s fiscal status and better use of limited staff resources. The following is a 
web site link that provides examples of the types of interim reports broadly distributed to the 
Council, organization and community by the City of San Luis Obispo for investments, sales tax, 
TOT and financial reports: www.slocity.org/finance/reports.asp.

Budget Administration 
Under Section 3.20.050(D) of the municipal code, the “budget officer” (City Manager for 
practical purposes) “is authorized to approve transfers and revisions of appropriations within a 
budget unit.”  However, Council approval is required for any budget amendment of $10,000 or 
more. 

There are four drawbacks with this approach: 

� This limit was set in 1998: fourteen years ago.  Solely due to the passage of time, some 
revision in the limit is appropriate.   

� It is unclear what constitutes a $10,000 budget amendment.  Is transferring $5.500 from one 
line account to another a $5,500 budget amendment or $11,000?  If budget amendments for 
20 line items of $1,000 each are processed at the same time, with no net increase in 
expenditures, does this constitute an amendment in excess of $10,000?   

� The current policy does not explicitly limit staff authority to appropriate expenditures from 
available fund balance.  A narrow interpretation of current policy could lead to the conclusion 
that, if under $10,000, the City Manager could have the authority to amend the budget in a 
way that results in an increase in net appropriations. 

� The City’s Municipal Code also 
requires budget amendments of 
$10,000 or more should be placed on 
the Council’s regular agenda for 
consideration and discussion.  This 
requires Council to devote additional 
time to presentations by staff when the 
information contained in the staff report 
may be sufficient to justify action.   

For clarity and improved budget 
management, staff recommends the 
following budget amendment policy: 

Council has the sole authority for adopting 
the City’s budget, and may amend or 
supplement the budget at any time after its 
adoption by majority vote of the Council.   

After the budget adoption, any 
supplemental appropriations of fund 
balance, or budget transfers over $25,000 within a “Budget Unit” will require Council approval.  
Budget amendments that require Council approval may be placed on the consent agenda.   

Level of Budget Control 
The “level of budget control” – the level at 
which expenditures are not to exceed 
appropriations – is a separate issue from 
budget amendment authority.  The City’s 
existing Budget Policies (page 11 of the 2011-
12 Budget) do an excellent job of articulating 
these, summarized as follows: 

� Budget control is at the “Budget Unit,” 
which is defined as the “department, fund 
or other organizational unit whose 
financial activities are accounted for 
separately.”

� In the case of the General Fund, the 
Budget Unit is the department level. 

No changes in the City’s budget control 
policies are recommended. 

72



2-23-12 AGENDA REPORT: Financial Management Improvements 5 

In addition, the City Manager and the Finance Director will establish budgetary control 
procedures for transfers below the $25,000 threshold  

Purchasing Update
There are four primary drivers behind updating the City’s purchasing policies: 

� More meaningfully involving the Council in the purchasing process. 

� Resolving discrepancies between the City’s Purchasing Ordinance adopted in 2001 and 
purchasing procedures adopted by the Council in 2002 and revised in 2006.    

� Integrating all purchases – supplies, equipment, services and construction projects – into 
one system. 

� Accounting for the passage of time since the City’s purchasing authority limits were last 
formally set ten years ago. 

Council Involvement in the Purchasing Process 
Like most cities, the Council is currently involved in the purchasing process at the “contract 
award” stage in the bid process.  There are two drawbacks with this late involvement: 

� Detailed bid packages defining the items to be purchased and the process for doing so have 
already been prepared, limiting the Council’s input and making any changes awkward at 
best (and most likely requiring the issuance of new invitations for bids or requests for 
proposals).  This requires added staff work – which was likely very extensive to begin with – 
and delays the purchase of needed supplies, equipment, services and construction projects. 

� When the Council is being asked to weigh, it is often for the relatively simple ministerial task 
of determining who submitted the lowest bid.  

It makes more sense to move the Council’s involvement to an earlier stage, where it can better 
exercise policy discretion: approval of the bid package and authorization to invite bids or request 
proposals. 

This provides the Council with meaningful discretion on whether to purchase the item at all and 
at what cost; and to define the work scope and the term and conditions of the purchase.  
However, once these parameters are in place, the recommended approach delegates to staff 
the ministerial action of determining who submitted the lowest bid and awarding the contract.  In 
those few cases where bids come in above budget or there are other unexpected issues, bid 
award would return to the Council.  This revision will make purchasing more efficient while 
retaining appropriate internal controls and more meaningfully involving the Council in the formal 
purchasing process.   In fact, on many important purchases and bids, Council is been engaged  
prior to the issuance of a bid, or RFP.  This proposed change codifies this practice, and 
streamlines the process at the ministerial contract award stage. 

Discrepancies between Purchasing Ordinance and Purchasing Procedures 
The following compares key features of the City’s Purchasing Ordinance adopted in 2001 
(Municipal Code Section 3.16) and purchasing procedures adopted in 2002 and revised in 2006:    

73



2-23-12 AGENDA REPORT: Financial Management Improvements 6 

Purchasing Ordinance (2001) Purchasing Procedures (2002, Revised 2006) 
Scope: Supplies, equipment and general services 
(operation and maintenance); does not address 
consultant (professional) services 

Scope: Similar but includes consultant services 

Over the Counter (No Specific Bidding Requirements 
City Manager/delegated staff authority: $10,000 or 
less

Department Heads: $2,000 or less 

Informal Bidding (Open Market) 
$10,000 to $20,000  
There is an internal contradiction within the 
Ordinance (most likely a typo at the time): in two 
places, Section 3.16.070 places the limit at 
$20,000; Section 3.16.070(A) says $25,000.

$2,000 to $10,000  

Verbal or written quotations: Up to $10,000 Same 

Written quotation: $10,000 to $50,000 Formal bid process 

Award via purchase order or contract by City 
Manager/delegated staff 

Award Via purchase order  

Formal Bidding
More than $50,000 More than $10,000 

Policies/procedures not addressed Formal Invitation for Bids (IFB) or Request for 
Proposal (RFP) process; prepared and issued by 
staff; formal published notice;  sealed 
bids/proposals 

 Award by Council 

 Formal contract (purchase orders typically issued 
as well) 

Construction Projects 
 Not addressed Partially addressed 

It is not clear why the City adopted some policies via ordinance in 2001 (Attachment 1) and then 
augmented them with additional policies and procedures a year later (but not by ordinance) – 
some of which seem to be in conflict.  While the 2001 (revised in 2006) policies (Attachment 2) 
are more recent, typically ordinances are viewed as being superior to other Council actions.  On 
the other hand, the 2002/2006 policies are clearer and more comprehensive than the 2001 
Ordinance.

With very few exceptions, the types of policies and procedures set forth in Attachment 2 are 
typically included in the Purchasing Ordinance.  This approach eliminates the potential for 
conflicts between policy documents and places them in one easily accessible place.  
Accordingly, staff recommends that any updates place all key policies and procedure in the 
Purchasing Ordinance.  There will still be the need for internal administrative procedures for 
implementation; but the key policies should be comprehensively set forth in one place: the 
Purchasing Ordinance. 

74



2-23-12 AGENDA REPORT: Financial Management Improvements 7 

Integration of Purchasing Policies into One System 
For consistency and ease of administration, policies and procedures for construction projects 
should be more clearly integrated with the City’s other purchasing policies for supplies, 
equipment and services.   

Updated Purchasing Limits 
The following provides an overview of the proposed purchasing system.  Key changes reflect 
the concepts discussed above, summarized as follows: 

� Council involvement is earlier in the formal bid process. 

� Policies and procedures are integrated for all purchases: supplies, equipment, maintenance 
and operation services, consultant services and construction projects. 

� Staff approval of purchases are set at $5,000.  This is a decrease from the $10,000 level set 
in the 2001 Purchasing Ordinance, and an increase in the $2,000 level set in the 2006 
procedures.  Although no specific purchasing requirements are established for this level of 
purchase, competitive bidding should be used whenever practical.  Along with clarifying 
policies and procedures between the two documents, this change will facilitate Internet 
purchases as well as smaller purchases from local vendors. 

� Open market procedures (informal bidding procedures) are set at $10,000 to $25,000.  This 
is a decrease from the limit of $50,000 set in the Purchasing Ordinance and the $10,000 
limit in the 2006 Procedures.       

� Formal bidding/requests for proposals are set at purchases in excess of $25,000. 

Proposed Purchasing System Overview 

Scope  Category Features 
   
   Over-the-Counter 
   � No specific requirements; competitive 
   Less Than  bidding to be used whenever practical. 
   $5,000 � Bid award by department via voucher  
    or purchase order. 
   

   
Supplies   Open Market
Equipment   � Department solicits at least 3  
Operating or   $5,000 to  Proposals. 
Maintenance Services   $25,000 � Bid award by Finance via purchase 
Consultant Services    Order. 
Construction Projects   

   Formal � Formal Bid/RFP documents. 
     � Advertising for sealed bids/proposals. 

Greater Than � Council approves Bid/RFP document 
$25,000  and soliciting bids/proposals; contract 

 award generally delegated by Council  
 to the City Manager if within budget.

75



2-23-12 AGENDA REPORT: Financial Management Improvements 8 

Use of Resolutions 
Extensive use of resolutions has its roots in the fact that until fairly recently, many cities did not 
routinely prepare staff reports for each Council agenda item, For this reason, resolutions with 
their “whereases” and “therefores” were the only formal documentation for why the council 
made the decision it did. 

Accordingly, with the advent of staff reports that clearly lay-out the recommendation, the 
reasons for the recommendation and its fiscal impact, resolutions often do not fill the same need 
that they did in the past.  However, many resolutions continue to be prepared when they are no 
longer needed: the staff report contains the same information (and often in greater detail).  
Where this occurs, limited staff resources are being used to prepare duplicative work for the 
same outcome.  

There are times when resolutions are needed.  For example, the State Government Code 
requires that many planning actions be approved by resolution; and grant regulations may 
require this as well.  It may also be appropriate to adopt major policies by resolution.  However, 
the vast majority of Council actions do not require resolutions.   

In general, staff recommends limiting the use of resolutions in the future to only those 
circumstances where they are truly needed (such as those discussed above).  While this applies 
to a wide variety City agenda items, there are two specific financial management areas where 
resolutions are not required and as such staff recommends no longer preparing them: 

� Budget Amendments.  The staff report should always be clear on the budget amendment 
action needed.      

� Contracts.  In this case, not only should the staff report discuss all significant issues, but the 
resolution duplicates information provided in the agreement itself.  

Next Steps 
All of the recommended changes can be placed into operation fairly quickly.  Before doing so, 
however, it will be important to develop internal procedures and staff training to ensure that they 
are understood throughout the organization.  Additionally, in some cases, municipal code and 
resolution changes will be necessary to formally implement them.  Where this is needed, staff 
will return within 60 days with the revisions.  However, before investing the resources necessary 
to do so, staff wanted Council direction to make these changes. 

FISCAL IMPACT 
There are no direct fiscal impacts associated with the recommended changes.  However, they 
will result in improved organizational effectiveness, freeing-up limited resources for higher 
priority services while maintaining appropriate internal controls, accountability and transparency.    

ATTACHMENTS
1. Purchasing Ordinance (Municipal Code Section 3.16) 
2. Purchasing and Procurement Policy 

Report Prepared By:  Tori Hannah, Finance Director        
       Bill Statler, prior Interim Finance Director    

Reviewed and Forwarded
By City Manager: ______   

76



77

Chapter 3.16 PURCHASING AND PURCHASING CONTRACTS 
3.16.010 Purpose. 

The purpose of this chapter is to: 

ATTACHMENT 1 

A. Provide for the authority of city officers to enter into certain contracts even 
without a formal city council approval of the specific contract or transaction and to set forth 
procedural requirements; and 

B. Establish efficient procedures for the purchase of supplies, equipment and general 
services at the lowest possible cost commensurate with quality needed, to exercise positive 
financial control over purchases to clearly define authority for the purchasing function, and to 
assure the quality or purchases; and 

C. To inform those wishing to contract with the city of the authority of the city 
employee or official to create a binding contract; and 

D. To assist the city treasurer in carrying out his or her duties under Government 
Code Section 41001. (Ord. 832 (part), 2001) 

3.16.020 Limitations. 
The authority created by this chapter applies only to contracts, the predominant purchase 

of which is the purchase by the city of goods or services; and the city's primary performance 
under such contract is the payment of money. This chapter does not confer authority to authorize 
the payment of money for grants, gifts, or other expenditure that is without consideration. 

Authority conferred in this chapter upon the city manager applies to situations in which 
an interim city manager is serving or in situations in which the city manager has appointed an 
acting city manager. (Ord. 832 (part), 2001) 
3.16.030 General procedural requirements. 

All contracts must be in writing and be signed in the name of the city. They may be 
transmitted by facsimile or electronic mail. (Ord. 832 (part), 2001) 
3.16.040 Definitions. 

For the purposes of this chapter, the following definitions shall apply: 
A. "Best value" means the best ·value to the city based on all factors, including but 

not limited to, the following: 
1. Cost; 
2. The ability, capacity, and skill of the contractor to perform the contract or provide 

the supplies, services or equipment required; 
3. The ability of the contractor· to provide the supplies, services, or equipment 

promptly or within the time specified without delay or interference; 
4. The character, integrity, reputation, judgment, experience, and efficiency of the 

contractor; 
5. 

with the city; 
The quality of the contractor's performance on previous purchases or contracts 

6. The ability of the contractor to provide future maintenance, repair, parts, and 
services for the use of the supplies purchased; and 

7. The contractor's ability to supply or act in a timely manner. 
B. "Change order" means a change or addendum of an executed contract. 
C. "Consultant or professional services" means the services of an attorney, engineer, 

doctor, financial consultant, planning or environmental consultant, investment advisor, bank or 
trustee officer, or other professional. 



78

D. "Contract" means any agreement to do or not do a certain thing. "Contract" and 
"agreement" are synonymous. The term "contract" includes, but is not limited to, a purchase 
order, a contract for services, an addendum or change order or a letter agreement. 

E. "Emergency" means a sudden, unexpected occurrence that poses a clear and 
imminent danger, requiring immediate action to prevent or mitigate the loss or impairment of 
life, health, property, or essential public services, or proclaimed pursuant to Section 8.08.060. 

F. "General services" means and includes any work performed or services rendered 
by an independent contractor, with or without the furnishing of materials, including, but not 
limited to, the following: 

1. Maintenance or nonstructural repair of city buildings, structures or improvement 
which does not require engineering plans, specifications or design, including, but not limited to, 
unscheduled replacement of broken window panes, fire extinguisher maintenance, minor roof 
repairs, plumbing, elevator maintenance, custodial services and pest control; 

2. Repair, modifications and maintenance of city equipment and software; 
3. Cleaning, analysis, testing, moving, removal or disposal (other than by sale) of 

city supplie.s and equipment; 
4. Repainting, care or maintenance of public grounds, including, but not limited to, 

trees, shrubbery, flowers, lawns; 
5. Providing temporary persomlel services; 
6. Providing other miscellaneous services to facilitate city operations; 
7. Performing repair, demolition or other work required to abate nuisances under this 

code; 
8. Licensing software; 
9. Leasing or rental of equipment (personal property) for use by the city; and 
10. A maintenance agreement for equipment owned or leased by the city. "General 

services" does not include: 
a. Work defined as public proj ects that must be put out to bid pursuant to Public 

Contract Code Section 20162. 
b. Items such as meals or transportation, which personally are consumed or utilized 

by the individual who contracts for the item. 
G. "Supplies and equipment" means and includes all such items purchased on behalf 

of the city except for supplies or materials finished for a public project. (Ord. 832 (part), 2001) 

3.16.050 City manager authority. 
A. The city manager is authorized to enter into and sign for and on behalf of the city, 

without the prior approval of the city council, a contract: 
1. Which contains an initial maximum compensation figure of ten thousand dollars 

or less, or a change order not exceeding seven thousand five hundred dollars. (Cumulative 
additional orders exceeding twenty-five thousand dollars must be approved by the city council); 

2. For which moneys have been appropriated; and 
3. For which he or she determines the city has made reasonable efforts to obtain best 

value. 
B. In an emergency (as defined in Section 3.16.040), the city manager may authorize 

the expenditure of any unencumbered moneys in the emergency reserve fund, notwithstanding 
the fact that such moneys may not have been appropriated for such purpose, to the extent that 
other moneys have not been appropriated or are otherwise unavailable therefor. 

C. Contracts wherein all the city's costs will be reimbursed pursuant to an existing 
separate contract. (Ord. 832 (part), 2001) 



79

3.16.060 City manager delegation of authority. 
Providing the city manager first establishes· written procedures, the city manager may 

delegate the authority for other city employees to enter into contracts for purchases of general 
services or supplies and equipment for ten thousand dollars or less. (Ord. 832 (part), 2001) 

3.16.070 Purchases of general services or supplies and equipment for between ten thousand 
dollars and twenty thousand dollars. 

A. Quotation Requirement. The purchase of supplies, equipment and general services 
of a value from ten thousand dollars to twenty-five thousand dollars may be made by persons 
authorized by Section 3.16.060 in the open market, following the procedure prescribed in this 
section and the city manager's procedures. 

1. Minimum Number of Quotations. Open-market purchases shall, whenever 
feasible, be based on at least three quotations. 

2. Notice Inviting Quotations. The purchasing employee shall solicit quotations by 
written request or telephone to prospective vendors. Telephone quotations shall be memorialized 
in a contemporaneous writing. 

3. Quotations. Quotations shall be submitted to the finance director who shall keep a 
record of all open-market orders and quotes for a period of one year after the submission of 
quotes or placing of orders. This record is open to public inspection. For a purchase of up to ten 
thousand dollars, the quotations may be verbal or written. For a purchase in an amount over ten 
thousand dollars to fifty thousand dollars, the quotations shall be written (including facsimile and 
electronic mail). 

4. Award of Contract. A contract shall be awarded to the quotation representing the 
best value as defined in Section 3.16.040. The basis upon which the award is made shall be in 
writing. 

B. Exceptions. The quotation procedure under this section may be dispensed with for 
purchases between ten thousand dollars and twenty thousand dollars where supplies and 
equipment are purchased through cooperative purchasing arrangements with the state or other 
group of multiple governmental entities. (Ord. 832 (part), 2001) 



ATTACHMENT 2 

80

ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY 

PURCHASING & PROCUREMENT POLICY 

PURPOSE 

Number: 111-4 
Issued: August 29, 2002 

Revised: 3/9/06 
Jurisdiction: City Council 

To establish -policies and procedures to meet the C.ity's requirements which provide an economic 
and efficient process for the purchase materials, supplies, services and equipment for the City 
consistent with the'City's Municipal Code, and State and Federal laws, rules and regulations. 

POLICY 

] t is the policy of the City of Capitola to comply with all purchasing rules and regulations 
established by the City, the State of Calif ami a and the Federal Government. Within this context, it 
is the City's goal to establish efficient procedures for the purchase of supplies, equipment and 
general services at the lowest cost commensurate with quality needed, to exercise positive financial 
control over purchases, to clearly define authority for the purchasing function, and to assure the 
quality of purchases. 

RESPONSmILITY 

Each department is responsible for following the provisions of this Administrative Procedure. 
Department Heads will be responsible for the process of distributing, advertising, collecting and 
evaluating all procurement activities conducted within their Departments. 

If Finance staff receives an invoice for payment in excess of $2,000 and it appears that this policy 
was not followed (i.e., three bids are not documented or copy of purchase order. is not attached to 
the invoice), the invoice will be stamped with the "Purchasing Policy Waived" stamp and submitted 
to the City Manager for pa~ellt approval. 

LOCAL VENDOR PREFERENCE POLICY 

Departments are encouraged, whenever legal S:Dd economical to do so and whenever product is of 
competitive quality, to do business with Capitola-based businesses due to the benefit to the 
community and the advantages in timing and availability. Purchasers will actively seek to identify 
local vendors interested and able to conduct business with the City of Capitola. It is important that 
purchasers include in their inquiry or invitation to bid, the opportunity for vendors to identify 
themselves as local and to provide necessary supporting evidence (see definition oflocal vendor). 

Bids, quotes, or offers submitted by Capitola-based vendors will be credited with the current local 
(City) sales tax and local (City) transactions & use tax in effect. This net bid will be used to 
compare bids. In the event of a tie, bids submitted by Capitola vendors will be given preferwce. 



81

j Administrative Procedure UI-4 
Purchasing & Procurement 
Issued: August 29, 2002 
Revised: 3/9/06 
Page 2 of 10 

ALTERNATIVE FUEL VEHICLES 

Vehicles powered by clean alternative fuels as defined by the Energy Policy Act of 1992 and other 
energy efficient advanced technology vehicles shall be given consideration when purchasing new 
and replacement fleet vehicles. 

TERMINOLOGY 

Bid: Formal process to obtain lowest responsive responsible bidder or price for materials, supplies 
and equipment estimated to cost more than $10,000. In accordance with Chapter 2.5, Section 20164 
of the Public Contract code, Invitations to Bid are advertised, with bids submitted in sealed 
envelopes to the project manager with formal public opening. Used where City wishes to award 
based on specific product or service specification, using cost or price related criteria. 

Contract: A written agreement between two or more persons setting forth a matter of performance 
and compensation or consideration given for the performance. The term contract includes, but is 
not limited to; purchase orders, contract for services, an addendum or change order or a letter 
agreement. 

Emergency: An unexpected occurrence or threatened occurrence that poses a danger, requiring 
immediate action to prevent or mitigate the loss or impairment of life, health, property, or essential 
public services, or any emergency proclaimed pursuant to Municipal Code 8.08.060. 

Informal Bid Process: The informal bid process, which does not require public notice, or advertising 
or sealed bid process with public opening, can be done verbally or written. Cost is less than 
$10,000. A telephone quotation sheet is required. 

Local Business (Local vendor/Capitola·based business): Any business which has a retail outlet 
within city limits of the City of Capitola and holds the required licenses and permits for conducting 
its business within the City. 

Request for Proposal: An offer in to provide materials, supplies or services where the City selects 
vendor/consultant usually based upon criteria specified in Request for Proposal such as competence, 
qualifications and expertise in the field. Price is not the sale basis for selection, but may be 
considered in the criteria for evaluating proposals. Typically used for Services contracts. 

Services: Any work performed or services rendered by an independent contractor, with or without 
the furnishing of materials such as a professional consultant. 

Sole Source: Sale source purchases are used where no secondary source is reasonably available 
precluding the use of a competitive process. Other exceptions are discussed in Section ill. B. 



82

Administrative Procedure IIJ-4 
Purchasing & Procurement 
Issued: August 29, 2002 
Revised: 3/9/06 
Page 3 of 10 

PROCEDURES 

1. Purchasing Procedures 

A. Purchase Order: Pmchase Orders are generated by the Finance Department for any 
purchase of goods (material, supplies, or equipment) or services over $10,000 upon 
authorization by the City Council (Exhibit A). The Purchase Order is the vendor's 
authority to perform services or ship goods and receive payment. It is also the City's 
commitment to pay for such goods and services. The Purchase Order is the acceptance 
of a bid quotation or offer, and a contractual relationship is established upon its 
issuance and acceptance by the vendor. The Department is responsible for submitting a 
copy of the Purchase Order to the City Clerk's Office for Central Files. 

B. Department Purchase Order: A Department Purchase Order (Exhibit B) is generated 
by the Department Head for all purchases of goods and services between $2,000 and 
$10,000. 

C. City Credit Card: The City Manager may assign a City Credit Card to authorized City 
. personnel for miscellaneous purchases. These procedures are subject to the terms and 

conditions of the City's Credit Card program, including permissible vendor and types 
of purchases. 

D. Prepayment: Prepayment is discouraged. A request for a check will be authorized only 
when a vendor requires prepayment. Use the vendor's fee sheet or a letter from the 
vendor stating the cost, stamp it with the Claim Stamp and submit to Finance. 
Reimbursement for employee expenses should be appropriately approved prior to 
mailing the expenditure. 

II. Procurement Methods and Authorization for Services, Materials, Supplies and 
Equipment 

A. $2,000 or Less (Excluding Taxes & Freight) No Quotes Are Reguired 

1. Purchasing Process: The purchaser is responsible for protecting the best interests of 
the City and making the most cost-effective purchase. A City Credit Card may be 
used for purchases up to $2,000 based on appropriate Department approvals. 

2. Authority: Department Heads and the Assistant to the City Manager are authorized 
for expenditures up to $2,000. 

3. Invoices: Submit invoices stamped with the "Claim Approval Stamp" and completed 
by the Department to Finance for payment. 



83

Administrative Procedure IIl-4 
Purchasing & Procurement 
Issued: August 29, 2002 
Revised: 3/9/06 
Page 4 of 10 

B. Purchase over $2,000 up to $10,000 (Excluding Taxes and Freight) Department 
Purchase Order Form Required 

L Purchasing Process: The purchaser' is responsible for protecting the best interests of the 
. City and making the most cost-effective purchase. A City Credit Card may be used for 

purchases up to $10,000 based on City Managers approval. 

2. Authority: The City Manager is authorized for expenditures up to $10,000. 

3. Documentation: Tlu'ee quotes must be documented in writing on the Telephone Quote 
Form (Exhibit C) and submitted to the Finance Department with the Department 
Purchase Order Fonn (Exhibit B) and the invoice for payment. 

C. Purchases over $10,000 (Excluding Taxes and Freight) Council Must Award 
Contract 

1. Purchasing Process: Purchases of supplies, equipment and materials, must be 
based on a minimum of three bids/quotes (Exhibit D), (see Section 4.C. for 
process) and awarded to the lowest responsible respondent. Service contracts 
may be based on a Request for Proposal (RFP). See Section 4.D. for process. 

2. Authority: Purchases of supplies, equipment and materials or for services over 
$10,000 will be made by a formal RFP or Invitation To Bid process and awarded 
by the City Council to the respondent submitting the lowest price in a bid. If it is 
an RFP, the most qualified respondent based on the awarding criteria in the RFP 
will be awarded the contract. 

3. Documentation: The quotes must be documented in writing and referenced in the 
staff report to City Council for approval. The Department will keep a record of 
all open market responses for· a period of at least three months after the 
conclusion of the contract or one-year whichever is shorter. 

4. Exceptions: The quotation procedure under this section may be dispensed with 
for purchases where supplies and equipment are purchased through cooperative 
purchasing arrangements with the State or other group of multiple governmental 
entities. Exceptions may also be made in the case of Emergency and Sole Source 
Purchases. 

III. Additional Procurement Procedures 

A. E mergency Purchases 

1. Authority. The City Manager or designee must approve emergency purchases of 
more than $2,000. 



84

Administrative Procedure rII-4 
Purchasing & Procurement 
Issued: August 29, 2002 
Revised: 3/9/06 
Page 5 of l O 

Documentation. It will be the responsibility of the requesting department to 
attach a copy of the written justification of the emergency signed by the City 
Manager to any invoices at the time the invoice is submitted to accounts payable 
for payment. 

2. Reporting. All emergency purchases of goods and services over $2,000 will be 
immediately reported by the department responsible for the purchase to the City 
Clerk for inclusion as an information item on the Agenda for the next scheduled 
meeting ofthe City Council. 

In accordance with Chapter 2.5, Section 22050(a) of the Public Contract Code, 
the information on emergency purchase action shall be presented to the City 
Council for review and determination, by a .four-fifths vote, that there is a need 
to continue the emergency action. This must occur within seven days after the 
action, or at the City Councils next regularly scheduled meeting if that meeting 
will occur within 14 days after the action. The emergency purchase action shall 
be presented to the City Council at least at every subsequent regularly scheduled 
meeting until the action is terminated. The City Council must determine, by a 
fom-fifth vote, that there is a need to continue the emergency action. 

B. Sole Source 

1. Materials. Supplies & Equipment: 

a. Definition. Sole source purchases are used where no secondary source is 
reasonably available precluding the Use of a competitive process. The 
following are examples of circumstances, which could necessitate sole 
source procurements: 
1) Where compatibility of equipment, accessories or replacement parts is 

an important consideration; . 
2) Where public utility services are to be procured; 
3) Where a sale supplier's item is needed for trial use or testing; 
4) Where a used item is offered at a bargain price and subject to prior 

sale; 
5) Where a cooperative purchasing agreement .has been developed with 

another public agency that used a competitive selection process. 
6) Where supply proximity is an important consideration. 

2. Consultant or General Services: 

a. In the case where a consulting firm has satisfactorily performed the 
previous stage of a project (e.g. a pre-design), or has acquired extensive 
background and working knowledge, the finn may be selected for follow
up work without solicitations from other flnn upon written justification 
and recommendation of the department head and approval by the City 
Manager or designee. 



85

i Administrative Procedure 1II-4 
Purchasing & Procurement 
Issued: August 29, 2002 
Revised: 3/9/06 
Page 6 of 10 

b, If a firm is a highly recognized authority in a field or specialty, or has 
unique specific knowledge regarding the project, then the firm may be 
selected without other solicitations for contracts and upon written 
justification and recommendation of the department head and approval by 
the City Manager or designee. 

c. Upon those infrequent occasions when confidence in the consultant and 
quality of service are important. 

3. Documentation: It is the responsibility of the requesting department to maintain in 
their files a complete, written justification of the sole source purchase appro.ved by 
the City Manager. 

4. Authorization & Reporting: All sole source purchases of more than $10,000 are 
authorized by the City Council and fully disclosed in the staff agenda report. Sale 
source purchases between $2,000 and $10,000 are authorized by the City 
Manager. Sale source purchases less than $2,000 are authorized by the 
Department Heads. 

C. Purchase or-Capital Equipment 
Expenditures for the acquisition of vehicles and e~quipment should be capitalized if the 
cost is greater than $3,000 and the useful life is longer than three years. 

Vehicle purchases should include the purcbase price and all other vehicle equipment 
related expenditures. 

D. Multiple Year Contracts 

1. Applicability. When it is in the best interest of the City, multiple year contracts 
will be allowed. High vendor "startup costs" or the need for continuity may make 
a multiple year contract financially or operationally advantageous to the ' City. 
Under no circumstances should a multiple year contract be used to avoid 
competitive procurement procedures. 

2. Termination Due to Lack of Funds. All multiple year contracts should contain a 
clause allowing the City to terminate the contract in thirty (30) days or subsequent 
fiscal years due to a lack of budgeted funds. 

3. Tenn. The term of a multiple year contract should be clearly delineated. "Open 
end" contracts will not be used. 

4. Authority. Multiple year contracts are subject to the same authority levels detailed 
above. 

5. Changes. Changes to multiple year contracts are covered under "Change Orders" 
below. 



86

! 

) 

) 

Administrative Procedure IJI-4 
Purchasing & Procurement 
Issued: August 29, 2002 
Revised: 3/9/06 
Page 7 oflO 

6. Extension. Extension of contracts requires the approval of the City Manager via 
City contract amendment fonn. 

7. Addendum. Increase in dollar amounts on an agreement. which results in an 
aggregate total in excess of $25,000 requires approval from the City Council. 

IV. Selection Procedures 

A. Purchases of up to $2.000; Purchases of Services, Supplies, Materials and Equipment, 
which are estimated to be $2,000 or less, do not require a quote. The pillchaser is 
responsible for protecting the best interests of the City and making the most cost
effective purchase. 

B. Purchases .of over $2.000 and up to $10,000: Purchases 'of Services, Supplies, 
Materials and Equipment which are estimated to be more than $2,000 and up to 
SI0,OOO, may be done informally with telephone quotes, which must be d.ocumented 
with a Telephone Quote sheet. 

C. Formal Bidding anvitation to Bid) For Contracts Over S10.000 

1. Published Notice. In accordance with Chapter 2.5, Section 20164 of the Public 
Contract Code, notices inviting bids shall include a general description of the 
articles to be purchased, shall state where bid forms and specifications may be 
secured and the time and place for opening bids. Notice shall be published at 
least twice in a newspaper of general circulation or a recognized trade journal in 
which such notices are customarily published. The Department Head shall also 
solicit sealed bids from a cross section of responsible prospective suppliers 
whose names are on the bidders list if a list is maintained. 

2. Pre-Bidder's Conference. A pre-bidder conference may be held to clarify the 
Notice Inviting Bids, or Request for Proposal, answer respondents' questions, 
tour a site, etc. If no pre-bidder conference is held or if questions arise 
subsequent to the conference, such questions should be submitted in writing. A 
copy of all questions and responses should be distributed to all respondents 
through an informational addendum. 

3. Bid Opening Procedure. Sealed Bids shall be submitted to the Project Manager 
and shall be identified as bids on the outside of the envelope. Bids shall be 
opened in public and read aloud at the time and place stated in the public notice. 
A tabulation of all bids received shall be available for public inspection during 
reg~ar business hours for a period not less than thirty (30) calendar days after 
the bid opening. 

4. Rejection of Bids. At the direction of the City Council, the Project Manager may 
reject any and all bids/responses presented and re-advertise. 



87

1 

) 

Administrative Procedure III~4 
Purchasing & Procurement 
Issued: August 29, 2002 
Revised: 3/9/06 
Page 8 oflO 

5. Award of Bid. Award of bid shall be made to the responsible bidder submitting 
the lowest price. 

6. Tie Bids. If two or more bids received are for the same total amount or unit price, 
quality and service being equal, and if the public interest will not permit the delay 
of readvertising the bids, the City Council may accept the one it chooses or 
accept the lowest bid made by negotiation with the tie bidders a~ the time of the 
bid opening. 

7. Bidder Failure. The City Council may, on refusal or failure of the successful 
bidder to execute the contract, award it to the next lowest responsible bidder. 

8. Performance Bond. When deemed necessary by the Project Manager, a 
Performance Bond may be required on any bid. When required, the bond form, 
amount and conditions will be included in the bid documents. 

9. Labor and MateriallPayment Bond. When deemed necessary by the Project 
Manager, a Labor and MateriallPayment Bond may be required on any bid. 
When required, the bond fonn, amount and conditions will be included in the 
bid documents. 

10. Insurance. Insurance requirements will be provided via Purchase Order terms 
and conditions, or Request for Proposal terms and conditions information or 
City Contract. 

D. R equest for Proposal (RFPl 

1. Request for Proposal (RFP): Normally associated with General Services 
Contracts over $10,000. Document which requests a firm to submit a proposal to 
perform the scope of work associated with a specific project. Cost is not the sole 
basis for selection in an RFP, other criteria such as experience, turn around time, 
and approach to work are determining factors when evaluating a proposal. 

a. RFP Requirements. The RFP will be specific to the project and 
preparation will require some general knowledge of the project. However, 
preparation of the RFP should not involve any work for which the 
proposer would normally be compensated during the project. For 
example, on engineering projects, free preliminary engineering in the 
RFP should be discouraged. The RFP should adelre.ss the following: 

1) Required Information: In the RFP, the consultant shall be advised of 
the following requirements: 

a. Standard contract requirements 
b. Selection criteria. 
c. Date and time proposal is due. 



88

Administrative Procedure ill A 
Purchasing & Procurement 
Issued: August 29,2002 
Revised: 3/9/06 

\, Page 9 of 10 
I 

) 

I 

) 

v. 

d. The name and telephone number of the staff member 
responsible for the project. 

2) Selection & Evaluation Criteria. Proposals will be evaluated on the 
basis of the evaluation factors listed in the Request for Proposal. 
Respondents should be ranked based on the selection criteria. As a 
minimum, the following criteria will be used to evaluate the RFP. 

a. Firm experience (including work and project-related 
references). 

b. Specific staff experience and availability (including work 
and project- related references). 

c. Approved methods to accomplish the work. 
d. Scope of work and schedule 

b. Price Considerations. Although price is always a consideration in 
recommending awarding the final selection, prices will not be a mandatory 
consideration in the initial evaluation process. At the discretion of the 
department, a department may opt to adopt an RFP procedure with price 
information in a separate sealed envelope. The envelopes shall not be opened 
until the highest rated finn is identified based upon demonstrated 
competence and professional qualifications. At that time, the price 
information will be compared to professional qualification to ensure that the 
price is fair and reasonable. If a major discrepancy between highest rated 
firm and the others exist, that discrepancy shall be evaluated and explained 
before award of the work. If not satisfactorily resolved, the department may 
to negotiate with the next-highest-ranked firm. 

Change Orders 

A. Change Orders: Vendors may not proceed until change order has been authorized. 

1. Change Orders: City Manager will approve all change orders of up to $7,500. 
City Council will approve change orders over $7,500. All change order 
requests will be on the original amount of the contract. Cumulative change 
orders exceeding $25,000 must be approved by the City Council. 

VI. Other Purchasing Information 

A. Purchasing for Personal Use 
Purchases for personal use will not be made forlby employees using City personnel, 
facilities or supplies. 

.... ~ .. 



89

1 , 

l ~\ 
, 

I 

) 

, 
) 

Administrative Procedure IlIA 
Purchasing & Procurement 
Issued: August 29, 2002 
Revised: 3/9106 
Page 10 of lO 

B. Confidential Information 
Information furnished by vendors andlor contractors regarding price, terms, 
performance specifications, or other data, other than information available at a public 
bid opening will be confidential until after the award. 

C. Conflict of Interest 
No City employee who participates in the selection or approval of a vendor, contractor, 
product, source, specifications, or who has supervisory responsibility for such employee, 
shall have any financial interest in the company. which furnishes the services, supplies, 
material or equipment being purchased. 

D. Inspection and Testing 
The City shall, at its discretion, inspect materials, supplies and equipment delivered to 
determine their conformance with the specifications set forth in the order or contract. 

E. Petty Cash: 
Petty cash is for reimbursing employees for authorized purchases for up to $80. All 
reimbursement requests must be accompanied by a receipt. 

This policy was approved and authorized by the 
City Council on March 9, 2006: 

(flJ ;/;} 
Richard Hill ~ 
City Manager 

EXHIBITS (All forms are available on the Shared Drive: R:IFORMSIFINANCE RELATED 
FORMSIPURCHASING RELATED FOR DEPTS) 

A. Dept. PO approval form - over $10,000 
B. Dept. PO approval form - up to $IOK 
C. Telephone Quotes 
D. Bid Summary Form 

R\Admin Policies\Purchasing & Procurement Policy Rev 3·06..;Policy.doc 



90

, 

APPROVED PURCHASE ORDER 

[ click here & enter today's date] 

[enter Vendor name] 
[enter Attention: (delete if none)] 
[ enter mailing address] 
[enter City, State & Zip[ 

RE: Approved Purchase Order 

To whom it may concern, 

PO# 

EXHIBIT A 

The fo llowing purchase for the City of Capitola has been approved. Unless otherwise stated 
payment tenns are NET 30 days. Please include the following Purchase Order Nwnber on all 
related invoices. 

\ 
; 

Quantity Description 

Authorized by: 

[ E nter name of Dept head or 3uth. person] 

[ Enter your Dept J 

IInternal Use 
l. Complete the following inCannation: 

I Account Code: 

2. POI-dale of Council meeting & item II (example 061803#58) 

TOTAL 

City Manager approval is required: 

Richard Hill, City Manager 

I Account Balance: 

13. Print this form on City Letterhead Md deliver to your vendor (if required). Retain a copy for your records. 

It FOR PAYMENT SUBMIT COpy OF PO TO AlP WITH: I) STAMPED INVOICE 

SAmount 

This fonn is required for all purehases over $10,000. Your department head & the City Manager must sign it. Purchases in excess of $1 0,000, 
Council Approval is required. 

R:\FORMS\FINANCE RELATED FORMS\PURCHASING RELATED FOR DEPTS\Dept. PO appravallarm · over $IQ,OOO.doc 



91

i 
\ , 

EXHIBITB 

APPROVED PURCHASE ORDER 

[ click here & enter today's date] 

[enter Vendor name] 
[enter Attention: (delete ifnone)1 
r enter mailing address] 
[ enter City, State & Zip] 

RE: Approved Purchase Order 

To whom it may concern, 

The following purchase for the City of Capitola has been approved. Unless otherwise stated 
payment tenns are NET 30 days. Please include the following Purchase Order Number On all 
related invoices: [ ( CLICK HERE & ENTER YOUR FIRST & LAST NAME INITIALS 1 
r CLICK HERE & ENTER TODAY'S MONTH DAY & YEAR (MMDDYYlI C 

Quantity Description 

Authorized by: 

[Enter name of Dept head or auth. person 1 
. [ Enter your Dept] 

,0' 

, 

$ Amount 

TOTAL 
Total can't exceed S10,000 

For purchases in excess 0($2,QOO, City Manager 
approval is necessary: 

Richard Hill, City Manager 

2. Print this form on City Letterhead and deljver to your vendor (if required). Retain a copy for your records. 

3. FOR PAYMENT SUBMIT FORM TO AlP WITH: 1) STAMPED INVOICE 2) COpy OF PO 3) PROOF OF THREE BIDS 

TIlis form is required for all purchases between $1,000 • $9,999. It must be signed by your department head or other authorized person. For 
) purchases between $2,000 . $10,000, City Manager approval is mandatory and a copy of this form must be attached to all related invoices and 

delivered to Finance. For purchases in excess ofSIO,OOO, Council Approval is required. 

R:\FORMS\fINANCE RELATED FORMS\PURCHASING RELATED FOR DEPTS\Depl. PO opprovollorm. up to $10K.doc 



92

',- '-
TELEPHONE QUOTES: 

Staff Contact: Exlensi"o"nc' -------- -----------

#1 
Date: Vendor Name: Contact Name: 

IQUANTI UNIT UNIT COST DESCRIPTION 
(1) 10 
(2) 
(3) 
(4) 

, (5) 

TOTAL BID 

#2 
Dale: 

UANTTY 
(1 ) 
(2) 
(3) 
(4) 
(5) 

TOTAL BID 

#3 
Dale: 

(1 ) 
(2) 
(3) 
(4) 
(5) 

TOTAL BID 

10 

ANTITY 

10 

Procedures: 

Freight - if applicable 

Vendor N ", ., ..... 
u,~" UNIT COST 

· 
· 
· 
· 
· 

Freight - if applicable 

- - . __ . -_ ... _. Vendor Name" 
UNIT UNIT CQST 

· 
· 
· 
· 
· 

Freight - if applicable 

The Departments are responsible for obtain ing and documenting quotes 
Circle the number of the bid thai you are awarding 

Contact N (:lllltl. 

LJ",~ ..... RIPTION 

Contact Name" - _. --_. -_ ... _. 
DESCRIPTION 

Telephone Quotes are submitted with request for Purchase Order (PO). - Please complete on your PC 
Sales Tax - in the "SALES" column enter either yes or no 
Freight is entered in the far right column 

'" 

/ 

SALES TAX 
Phone # TOTAL 

yes $ $ 
$ $ 
$ $ 
$ $ 
$ $ 

no $ :~t:=====~: 

SALES TAX 
yes • 

no $ 

SALES TAX 
,,~~ • 

no $ 

Phone # 

Phone # - -- -

• 

1 
$ 

• 

$ 
$ 

TOTAL 

TOTAL 

M 
~ := 

~ 
If the department is not recommending the lowest bidder have the City Manager , initial and date his approval by the bid # selected 

(j 



93

-- ~-
BID SUMMARY 

Staff Contact: Exrensj~o~n~: __________________________________ _ 

#1 
Date: 

I 

gUAtHlIl 
(1 ) 
(2) 
(3) 
(4) 
(5) 

TOTAL BID 

#2 
Dale: 

(1 ) 
(2) 
(3) 
(4) 
(5) 

TOTAL BID 

#3 
Dale: 

(1 ) 
(2) 
(3) 
(4) 
(5) 

TOTAL BID 

10 

AN 
10 

10 

Procedures: 

I 

Vendor Name-
UNIT UNtTCOST 

I 
Freight - if applicable 

- - -- -- --- ... Vendor Name' 
UNIT UNIT COST 

-
· 
· 
· 
· 

Freight - if applicable 

Vendor N ~lT1e; 

u ... ,r UNIT COST 
· 
· 
· 
· 
· 

Freight - if applicable 

The Departments are responsible for obtaining and documenting quotes 
Circle the number of the bid that you are awarding 

Contact Name: 
OESCRIPTIQH 

- -- -._-- -- ---Contact Name-
Q!ii§~RIPTlQN 

Contact N, ~"""; 
DESCR,PTlON 

bid summary are submitted with request for Purchase Order (PO) . - Please complete on your PC 
Sales Tax - in the "SALES" column enter either yes or no 
Freight is entered in the far right column 

SALES TAX 
,es $ 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

no $ 

SALES TAX 
""' .. • 

no $ 

SALES TAX 
yes $ 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

no $ 

If the department is not recommending the lowest bidder have the City Manager , initial and date his approval by the bid # selected 

Phone # 

Phone # - -

Phone # 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

...l 
$ 

• 

! 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
}. 
$ 

\ 
~./ 

,-

TOTAL 

TOTAL 

TOTAL 

~ 
63 
::J 
I::' 



Item #: 6.D.

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF FEBRUARY 23, 2012 

FROM: CITY MANAGER’S DEPARTMENT 

SUBJECT: REVIEW OF AN ORDINANCE TO REDUCE SINGLE-USE PLASTIC AND
PAPER CARRYOUT BAGS 

_______________________________________________________________________________

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Provide direction. 

BACKGROUND: In March of 2010 the City Council supported a regional effort to implement an 
ordinance that would reduce the use of single use plastic and paper carryout bags. Last September, 
after the County of Santa Cruz adopted an ordinance to reduce the use of single-use plastic and 
paper carryout bags, the City Council conceptually supported a similar ordinance.  Soon after, 
“Save the Plastic Bag Coalition” filed a lawsuit against the County seeking to invalidate the 
ordinance.

City staff has held off moving forward with an ordinance for Capitola until the County lawsuit was 
settled.  The County successfully negotiated a settlement with the plaintiffs under which the County 
would agree to amend their Ordinance to exempt restaurants from its requirements, in exchange for 
plaintiff’s agreement to dismiss its litigation.

On February 7, 2012 the County amended the ordinance to exempt restaurants. The ordinance will 
become effective as planned on March 20, 2012. 

DISCUSSION: In conversations with City staff since the settlement agreement with the County, the 
Save the Plastic Bag Coalition (Coalition) was very adamant that the settlement was not based the 
merits of the County’s environmental documentation, which has been the basis of their other 
lawsuits, but on the applicability to restaurants.  Although the Coalitions states that they did not sue 
the County over the environmental documentation, the Coalition states they do not believe the MND 
prepared by the County was adequate. The Coalition reaffirmed their position that all jurisdictions 
who pass plastic bag ban ordinances must prepare a full Environmental Impact Report (EIR) or they 
will consider filing a lawsuit, even with an EIR the Coalition stated they would most likely sue the 
City.

The proposed ordinance which staff presented in October would ban the use of single use plastic 
carryout bags for restaurants and retail businesses, require that all paper carryout bags have a 
minimum of 40% post consumer recycled content, and encourage the use of reusable carryout bags 
in the City of Capitola, thereby reducing the number of bags manufactured, and the number that are 
released to the environment or disposed of in landfills. The proposed ordinance would have 
prohibited retail product stores using plastic carryout bags, and would require them to charge $0.10 
on each paper carryout bag for one year from the date the ordinance would take effect. The charge 
would be increased to $0.25 on each paper carryout bag after the initial one-year period. The ban 
on single use plastic bags would not apply to plastic or paper bags used to protect produce or bulk 
goods or otherwise used to protect items as they are put into a carryout bag at checkout. 

94



02-23-12 AGENDA REPORT:  Plastic Bag Proposal Report 2 

R:\Agenda Staff Reports\2012 Agenda Reports\City Council\02-23-12\6.D. Plastic Bag Proposal 2012_Report.docx

CEQA: The County of Santa Cruz approved a Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) at a hearing 
on September 13, 2011.  The MND concluded all environmental factors could be mitigated to less 
than a significant level with mitigation. The mitigation measure calls for the County to work with the 
Central Coast Recycling Media Coalition (CCRMC) and contribute a minimum of $10,000 per year 
to the CCRMC to support ongoing programs promoting the use of reusable bags. 

The County’s MND could be used to help develop an MND for the City of Capitola.  An MND would 
take approximately four months and cost roughly $10,000.

PUBLIC OUTREACH: Staff will continue its public outreach campaign informing residents and 
business of the proposed ordinance which will include mailings, web site, scroll, free re-usable bag 
distribution, signage, commercials, city newsletter and cart hangers. Public outreach efforts to date 
include free distribution of reusable bags to several large grocery stores and schools, as well as 
signs for businesses reminding shoppers to bring their reusable bags, City Newsletter and two 
articles in “Wasteline” (Green Waste Recovery publication).   This measure will help to reduce litter 
throughout the City and reduce the impact of plastic bags on our beaches and the marine 
environment.

FISCAL IMPACT: The cost to prepare an MND is approximately $10,000.  Funding has not been 
identified for this project.

ATTACHMENT

1. Draft Ordinance

Report Prepared By:  Lisa G. Murphy     
   Administrative Services Director   

         Reviewed and Forwarded 
            By City Manager:   ______

95



96

DRAFT 
ATTACHMENT 1 

ORDINANCE NO. __ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
ENACTING A NEW CHAPTER X.XX OF THE CAPITOLA MUNICIPAL CODE RELATING TO 

THE REDUCTION OF SINGLE-USE PLASTIC AND PAPER CARRYOUT BAGS 

BE IT HEREBY ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA AS 
FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Chapter X.XX is hereby added to the Capitola Municipal Code to read as follows: 

"CHAPTER -----
SINGLE-USE PLASTIC AND PAPER CARRYOUT BAG REDUCTION 

Sections: 

X.XX.010 Purpose and Findings 
X.XX.020 Definitions 
X.XX.030 Ban on Plastic Carryout Bags and Store Charge for Single-Use Paper Carryout Bags 
X.XX.040 Implementation 
X.XX.050 Exemptions Allowing Single Use Bags 
X.XX.060 Enforcement 
X.XX.070 Violations 
X.XX.080 Severability 
X.XX.090 Effective Date 
X.XX.100 No Conflict With Federal or State Law 
X.XX.110 Preemption 

x.xx.010 Purpose and Findings. 
A. It is the intent of the. City of Capitola, in enacting Chapter to eliminate the common 

use of plastic single-use carryout bags, encourage the use of reusable bags by consumers and 
retailers, and to reduce the consumption of single-use bags in general. 

B. Whereas the City of Capitola has an obligation to protect the environment, the economy, 
and public health. The City of Capitola has a 75 percent waste reduction goal, which is to be 
reached by waste reduction, reuse, recycling, and composting. The City of Capitola makes the 
following findings: 

1. Globally, an estimated 500 billion to 1 trillion petroleum-based plastic bags are 
used each year, which equals over 1 million per minute, the production and use of which 
uses over 12 million barrels of oil. The Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery 
(CalRecycle) estimates that Californians use nearly 20 billion single-use plastic bags per 
year and discard over 100 hundred plastic bags per second. Further the Environmental 
Protection Agency estimates that only 5 percent of the plastic bags in California and 
nationwide are currently recycled. 

2. The production and disposal of plastic bags causes significant environmental 
impacts, including contamination of the environment, the deaths of thousands of marine 
animals through ingestion and entanglement, widespread litter and debasement of the urban 
environment, and increased waste disposal costs. 



97

ORDINANCE NO. 2 

3. Most plastic carryout bags do not biodegrade, but instead persist in the 
environment for hundreds of years; rather than breaking down, they slowly break up through 
abrasion, tearing, and photodegradation into toxic plastic bits that contaminate soil and 
water, while entering the food web when animals inadvertently ingest these materials. Toxic 
substances present in plastics are known to cause death or reproductive failure in fish, 
shellfish, wildlife, and in the humans ingesting the fish. 

4. Plastic bits absorb dangerous compounds such as chlorodipheny/dichloroethylene 
(DOE), polychlorinated biphenyls (PCB), and other toxic materials present in ocean water. 
Plastics have been found to concentrate these toxic chemicals at levels of up to 1 million 
times the levels found in seawater. Plastic bits have displaced plankton in the Pacific Gyre. 

5. The U.S. Marine Mammal Commission estimates that 267 marine species have 
been reported entangled in or having ingested marine debris. Plastic can constrict the 
animals' movements or block their digestive system, killing the animals through starvation, 
exhaustion, or infection from deep wounds caused by tightening material. 

6. According to Save Our Shores, a Santa Cruz based marine conservation non
profit that conducts beach, river, and inland cleanups in the coastal regions of Santa Cruz, 
San Mateo, and Monterey Counties, from June 2007 to May 2011, over 400 cleanups were 
conducted where volunteers removed a total of 26,000 piastic bags. Unchecked, this material 
would have likely entered the marine environment of the Monterey Bay National Marine 
Sanctuary. 

7. Plastic bags returned to supermarkets may be recycled into plastic lumber; 
however, a very low percentage of bags are actually returned. Recycling bags into lumber 
does not reduce the impact of making new plastic carryout bags. 

8. Compostable plastic carryout bags, as currently manufactured, do not solve the 
problems of wildlife damage, litter, or resource use addressed by this ordinance. 
Compostable carryout bags are designed to remain intact until placed in a professional 
compost facility, so they do not degrade quickly as litter or in a marine environment. 
Producing compostable bags consumes nearly as much fossil fuel as noncompostable bags. 
Mixing compostable bags with regular plastic bags prevents recycling or composting either of 
them. Therefore, there is no exemption in this ordinance for compostable carryout bags. 

9. According to Californians Against Waste, Californians pay up to $200 per 
household each year in State and Federal taxes to clean up litter and waste associated with 
single-use bags, on top of the $40 per household per year in hidden grocery costs to offset 
the expense of the nearly 1,000 "free" bags received from grocers. 

10. Reusable bags are readily available from numerous sources and vendors. Many 
grocery and other retail establishments throughout the City of Capitola already offer reusable 
bags for sale at a price as low as 50 cents. 

11. This ordinance recognizes that there are energy and environmental 
consequences of using paper bags. While paper bags do not have the end-of-use impacts of 
plastic bags, they may use comparable or more energy and resources to manufacture. For 
this reason, a store charge on paper bags is indicated, as an incentive to reduce their use 
and encourage reusable bags. Paper bags that contain a minimum of 40 percent post 
consumer recycled content have fewer negative impacts than virgin paper bags. 



98

ORDINANCE NO. 3 

12. Paper shopping bags with 40 percent post consumer recycled content are easily 
available, and such bags are in wide use by City of Capitola merchants. 

13. State law currently prohibits local jurisdictions from placing fees on single-use 
checkout plastic bags. Therefore, several California Cities have adopted or are pursuing a 
ban as the most effective remaining means to eliminate the impacts these plastic bags 
cause. State law does not prohibit jurisdictions from placing fees on paper bags. 

X.XX.020 Definitions. 
A. For the purposes of this Chapter, the following definitions apply: 

1. "Carryout bags" means bags' provided by retailers to customers at the point of sale 
to hold customers' purchases. "Carryout bags" do not include bags used to contain loose 
items prior to checkout, such as meat, produce, and bulk goods, and does not include 
prepackaged products. 

2. "Single-use plastic bag" or "single-use plastic carryout bag" means a single-use 
carryout bag of any size that is made from plastic and provided at the point of sale to 
customers by a retail establishment. Single-use plastic bags include both compostable and 
non-compostable carryout bags. 

3. "Single-use paper bag" means a checkout bag provided by a retail establishment at 
the point of sale that is made from paper and is not a reusable bag. 

4. "Recyclable" means material that can be sorted, cleansed, and reconstituted using 
the City's available recycling collection programs for the purpose of using the altered form in 
the manufacture of a new product. Recycling does not include burning, incinerating, 
converting, or otherwise destroying sold waste. 

5. "Reusable bag" means any bag with handles that is specifically designed and 
manufactured for multiple reuse, and is either 1) made of cloth or other washable woven 
fabric, or 2) made of durable material that is at least 2.25 mils thick. A "reusable bag" may be 
made of recyclable plastic such as high density polyethylene (HOPE), low density 
polyethylene (LOPE), or polypropylene. 

6. "Retail establishment" or "retail store" means all sales outlets, stores, shops, 
restaurants, vehicles, or other places of business located within the City of Capitola, which 
operate primarily to sell or convey goods, including "to-go" food, directly to the ultimate 
consumer. 

7. "Exempted uses" means those point-of-purchase or delivery sales, which have 
received an exemption under Section X.XX.050 that allows the use of single-use bags. 

8. "Prepared food" means foods or beverages which are prepared on vendor's 
premises by cooking, chopping, slicing, mixing, freezing, or squeezing, and which require no 
further preparation to be consumed. "Prepared food" does not <include any raw uncooked 
meat product or fruits and vegetables, which are not chopped, squeezed, or mixed. 

9. "Take-out food" means prepared food or beverages requiring no further preparation 
to be consumed, and which are generally purchased in order to be consumed off restaurant 
or retail food vendor's premises. 



99

ORDINANCE NO. 4 

X.XX.030 Ban on plastic bags and store charge for single-use paper carryout bags. 

A. No retail establishment shall provide plastic carryout bags to customers at the point of 
sale, except as permitted in this chapter. 

B. Single-use paper carryout bags provided to customers shall contain a minimum of 40 
percent post consumer recycled paper fiber, and be recyclable in the City of Capitola's curbside 
recycling program. 

C. During the period of time starting on the date that this chapter takes effect and continuing 
for one year thereafter, retail establishments shall charge a minimum 1 O-cent fee for each single-use 
paper checkout bag provided to customers at the point of sale. At the completion of the initial one
year period established by this subdivision, the charge shall increase to a minimum 25 cents per bag 
provided. Retail establishments shall keep annual records of paper bag distribution to be made 
available to the City Manager or designee upon request. The records shall be evaluated annually for 
the first five years by the City to ensure the effectiveness of the ordinance. If it is determined that 
single-use paper bag or plastic reusable bag use has increased beyond anticipated levels, the City 
Council shall consider increasing the store charge to improve the effectiveness of the ordinance. 

D. The charge imposed pursuant to this section shall not be applied to customers 
participating in the California Special Supplemental Food Program for Women, Infants, and Children, 
the State Department of Social Services Food Stamp program, or other government subsidized 
purchase programs for low-income residents. 

E. Notwithstanding the fee to be charged in Section X.XX.XXX(C) on single-use paper 
carryout bags, and notwithstanding the definition of "retail establishment" or "retail store" in section 
X.XX.020, single-use paper carryout bags may be distributed by food vendors for the transportation 
of prepared take-out food intended for consumption off the food vendor's premises without charging 
a fee. 

F. The ban on single-use plastic bags and the charge on single-use paper bags would not 
apply to plastic or paper bags used to protect produce, meat, or otherwise used to protect items as 
they are put into a carryout bag at checkout. Other examples include: paper bags to protect bottles, 
plastic bags around ice cream or other wet items, paper bags used to weigh candy, paper pharmacy 
bags or paper bags to protect greeting cards. 

G. Retail establishments are strongly encouraged to make reusable bags available for sale to 
customers at a reasonable price. Reusable bags which meet the requirements of this ordinance 
may be distributed without charge during limited-duration promotional events. 

H. Retail establishments shall indicate on the customer transaction receipt the number of 
carryout bags provided, and the total amount charged for those bags. 

I. City of Capitola contractors and special events promoters, and their vendors, shall not 
provide single-use plastic carryout bags to participants while performing under a City of Capitola 
contract or permit. 



100

ORDINANCE NO. 5 

X.XX.040 Implementation. 
A. Sixty days before this ordinance takes effect, the City of Capitola shall post, mail or deliver 

a copy of it to retail establishments within the city limits of the City of Capitola. 

B. The City of Capitola will distribute to each store a reproducible placard designed to inform 
shoppers of the City of Capitola policy for carryout bags. 

X.XX.050 Exemptions allowing single use bags. 
A. The City Manager, or the manager's designee, may exempt a retail establishment from 

the requirement set forth in Section X.XX.030 of this chapter for a one-year period upon the retail 
establishment showing, in writing, that this chapter would create an undue' hardship or practical 
difficulty not generally applicable to other persons in similar circumstances. The decision to grant or 
deny an exemption shall be in writing, and the City Manager or the manager's designee's decision 
shall be final. 

B. An exemption application shall include all information necessary for the City Manager or 
the manager's designee to make a decision, including but not limited to documentation showing 
factual support for the claimed exemption. 

C. The City Manager or managers' designee may approve the exemption application in 
whole or in part, with or without conditions. 

X.XX.060 Enforcement. Enforcement of this ordinance shall be as follows: 
A. The City Manager, or designee, shall have primary responsibility for enforcement of this 

ordinance and shall have authority to issue citations for violation of this chapter. The City Manager, 
or designee, is authorized to establish regulations or administrative procedures to ensure 
compliance with this chapter. 

B. A person or entity violating or failing to comply with any of the requirements of this chapter 
shall be guilty of an infraction. 

C. The City of Capitola may seek legal, injunctive, or any other relief to enforce the 
provisions of this chapter and any regulation or administrative procedure authorized by it. 

D. The remedies and penalties provided in this chapter are cumulative and not exclusive of 
one another. 

, E. The City Manager or designee may inspect any retail establishment's premises to verify 
compliance with this ordinance. 

X.XX.070 Violations. Vioiations of this ordinance shall be enforced as follows: 
A. Violation of this chapter is hereby declared to be a public nuisance. Any violation 

described in the preceding paragraph shall be subject to abatement by the City of Capitola, as well 
as any other remedies that may be permitted by law for public nuisances, and may be enforced by 
injunction, upon a showing of violation. 

B. Upon a first violation by a retail establishment, the City Manager, or designee, shall mail a 
written warning to the retail establishment. The warning shall recite the violation, and advise that 
future violations may result in fines. 

C. Upon a second or subsequent violation by a retail establishment, the following penalties 
will apply: 



101

ORDINANCE NO. 6 

1. A fine not exceeding one hundred dollars ($100) for the first violation that occurs 
30 days or more after the first warning. 

2. A fine not exceeding two hundred dollars ($200) for the second violation that 
occurs 60 days or more after the first warning. 

3. A fine not exceeding five hundred dollars ($500) for the third violation that occurs 
90 days or more after the first warning. 

4. A fine not exceeding five hundred dollars ($500) for every 30 day period not in 
compliance, that occurs 90 days or more after the first warning. 

D. Special events promoters and their vendors who violate this ordinance in connection with 
commercial or non-commercial special events shall be assessed fines as follows: 

1. A fine not exceeding two hundred dollars ($200) for an event of 1 to 200 persons. 

2. A fine not exceeding four hundred dollars ($400) for an event of 201 to 400 
persons. 

3. A fine not exceeding six hundred dollars ($600) for an event of 401 to 600 persons. 

4. A fine not exceeding one thousand dollars ($1,000) for an event of 601 or more 
persons. 

E. Remedies and fines under this section are cumulative. 

X.XX.080 Severability. 
If any word, phrase, sentence, part, section, subsection, or other portion of this chapter, or 

any application thereof to any person or circumstance is declared void, unconstitutional, or invalid for 
any reason, then such word, phrase, sentence, part, section, subsection, or other portion, or the 
proscribed application thereof, shall be severable, and the remaining provisions of this chapter, and 
all applications thereof, not having been declared void, unconstitutional or invalid, Shall remain in full 
force and effect. The City of Capitola hereby declares that it would have passed this title, and each 
section, subsection, sentence, clause, and phrase thereof, irrespective of the fact that anyone or 
more sections, subsections, sentences, clauses, or phrases had been declared' invalid or 
unconstitutional. 

X.XX.090 Effective date. 
This ordinance shall become effective six (6) months after the date of final passage by the 

City of Capitola City Council. 

X.XX.100 No conflict with Federal or State law. 
Nothing in this ordinance shall be interpreted or applied so as to create any requirement, 

power, or duty in conflict with any Federal or State law. 

X.XX.110 Preemption. 
The provisions of this chapter shall be null and void if State or Federal legislation, or 

administrative regulation, takes effect with the same or substantially similar provisions as contained 
in this chapter. The City Council shall determine whether or not identical or substantially similar 
statewide legislation has been enacted or regulations issued." 



102

ORDINANCE NO. 7 

Section 3. This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force on ___ _ ,2012. 

This ordinance was introduced on the _ day of , 20_, and was passed and 
adopted by the City Council of the City of Capitola on the _ day of __ , 20_, by the following 
vote: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

DISQUALIFIED: 

APPROVED: ________________________ _ 
Dennis R. Norton, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

________________________ ,MMC 
Pamela Greeninger, City Clerk 

R:\Agenda Staff Reports\2011 Agenda Reports\10-13-11\Plastic Bag ProposaLOrdinance draft.docx 



Item #: 6.E. 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF FEBRUARY 23, 2012

FROM:  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

SUBJECT: 809/815/819 BAY AVENUE         APPLICATION #10-038  APN: 035-021-43 
APPEAL OF A PLANNING COMMISSION DENIAL FOR A PROPOSED AMENDMENT 
TO A MASTER USE PERMIT (NOB HILL CENTER) TO RELOCATE THE RECYCLING 
FACILITIES ON THE SITE LOCATED IN THE CC (COMMUNITY COMMERCIAL) 
ZONING DISTRICT.

 PROPERTY OWNER:  BAY CREEK PROPERTIES / FILED 5/18/10 
 REPRESENTATIVE:  CRAIG FRENCH 
_____________________________________________________________________________

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  It is recommended that the City Council approve application #10-038, 
subject to the attached Conditions and Findings (Attachment 4), including a new condition requiring the 
installation of additional sound deadening material in the transfer container (Condition #2). 

BACKGROUND:
As part of the Nob Hill Center renovation project (Application #02-082), a Master Use Permit was 
approved which conditioned the location of the recycling facilities on the site.  Condition #19 reads as 
follows:

19. Recycling facilities and operations shall be located at the site identified behind the carwash.  
Attended recycling operations shall be restricted to Thursday through Monday between the 
hours of 11:00AM-6:00PM, except Saturday when hours may be 8:30AM-5:00PM.  
Businesses themselves shall not conduct noise-generating recycling activities within exterior 
portions of the shopping center between the hours of 6:00PM-8:00AM, each day of the week. 

On May 5, 2010 the City received a complaint that the facilities had been moved from the area next to 
the carwash to the parking lot area adjacent to the Nob Hill and CVS receiving area.  Redtree 
Properties was contacted by the City and made aware of the above mentioned condition.  Redtree  
quickly responded with an application to gain approval for the relocation.

On June 3, 2010, the Planning Commission considered the relocation of the recycling facilities with 
several neighbors expressing opposition to the new location due to noise and the volume of customers 
that it attracts.  The Commission denied the proposal on a 5-0 vote, stating that the new location was 
inappropriate due to the impacts on the residential neighborhood.  An appeal from Raleys/Nob Hill 
(Attachment 3) was received on June 11, 2010. 

On September 9, 2010, the City Council heard the appeal.  The hearing appeal was continued, with 
direction to staff and the parties involved to work out alternative locations or other measures to mitigate 
the issues raised.  Staff was directed to return to the City Council within 60 days. 

On September 21, 2010, the Community Development Department staff met with representatives of 
the Sleep Center, Redtree, Nob Hill, CVS and Nexcycle in an effort to resolve the current appeal 
pending before City Council.  Redtree indicated that the current location is unacceptable and identified 
an envelope on the south-east side of the property that would be acceptable.  The group largely 

103



2/23/12 AGENDA REPORT:  809/815/819 Bay Avenue Recycling Facility Relocation 2 

R:\Agenda Staff Reports\2012 Agenda Reports\City Council\02-23-12\6.E. Bay Ave 809-819 Recycling Facility_Report.doc 

discussed operational changes that Nexcycle could implement to mitigate and address noise concerns 
raised by surrounding residents.  Based on the discussion, staff outlined an approach to follow in order 
to return to Council with an appropriate location and information in order to render a decision.  It was 
decided that: 

� Planning staff would take noise readings to establish a baseline for recycling operations as 
currently permitted. 

� Planning staff would contact residential neighbors to inform them the City will temporarily allow 
the recycling center to be relocated to the south-east area adjacent to CVS for approximately 
one week to obtain noise readings. 

� Staff would take noise meter readings during the week the recycling center is operating at the 
new location. 

� After a week, the recycling center would return to the approved location near the car wash. 
� Nexcycle would submit a new operations plan to address noise issues, including a permanent 

container with sound proofing to use when transferring recyclables. 
� Staff would prepare a staff report for the November 10th Council meeting with noise information 

gathered under Nexcycle’s new operations plan.

Staff took noise readings for several weeks during the month of October, and organized a 
neighborhood meeting at the site on October 26, 2010.  Approximately eight neighbors attended, in 
addition to a representative of Nexcycle.  Staff explained that the City had been taking baseline noise 
readings and that Nexcycle would be moving their operations to the proposed location for one week so 
that we could take additional readings.  The Nexcycle representative described their proposed 
procedural changes and the sound proofing container that was being prepped.  Staff then listened to 
neighbor’s concerns and suggestions, which included the following: 

� Have a sign at the approved location to inform customers of the temporary location of the 
recycling facilities during the test week. 

� Concern with transients loitering at Peery Park and the surrounding area. 
� Remove the benches completely from Peery Park. 
� Concern with increased traffic and conflicts between pedestrians and vehicles near the 

proposed location. 
� Nexcycle should have after-hours contact information so neighbors have someone to 

contact.
� Add a condition of approval that limits the crushing of glass. 
� If the new location is approved, revisit the use after six months. 
� Relocate the facility directly adjacent to the CVS building as opposed to at the base of 

Peary Park. 

After the meeting, Redtree granted Nexcycle permission to temporarily (one week) move the facility 
adjacent to CVS as suggested by the neighbors.  The new soundproof container and standard 
collection container were moved into place on Friday, October 29th.

On November 10, 2010, the City Council approved the temporary relocation of the recycling facility to a 
location adjacent to the CVS building for a six month period, subject to conditions of approval, and 
directed staff to continue to take noise readings and observations at the site.  The appeal was to return 
to Council for consideration after six months of operation. 

104



2/23/12 AGENDA REPORT:  809/815/819 Bay Avenue Recycling Facility Relocation 3 

R:\Agenda Staff Reports\2012 Agenda Reports\City Council\02-23-12\6.E. Bay Ave 809-819 Recycling Facility_Report.doc 

DISCUSSION:
In March of 2010, the recycling center was moved to the new location adjacent to CVS.  The facility 
has been operating Tuesday through Saturday between the hours of 11am and 6pm.  No complaints 
regarding the recycling facility have been received over the 8-month review period.  Staff has taken 
noise readings over the last several months and has compiled the information for the City Council to 
review.

Noise

Chapter 17.60.030 of the Zoning Code provides considerations for approving Conditional Use Permits. 
Section 17.60.030(E)(7) specifically addresses noise constraints for small collection facilities sited in a 
commercial or industrial zone.  The section states that small collection facilities “Shall not exceed noise 
levels of 60 dBA as measured from the property line of residentially zoned or occupied property or 
otherwise shall not exceed seventy dBA.”

The following are the noise readings taken by staff from March through October 2011.  The readings 
were taken at the top of Peery Park at the residential property line with a Quest Technologies sound 
level meter that was calibrated in November of 2010. 

Date Time Observations Lowest 
dBa

Average
dBa

Highest
dBa

Cause of Peak 
dBa

3/17 12:40pm Freeway noise, loading 
area activity, no transients 

48.2 50 60.4 Loading area, 
moving of pallets 

3/30 4:45pm Freeway noise, truck 
delivery, no transients 

49.7 52 58.6 Shutting of truck 
door

4/14 12:20pm Trucks unloading at dock, 
freeway noise, residential 
construction, no transients 

48.9 51 57.7 Trucks unloading 

4/25 1:30pm Truck delivery, no transients 44.8 52 60.4 Truck delivery 
5/11 11:55am Windy conditions, several 

trucks unloading, no 
transients

45.5 51 72.6 Delivery truck 
brakes

5/19 12:15pm Freeway noise, loading 
dock noise, no transients 

47.2 49 60.4 Loading dock 
equipment

6/9 11:45am Freeway noise, no 
transients

48.7 50 70.2 Truck gate 
coming down 

6/16 4:45pm Freeway noise, windy 
conditions, truck idling, no 
transients

49.9 51 58.9 Car driving by in 
neighborhood

7/14 1:10pm Freeway noise, windy 
conditions, no transients 

48.5 50 57.7 Loading dock 
activity

7/27 11:30am Freeway noise, several 
delivery trucks, no 
transients

49.3 51 64.7 Pallet dropping 
off of truck 

8/11 5:00pm Freeway noise, no 
transients

50.1 52 56.4 People talking 
nearby

8/24 11:50am Freeway noise, no 
transients, loading dock 
activity, no transients 

47.9 50 62.5 Loading dock 
activity

105



2/23/12 AGENDA REPORT:  809/815/819 Bay Avenue Recycling Facility Relocation 4 

R:\Agenda Staff Reports\2012 Agenda Reports\City Council\02-23-12\6.E. Bay Ave 809-819 Recycling Facility_Report.doc 

9/7 11:10am Freeway noise, truck 
deliveries, noticeable line of 
customers at recycling 
center, no transients 

46.7 50 72.6 Truck gate 
release

9/21 12:15pm Freeway noise, no 
transients

47.2 51 64.8 Truck back-up 
warning sound 

10/20 12:40pm Freeway noise, loading 
dock noise, no transients 

47.0 51 57.3 Truck unloading 

10/28 11:10am Freeway noise, noticeable 
line of customers at 
recycling center, no 
transients

46.7 50 72.4 Truck unloading 

While observing the area, staff found the receiving area for the shopping center to be busy throughout 
the day, with the majority of noise generated from a variety of trucks backing up and unloading stock.  
Noise generated from the loading dock had a general range from 53dBa up to 72dBa in the highest 
cases.

While observing the recycling facility, staff found that in most cases there was little activity occurring.  
However, when there was activity, the most audible noise was the transferring of glass, which had a 
general range of 51dBa to 60dBa.  There were three instances where the transfer of glass exceeded 
60dBa, reaching a level of 64 dBa.  The transfer and crushing of plastics and aluminum was barely 
audible.

Staff recognizes the recycling center is an important use that provides a valuable service to the 
community and helps the city meet its recycling goals.  While the new location is closer to residential 
properties in comparison to the old site, it still maintains a distance of approximately 140’ from the 
nearest residence.  The new location is also close to the loading dock area where there has historically 
been noise generating operations occurring throughout the day.

Over the last several months of observation, staff has found the recycling facility to fall within the 
allowable decibel range, however there were three instances when it exceeded the 60dBa limit.  In 
order to address this, staff recommends that additional noise insulation be added to the transfer 
container.  The following condition has been added to the conditions of approval to address the sound 
proofing:

2.  Additional sound deadening material shall be added to the transfer container in order to 
bring the noise generation of the recycling facility within the allowable 60dBa sound limit. 
This shall be completed within 2 months of approval and sound tested by city staff when 
completed.

FISCAL IMPACT - N/A

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment 1 – November 10, 2010 City Council Minutes
Attachment 2 – November 10, 2010 City Council Staff Report with attachments 
Attachment 3 – Project Vicinity Map and Photos 
Attachment 4 – Conditions and Findings 
     
Report Prepared By:  Ryan Bane 

Senior Planner    Reviewed and Forwarded
           By City Manager:  _____ 

106



ATTACHMENT 1

107

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL - NOVEMBER 10, 2010 11805 

3. CONSENT CALENDAR (Continued) 

O. Receive and file the withdrawal of appeal of the Planning Commission's 
approval of Project Application #10-072 granting Conditional Use and Sign 
Permits for the Capitola Target Store to be Located at 1825 41 ,t Avenue. APN 
034-261-51 . Property Owner: Target Corporation. Representative: Target 
Corporation c/o John Dewes. [730-101 
This item was pulled for separate discussion. (See discussion and action on page 

11809.) 

E. Approve proposed Cellular Telephone Use Administrative Pol icy. [100-101 
Administrative Policies Binder] 
Prior to action on the Consent Calendar, Council Member Nicol questioned Item 

3.E. pertaining to the Cellular Telephone Use Policy as it relates to the revision to 
paragraph 4.h. He asked for the rationale behind that clause. City Manager Goldstein 
provided an example and said the paragraph clarifies that checking your blackberrY at 
home does not constitute overtime. 

ACTION : Council Member Nicol moved, seconded by Council Member Norton, to approve the 
Cellular Telephone Use Administrative Policy, as submitted. The motion carried on the 
following vote: AYES: Council Members Norton, Nicol, Begun, and Mayor Storey. NOES: 
None. ABSENT: None. ABSTAIN: Council Member Graves. 

4. '1l"..lE!io\IJl .... I.COOI<IE!J>iRINSS---
--=-¥----'.----~.~ ... ..--:-................ -. 

A. Continued Public Hearing on Project Application #10-038, 809/815/819 Bay 
Avenue, to Consider Appeal of a Planning Commission Denial for a Proposed 
Amendment to a Master Use Permit (Nob Hill Center) to Relocate the 
Recycling Facilities on the Site Located in the CC (Community Commercial) 
Zoning District; APN: 035-021-43; Filed 5118110; Property Owner: Bay Creek 
Properties; Representative: Craig French. [730-10] 
Senior Planner Bane summarized the written agenda report. Utilizing a PowerPoint 

Presentation, he provided background information regarding this application and discussed 
the neighborhood meeting between residents, property owner and recycler. He reviewed 
the neighbors' concerns and suggestions made at the meeting . He clarified that the hours 
of operation are Tuesday through Saturday from 11 am to 6 pm. As part of this proposal, 
he said staff has added new conditions 5 through 8 for approval of the project application. 
Following his report, Senior Planner Bane responded to questions of council members. 

Mayor Storey opened the public hearing at 8:04 p.m. 

John Henken, 640 Center Street, said he was not notified of the neighborhood 
meeting. He then discussed decibel readings reported by staff, readings that he recorded, 
noise reduction and possible solutions. Mr. Henken submitted his statements in writing for 
the record . 

Tammy Tahara, resident of Riverview Drive with her partner Roy Horn, commented 
on the noise generated by the recycling center, especially the glass transfer process, which 
is very loud and can be heard in her home with the doors and windows closed. She also 
commented that a resident from across Soquel Creek on Wharf Road came across the 
bridge to see what was causing the loud noise in her neighborhood. 

Kate Arrieta, Center Street resident, thanked Craig French for moving the recycling 
structure closer to the CVS building. She suggested making the pedestrian walkway more 
noticeable and asked if the hours of operation could be during daylight hours only, as it is 
dark by 5 p.m. 



108

11806 CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL - NOVEMBER 10, 2010 

PUBLIC HEARINGS (Continued) 4 . A. 

Mayor Storey closed the public hearing at 8:14 p.m. 

Considerable Council discussion was followed by this action: 
ACTION: Council Member Norton moved, seconded by Council Member Begun, to approve the 

recommended action for Project Application #10·038 for a proposed amendment to a Master 
Use Permit for Nob Hill Center to relocate the recycling facilities on the site, as follows: 

1. Approved the temporary relocation of the recycling facility adjacent to the CVS building 
for a six-month period, subject to the Conditions and Findings of approval (Attachment 4 
of the agenda report) with Condition #12 changed to read: MThe facility shall operate 
only during the hours between 11 am and 6 pm on Tuesday through Saturday." 

2. Directed staff to continue to take noise readings and observations at the site; and 
3. Continued the appeal for consideration by the City Council ' in six months. 

Mayor Storey asked how staff is going to evaluate whether it has been successful in 6 
months when this item returns. Senior Planner Bane said the decibel levels and response of 
the neighborhood would determine its success. 

The motion carried on the following vote: AYES: Council Members Graves, Norton, 
Nicol, Begun, and Mayor Storey. NOES: None. ABSENT: None. ABSTAIN: None. 

5, OTHER BUSINESS 

A. Consider Capitola-Soquel Chamber of Commerce request for suspending 
parking meter enforcement in the Village from Friday, November 26, 2010, 
through Saturday, December 25, 2010, and request to increase the 2-hour 
parking limit to 3 hours. [470-30] 
Toni Castro, Capitola-Soquel Chamber of Commerce, said she had an additional 

request from the Capitola Village and Wharf Business Improvement Area to hang banners 
on Monterey and Capitola Avenues from November 25 to December 25, 2010, informing 
the public of the Holiday Parking in the Village. Ms. Castro responded to questions of 
council members regarding the request for 3-hour parking, saying it would give shoppers 
more time to shop and eat in the Village. 

Capitola Village and Wharf Business Improvement Area member Carin Hanna 
informed the council that the BIA members were informed of th is request and agrees to try 
it out for a month. 

Council Member Norton said he would like to see more businesses open during the 
evenings during the holiday season. Mrs. Hanna explained the difficulty of hiring and 
training people for a short period of time. 

City Manager Goldstein commented on the additional request for banners. Since the 
city manager has the discretion to' approve requests for banners , the city council does' not 
have to deal with that additional request. 

Council discussion was followed by th is action: 
ACTION : Council Member Graves moved, seconded by Council Member Begun, to approve the 

request by the Capitola Soquel Chamber of Commerce to suspend parking meter enforcement 
in the VlIIage from Friday, November 26, 2010, through Saturday, December 25, 2010, and 
approved a 3-hour parking limit in the Village during the Holiday Season, as requested. The 
motion carried unanimously. 



ATTACHMENT 2

109

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

Item #: 4.A. 

MEETING OF NOVEMBER 10, 2010 

FROM: COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

DATE: NOVEMBER 3, 2010 

SUBJECT: 809/815/819 BAY AVENUE #10-038 APN: 035-021-43 
Appeal of a Planning Commission denial for a proposed amendment to a Master Use 
Permit (Nob Hill Center) to relocate the recycling facilities on the site located in the CC 
(Community Commercial) Zoning District. 
Property Owner: Bay Creek Properties 1 Filed 5/18/10 
Representative: Craig French 

Recommended Action: 
Staff recommends the following for application #10-038: 

1. Allow the temporary relocation of the recycling facility adjacent to the CVS building for a six 
month period, subject to the attached conditions of approval (Attachment 4); 

2. Direct staff to continue to take noise readings and observations at the site; and 
3. Continue the appeal and have it return to Council for consideration in six months. 

BACKGROUND 

As part of the Nob Hill Center renovation project (Application #02-082), a Master Use Permit was 
approved which conditioned the location of the recycling facilities on the site. Condition #19 reads as 
follows: 

19. Recycling facilities and operations shall be located at the site identified behind the carwash. 
Attended recycling operations shall be restricted to Thursday through Monday between the 
hours of 11 :00AM-6:00PM, except Saturday when hours may be 8:30AM-5:00PM. 
Businesses themselves shall not conduct noise-generating recycling activities within exterior 
portions of the shopping center between the hours of 6:00PM-8:00AM, each day of the week. 

On May 5, 2010 the City received a complaint that the facilities had been moved from the area next to 
the carwash to the parking lot area adjacent to the Nob Hill and CVS receiving area. Redtree 
Properties was contacted by the City and made aware of the above mentioned condition. They quickly 
responded with an application to gain approval for the relocation. 

On June 3, 2010, the Planning Commission considered the relocation of the recycling facilities with 
several neighbors expressing opposition to the new location due to noise and the volume of customers 
that it attracts. The Commission denied the proposal on a 5-0 vote, stating that the new location was 
inappropriate due to the impacts on the residential neighborhood. An appeal from Raleys/Nob Hill 
(Attachment 3) was received on June 11, 2010. 

On September 9,2010, the City Council heard the appeal. The hearing appeal was continued, with 
direction to staff and the parties involved to work out alternative locations or other measures to mitigate 
the issues raised. Staff was directed to return to the City Council within 60 days. 



110

11-10-10 AGENDA REPORT: 809/815/819 Bay Avenue 2 

DISCUSSION 
On September 21, 2010, the Community Development Department staff met with representatives of the 
Sleep Center, Redtree, Nob Hill, CVS and Nexcycle in an effort to resolve the current appeal pending 
before City Council. Redtree indicated that the current location is unacceptable and identified an 
envelope on the south-east side of the property that would be acceptable. The group largely discussed 
operational changes that Nexcycle could implement to mitigate and address noise concems raised by 
surrounding residents. Based on the discussion, staff outlined an approach to follow in order to retum 
to Council with an appropriate location and information in order to render a decision. It was decided 
that: 

• Planning staff would take noise readings to establish a baseline for recycling operations as 
currently permitted: 

• Planning staff would contact residential neighbors to inform them the City will temporarily allow 
the recycling center to be relocated to the south-east area adjacent to CVS for approximately 
one week to obtain noise readings. 

• Staff would take noise meter readings during the week the recycling center is operating at the 
new location. 

• After a week, the recycling center would return to the approved location near the car wash. 
• Nexcycle would submit a new operations plan to address noise issues, including a permanent 

container with sound proofing to use when transferring recyclables. 
• Staff would prepare a staff report for the November 10th Council meeting with noise information 

gathered under Nexcycle's new operations plan. 

Staff took noise readings for several weeks during the month of October, and organized a 
neighborhood meeting at the site on October 26,2010. Approximately eight neighbors attended, in 
addition to a representative of Nexcycle. Staff explained that the City had been taking baseline noise 
readings and that Nexcycle would be moving their operations to the proposed location for one week so 
that we could take additional readings. The Nexcycle representative described their proposed 
procedural changes and the sound proofing container that was being prepped. Staff then listened to 
neighbor's concerns and suggestions, which included the following: 

• Have a sign at the approved location to inform customers of the temporary location of the 
recycling facilities during the test week. 

• Concern with transients lOitering at Peery Park and the surrounding area. 
• Remove the benches completely from Peery Park. 
• Concern with increased traffic and conflicts between pedestrians and vehicles near the 

proposed location. 
• Nexcycle should have after-hours contact information so neighbors have someone to 

contact. 
• Add a condition of approval that limits the crushing of glass. 
• If the new location is approved, revisit the use after six months. 
• Relocate the facility directly adjacent to the CVS building as opposed to at the base of Peary 

Park. 

After the meeting, Redtree granted Nexcycle permission to temporarily (one week) move the facility 
adjacent to CVS as suggested by the neighbors. The new soundproof container and standard 
collection container were moved into place on Friday, October 29th 

Noise 
Chapter 17.60.030 of the Zoning Code provides considerations for approving Conditional Use Permits. 
Section 17.60.030(E)(7) specifically addresses noise constraints for small collection facilities sited in a 
commercial or industrial zone. The section states that small collection facilities "Shall not exceed noise 
levels of 60 dBA as measured from the property line of residentially zoned or occupied property or 
otherwise shall not exceed seventy dBA." 



111

11-10-10 AGENDA REPORT: 809/815/819 Bay Avenue 3 

The following are the noise readings taken by staff during the month of October, prior to moving the 
recycling facility to the proposed location adjacent to the CVS store. The readings were taken at the 
top of Peery Park at the residential property line. 

Date Time Observations Lowest Average Highest Cause of Peak 
dBa dBa dBa dBa 

1014 12:40pm Freeway noise, loading area 51.2 55 57.4 Loading area, 
activity, windy conditions, no moving of pallets 
transients 

10/4 4:40pm Windy conditions, 51.9 55 59 Residential 
residential construction, construction 
truck deliverv, no transients 

10/5 9:01am 5 Trucks unloading at dock, 47.9 50 54.8 Trucks unloading 
freeway noise, residential 
construction, no transients 

10/5 1 :12pm Truck delivery, windy 45.8 46 68.9 Pallet dropping 
conditions, residential off of truck 
construction, no transients 

10/6 12:50pm Windy conditions, 44.3 46 53 Residential 
residential construction, no construction 
transients 

10/14 12:15pm Freeway noise, loading 52.2 47 61.9 Loading dock 
dock noise, no transients equipment 

10/14 5:30pm Freeway noise, no 50.8 56 62.5 Loading dock 
transients activitv 

10/18 12:42pm Freeway noise, truck idling, 47.7 50 60.7 Car driving by in 
no transients neighborhood 

10/19 1 :13pm Freeway noise, loading 50.6 52 58.7 Loading dock 
dock noise, no transients activitv 

The following are the noise readings taken by staff during the week that the recycling facility was 
temporarily located at the proposed location adjacent to the CVS store. The readings were taken at the 
top of Peery Park at the residential property line. 

Date Time Observations Lowest Average Highest Cause of Peak 
dBa dBa dBa dBa 

11/2 12:55pm Large truck idling near 50 52 57.9 Loading dock 
loading dock, no customers forklift 
at Nexcvcle, no transients 

11/2 1 :15pm Freeway noise, no 48.2 49 52 Loud noise from 
transients inside Nexcycle 

container 
11/2 5:50pm Freeway noise, Nexcycle 50.3 52 59 Transfer of glass 

customers, no transients by Nexcycle 
11/3 1:32pm Several customers at 46.2 50 63 Transfer of glass 

Nexcycle, Activity at loading by Nexcycle 
dock, trash disposal, no 
transients 

11/3 5:05pm Freeway noise, Nexcycle 51.4 54 58.3 Transfer of glass 
customers, no transients by Nexcycle 



112

11-10-10 AGENDA REPORT: 809/815/819 Bay Avenue 4 

While observing the recycling facility, staff found that the most audible noise was the transferring of 
glass, which had a general range of 49dBa to 59dBa. The transfer and crushing of plastics and 
aluminum was barely audible. The receiving area for the shopping center was found to be busy 
throughout the day, with activities having a general range between 53dBa to 60dBa. 

New Conditions 

Four new conditions of approval have been added in response to concerns raised by neighbors at the 
neighborhood meeting. They are as follows: . 

5. The transfer of all recyclables shall be done within the collection container. 

6. Contact information, including a phone number, shall be conspicuously posted on the recycling 
structure identifying who to call for questions or complaints. 

7. Temporarv signage shall be installed for two weeks following the temporary relocation of the 
recycling facilities. The signage shall direct customers to the new temporary location. 

8. Within thirty days of the temporary approval of this permit, Nexcycle shall submit a parking lot 
restriping plan that addresses potential pedestrian and bicycle conflicts to be approved by the City 
Public Works Director. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

N/A 

ATTACHMENTS 

Attachment 1 - September 9, 2010 City Council Staff Report (without attachments) 
Attachment 2 - September 9, 2010 City Council Minutes 
Attachment 3 - Project Vicinity Map and Photos 
Attachment 4 - Conditions and Findings 
Attachment 5 - Correspondence 

Report Prepared By: Ryan Bane 
Senior Planner 

Reviewed and Forw~1 
By City Manager: ~ 

R:lAgenda Staff Reports12010 Agenda Reportsl11-1 0-1 OIBay Ave 809-819 Recycling Move appeal 11-10-10 CC_stf.doc 



113

ATTAcHMENT_-=-_ 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

Item #: 4.A. 

MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 9,2010 

FROM: COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

DATE: AUGUST 26, 2010 

SUBJECT: 809/815/819 BAY AVENUE #10-038 APN: 035-021-43 
Appeal of a Planning Commission denial for a proposed amendment to a Master Use 
Permit (Nob Hill Center) to relocate the recycling facilities on the site located in the CC 
(Community Commercial) Zoning District. 
Property Owner: Bay Creek Properties 1 Filed 5/18/10 
Representative: Craig French 

Recommended Action: That the City Council consider the appeal of the Planning Commission's 
denial of Application #10-038 to relocate the recycling facilities at 809/815/819 Bay Avenue 
(Nob Hill Center). One of the following actions would be necessary, depending upon the 
Council's decision: 
1) Uphold Appeal : Motion and roll call vote to uphold the appeal and approve Application 
#10-038 to relocate the recycling facilities with the recommended Conditions and Findings 
provided in Attachment 6; or 
2) Deny Appeal: Motion and roll call vote to deny the appeal and uphold the Planning 
Commission's denial of Application #10-038 to relocate the recycling facilities. 

BACKGROUND 

As part of the Nob Hill Center renovation project (Application #02-082), a Master Use Permit was 
approved which conditioned the location of the recycling facilities on the site. Condition #19 reads as 
follows: 

19. Recycling facilities and operations shall be located at the site identified behind the carwash. 
Attended recycling operations shall be restricted to Thursday through Monday between the 
hours of 11 :00AM-6:00PM, except Saturday when hours may be 8:30AM-5:00PM. 
Businesses themselves shall not conduct noise-generating recycling activities within exterior 
portions of the shopping center between the hours of 6:00PM-8:00AM, each day of the week. 

On May 5, 2010 the city received a complaint that the facilities had been moved from the area next to 
the carwash to the parking lot area adjacent to the Nob Hill and CVS receiving area. Redtree 
Properties was contacted by the City and made aware of the above mentioned condition. They quickly 
responded with an application to gain approval for the relocation. 

On June 3, 2010, the Planning Commission considered the relocation of the recycling facilities with 
several neighbors expressing opposition to the new location due to noise and the volume of customers 
that it attracts. The Commission denied the proposal on a 5-0 vote, stating that the new location was 
inappropriate due to the impacts on the residential neighborhood. An appeal from RaleyslNob Hill 
(Attachment 3) was received on June 11,2010. The appeal letter, Planning Commission reports and 
corresponding minutes from the hearings are attached for your information as Attachments 1 through 5. 



114

9-9-10 AGENDA REPORT: Lvdl815/819 BAY AVENUE 2 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

Redtree Properties, owners of the shopping center, are requesting relocalion of the recycling facility, 
stating that the location behind the car wash is unacceptable to the property owners, has caused 
complaints from tenants, and that the new location is more appropriate for recycle operations as it is 
more adjacent to the retailers that sell the CRV beverage containers. In addition, the area already 
functions as a delivery, receiving area, and supports back-of-the-house operations for those retailers. 

The new location near the southwest corner of the site is within the paved parking lot area at the base 
of Peery Park. The facility consists of a new altered cargo container outfitted to process and store 
recyclables . Proposed hours of operation are Tuesday-Saturday from 11 AM-6PM. 

Staff recognizes that the recycling center is an important use that provides a valuable service to the 
community and helps the city meet its mandated recycling goals. The new location is closer to 
residential properties in comparison to the old site, but still maintains a distance of approximately 140' 
from the nearest residence. The new location is also Close to the loading dock area where there is 
noise generating operations occurring throughout the day. While the originally approved location 
behind the carwash is preferred over the proposed location, it would be disappointing to lose such a 
valuable asset to the community . 

FISCAL IMPACT 

N/A 

ATTACHMENTS 

Attachment 1 - Email appeal from Will Mitchell, Raleys/Nob Hill, dated June 11 , 2010 
Attachment 2 - Appeal letter from Will' Mitchell , Raleys/Nob Hill , dated June 25, 2010 
Attachment 3 - Project Vicinity Map and Photos 
Attachment 4 - June 3, 2010 Planning Commission Staff Report 
Attachment 5 - June 3,2010 Planning Commission Minutes 
Attachment 6 - Conditions and Findings 

Report Prepared By: Ryan Bane 
Senior Planner 

J 

Reviewed and F~~e~ 
By City Manager~ 

r •.• !. t\'. . l· ..v 
• R:IAgenda Staff Reports\20 I 0 Agenda ReportsI9-9-1 OIBay Ave 809-819 Recycling Move Appeal 9-9-10 CC_stf.doc 



115

ATTACHMENt __ 2 __ __ 

11757 CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL - SEPTEMBER 9, 2010 

CONSENT CALENDAR (Continued) 3. F. 

Assistant to the City Manager Murphy said the City does not have $14,000 to 
purchase the copier outright at this time. She also said if the City were to purchase the 
machine, they would have to enter into a maintenance agreement for additional costs. 

ACTION: Council Member Norton moved, seconded by Council Member Nicol, to approve a five-
year lease agreement with Tri-County Business Systems for a copier lease and maintenance 
agreement in the amount of $308.61 per month plus tax, for a total of $20,229.00 over five 
years, as submitted. The motion carried on the following vote: AYES: Council Members 
Graves, Norton, Nicol, Begun, and Mayor Storey. NOES: None. ABSENT: None. ABSTAIN: 
None. 

G. Adopt Resolution Approving the Final Map for a Six-Unit Condominium Sub
division on Kennedy Drive, Tract No. 1562, John J. McCoy Developer. 
This item was pulled for separate disGussion. (See discussion and action on Pages 

11765 and 11766.) 

4. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

A. Public Hearing on Project Application #10-038, 809/815f819 Bay Avenue, to 
Consider Appeal of a Planning Commission Denial for a Proposed 
Amendment to a Master Use Permit (Nob Hill Center) to Relocate the 
Recycling Facilities on the Site located in the CC (Community Commercial) 
Zoning District; APN 035-021-43; Filed 5/18/10; Property Owner: Bay Creek 
Properties; Representative: Craig French. Presentation: Community 
Development Department. [730-10] 
Senior Planner Ryan Bane summarized the written agenda report and responded to 

questions of council members. 

The Council then heard from the applicant, Craig French of Redtree Properties, as 
well as Reggie Owen, representing Nob Hill Foods, and Kevin Tippets of NexCycle. 

Mayor Storey opened the hearing to the public at 9:33 p.m. 

The following people addressed the council regarding their concerns about the 
recycling facility: Kate Arrieta, Center Street; Joe, Center Street; Tim Reynolds; Damian 
Alcaraz, Center Street; Tammy Tahara, Riverview Avenue; and Frederick Coquelin, Cabrillo 
Mobile Home Park. 

Mayor Storey closed the public hearing at 9:41 p.m. 

CQuncii discussion was followed by this action: 
ACTION: Council Member Begun moved, 'seconded by Council Member Norton, to continue the 

consideration of the appeal and to direc! staff and the parties involved to work out alternative 
locations or other measures to mitigate the issues at its current location. 

Under discussion of the motion, Council Member Norton clarified that the intent is to 
find a location for recycling in the general vicinity of its current location. He said we need a 
recycling facility in this town and in the area it currently exists. 

Council Member Nicol believes the proposed location is far superior to the current 
location. He too would like to have the parties find a way to mitigate the noise concerns. He 
believes the vagrancy issue could be addressed through our law enforcement team. 



116

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL - SEPTEMBER 9, 2010 11758 

4. A. PUBLIC HEARINGS (Continued) 

Following council member comments' on the motion, Mayor Storey asked to have the 
matter brought back to the Council within 60 days, and then called for the vote. The motion 
carried on the following vote: AYES: Council Members Gr,lVes, Norton, Nicol, Begun, and 
Mayor Storey. NOES: None. ABSENT: None. ABSTAIN: None. 

The City Council took a short break at 9:50 p.m. and reconvened at 9:58 p.m. 

B. Public Hearing on the Capitola Road Traffic Calming Project to Review Traffic 
Safety Improvements between 41~1 Avenue and 42nd Avenue. Presentation: 
Public Works Department. [940-40] 
Public Works Director Jesberg summarized the written agenda report, and he 

informed the council that the project is about half-way complete. He commented on the 
medians that exist on Capitola Road and on 41't Avenue. He feels It will be a much safer 
section of road once the medians are installed. 

Capitola Police Sergeant Malt Eller said traffic problems are solved by engineering, 
education and enforcement. He' discussed the various traffics movements occurring at that 
location and reported that there have been 6 collisions in that area between December 16 
and mid-July, Sergeant Eller also discussed the median on 41't Avenue between Clares 
Street and Gross Road, and he said collisions have been reduced significantly since the 
median was installed. He said that people do not like change and it may take some time to 
adjust to it. The change will come with education and signage. He then responded to 
questions of council members. 

Public Works Director Jesberg said his recommeridation would be to complete the 
project, let it operate, and to come back for review. He then responded to questions of 
council members. 

At 10:23 p.m., Mayor Storey opened the public hearing. 

The following people expressed their concerns regarding the placement of the 
medians on Capitola Road: 

Greg Tedesco, Magellan Street, discussed his concerns about the new medians 
and how the cars are now stacking up. He also pointed out that there are 2 left-turn lanes 
on the other side of 41 st Avenue. Mr. Tedesco said, "If it's not broke, don't fix it." People 
have been making that corridor work for years. He urged the council to remove the 
medians. 

Mick Routh thanked the council for this review of the project, particularly since the 
project is in process. He expressed concerns regarding the myriad of U-turns this project 
has created, the impacts to businesses, etc. He suggested creating two left-turn lanes on 
Capitola Road to southbound 41 st Avenue. Mr. Routh then commented on cars exiting the 
DMV that will not be able to make a left turn, delivery trucks not being able to make U-tums 
and ingress and egress to the Chevron Station. He feels a lot more problems have been 
created than existed before, and he would like to see the medians removed, If not 
removed, he suggested making modifications to address the issues raised. 

Sherry Pinkerton, Manager at the Chevron Station, said their business has seen a 
20% decline in customers since the new medians have been installed. She also 
expressed concerns about the traffic and the difficulty for customers entering and exiting 
the business. 



117

ATTACHMENT ___ 3 __ _ 



118

Attachment 4 

809/815/819 BAY AVENUE - APPLICATION #10-038 

CONDITIONS 

1. The project approval consists of an amendment to an existing Master Use Permit to 
allow for the relocation of the recycle center from behind the carwash to the area 
adjacent to CVS building at 809 Bay Avenue (Nob Hill Center). 

2. The application shall be reviewed by the Planning Commission upon evidence of non
compliance with conditions of approval or applicable municipal code provisions. 

3. The facility shall be no larger than five hundred square feet and shall provide parking for 
removal of the materials and for customers depositing the materials. 

4. The facility shall accept only glass, metal or plastic containers, papers and reusable 
items. Used motor oil may be accepted with a permit from the Santa Cruz County 
environmental Health Department and the Hazardous Wastes Commission. 

5. The transfer of all recyciables shall be done within the collection container. 

6. Contact information, inciuding a phone number, shall be conspicuously posted on the 
recycling structure identifying who to call for questions or complaints. 

7. Temporarv signage shall be installed for two weeks following the temporary relocation of 
the recycling facilities. The signage shall direct customers to the new temporary location. 

8. Within thirty days of the temporary approval of this permit, Nexcycle shall submit a 
parking lot restriping plan that addresses potential pedestrian and bicycle conflicts to be 
approved by the City Public Works Director. 

9. The facility shall use no power-driven processing equipment, except reverse vending 
machines. 

10. The facility shall be maintained free of litter and any other undesirable materials. 

11. The facility shall not exceed noise levels of sixty dBA as measured from the property line 
of residentially zoned or occupied property or otherwise shall not exceed seventy dBA. 

12. The facility shall operate only during the hours between 9AM and 7PM. 

13. Containers shall be clearly marked to identify the type of materials which may be 
deposited; the facility shall be clearly marked to identify the name and telephone number 
of the facility operator and the hours of operation, and display a notice stating that no 
material shall be left outside the recycling enclosure or containers. 

14. The facility may have identification signs with a maximum of ten square feet, in addition 
to informational signs required by the city. 

15. The facility shall not impair the landscaping required by local ordinances for any 
concurrent use by this title or any permit issued pursuant thereto. 



119

Attachment 4 

FINDINGS 

A. The application, subject to the conditions imposed, will secure the purposes of 
the Zoning Ordinance and General Plan. 

Planning Staff and the Planning Commission have reviewed the application and 
detemnined that the new location of the recycling facility meets the requirements of the 
Zoning Ordinance and General Plan. 

B. The application will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood. 

Planning Department Staff and the Planning Commission have reviewed the application 
and detemnined that the new location of the recycling facil ity will maintain the character 
and integrity of the neighborhood. Conditions of approval have been included to ensure 
that the facility operates in such a way that it will not disturb the neighboring residents 
and will remain a valuable asset to the community. 

c. This project is categorically exempt under Section 15302 of the California 
Environmental Quality Act and is not subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the 
California Code of Regulations. 

The proposed project involves the replacement and relocation of an existing facility on 
the same site and with the same purpose and capacity as the previous facility. No 
adverse environmental impacts were discovered during project review by either the 
Planning Department Staff or the Planning Commission. 



120

Greeninger, Pam 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 

Dear Ms Tahara, 

Johnson, Derek 
Thursday, November 04,20101:14 PM 
'Tammy' 
cardanuy@nexcollectcom; Bane, Ryan; Greeninger, Pam 
RE: Recycler noise levels 

ATTACHMENT 5" 

We have been to the site five times to take noise readings since it moved behind CVS last 
week. The item will be going to the City Council on November 10, 2010. The meeting begins 
at 7:00 pm. City Staff is recommending that the facility be permitted to move behind CVS for 
six months, and afterwards, reevaluate its location based on continued noise readings and 
public feedback. Please let me know if you have any questions. 

Best, 

Derek 

--- - -Original Message-----
From: Tammy [mailto:tammy_tahara@yahoo.com] 
Sent: Thursday, November 04, 2010 12:20 PM 
To: Johnson, Derek 
Cc: cardanuy@nexcollect.com 
Subject: Recycler noise levels 

Hi mr Johnson 
My partner, Roy Horn, and I live at 803 Riverview Dr. And we are experiencing the noise, 
smell and commotion the recycler has produced since it was moved behind Nob Hill. I am home 
most of the time and when glass is being dumped from one container to another I go to the top 
of the path leading through Peery Park and have yet to see anyone taking noise level 
readings . I can hear this noise inside my house with the doors and windows shut! Also the 
noise produced by loading and unloading the recycler itself is so loud that I could not stand 
on the pathway and speak without shouting to two other neighbors/women who were observing 
this activity. These women live across the bridge in the Rispon Mansion area and they came 
over to see what the ruckus was about. When will someone be here to take noise level readings 
when these two activities are taking place? Readings at other times will not give an accurate 
account of the noise and commotion generated by having the recycler so close to a residential 
area. 
Thank You, 
Tammy Tahara 
831 47S 6977 
Sent from my iPhone 



121

Proposed Recycle 
location 

Attachment 3 



122

ATTACHMENT 4 

809/815/819 BAY AVENUE - APPLICATION #10-038 

CONDITIONS 

1. The project approval consists of an amendment to an existing Master Use Permit to 
allow for the relocation of the recycle center from behind the carwash to the area 
adjacent to CVS building at 809 Bay Avenue (Nob Hill Center). 

2. Additional sound deadening material shall be added to the transfer container in order to 
bring the noise generation of the recycling facility within the allowable 60dBa sOLJnd limit. 
This shall be completed within 2 months of approval and sound tested by city staff when 
completed. 

3. The application shall be reviewed by the Planning Commission upon evidence of non
compliance with conditions of approval or applicable municipal code provisions. 

4. The facility shall be no larger than five hundred square feet and shall provide parking for 
removal of the materials and for customers depositing the materials. 

5. The facility shall accept only glass, metal or plastic containers, papers and reusable 
items. Used motor oil may be accepted with a permit from the Santa Cruz County 
environmental Health Department and the Hazardous Wastes Commission. 

6. The transfer of all recyclables shall be done within the collection container. 

7. Contact information, including a phone number, shall be conspicuously posted on the 
recycling structure identifying who to call for questions or complaints. 

8. Temporary signage shall be installed for two w.eeks following the temporary relocation of 
the recycling facilities. The signage shall direct customers to the new temporary locatio'n. 

9. Within thirty days of the temporary approval of this permit, Nexcycle shall submit a 
parking lot restriping plan that addresses potential pedestrian and bicycle conflicts to be 
approved by the City Public Works Director. 

10. The facility shall use no power-driven processing equipment, except reverse vending 
machines. 

11. The facility shall be maintained free of litter and any other undesirable materials. 

12. The facility shall not exceed noise levels of sixty dBA as measured from the property line 
of residentially zoned or occupied property or otherwise shall not exceed seventy dBA. . 

13. The facility shall operate only during the hours between 9AM and 7PM. 

14. Containers shall be clearly marked to identify the type of materials which may be 
deposited; the facility shall be clearly marked to identify the name and telephone number 
of the facility operator and the hours of operation, and display a notice stating that no 
material shall be left outside the recycling enclosure or containers. 



123

15. The facility may have identification signs with a maximum of ten square feet, in addition 
to informational signs required by the city. 

16. The facility shall not impair the landscaping required by local ordinances for any 
concurrent use by this title or any permit issued pursuant thereto. 

FINDINGS 

A. The application, subject to the conditions imposed, will secure the purposes of 
the Zoning Ordinance and General Plan. 

Planning Staff and the Planning Commission have reviewed the application and 
determined that the new location of the recycling facility meets the requirements of the 
Zoning Ordinance and General Plan. 

B. The application will maintain the chara.cter and integrity of the neighborhood. 

Planning Department Staff and the Planning Commission have reviewed the application 
and determined that the new location of the recycling facility will maintain the character 
and integrity of the neighborhood. Conditions of approval have been included to ensure 
that the facility operates in such a way that it will not disturb the neighboring residents 
and will remain a valuable asset to the community. 

C. This project is categorically exempt under Section 15302 of the California 
Environmental Quality Act and is not subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the 
California Code of Regulations. 

The proposed project involves the replacement and relocation of an existing facility on 
the same site and with the same purpose and capacity as the previous facility. No 
adverse environmental impacts were discovered during project review by either the 
Planning Department Staff or the Planning Commission. 



           Item #: 6.F. 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF FEBRUARY 23, 2012

FROM:  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

SUBJECT: 835 BAY AVENUE #12-001  APN: 035-011-03, 035-381-01 
Conditional Use Permit to install a model manufactured home in conjunction with an 
existing manufactured home sales business (Ideal Homes) in the CC (Community 
Commercial) Zoning District. 

 Environmental Determination:  Categorical Exemption 
 Property Owner:  Redtree Properties, owner/filed:  1/3/12 

Representative:   Richard Emigh 
_____________________________________________________________________________

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  The Planning Commission recommended that the proposed use does not 
conform to the CC (Community Commercial) Zoning District standards, and does not represent an 
appropriate gateway to the city. 

BACKGROUND:
On February 2, 2012, the Planning Commission considered the proposed application.  On a 5-0 vote, 
the Commission recommended that the proposed use does not conform to the CC (Community 
Commercial) Zoning District standards, and does not represent an appropriate gateway to the city. 

The Planning Commission staff report and minutes from the public hearing have been included for your 
information (Attachments 1-2). 

DISCUSSION:
Ideal Homes is a business that sells manufactured homes, mobile homes and real estate.  Their 
primary business is to install new manufactured homes on private property or in mobile home parks 
throughout the county.  The Ideal Homes office is located in a multi tenant building at 831 Bay Avenue, 
facing directly on to Bay Avenue.  They are requesting approval to place a 1,500 square foot display 
model home on the vacant property just to the north of their office at 835 Bay Avenue, commonly 
known as the Grimes property. 

While this specific type of use is not listed as a permitted or conditional use in the CC zoning district, 
Conditional Use Section 17.27.060(R) states that a Conditional Use Permit can be granted for:

“Other uses similar to the above, not inconsistent with the general purposes of this chapter and 
the general plan, subject to approval by the city council upon the recommendation of the 
planning commission”. 

This section can generally be used as a “catch all” for uses that are not specifically listed in the CC 
zoning section, but would be seen as compatible and appropriate for the zoning district.  As it states, 
the approval is subject to approval by the City Council upon recommendation of the Planning 
Commission.   The Planning Commission has recommended that the proposed use does not conform 
to the CC (Community Commercial) Zoning District standards, and does not represent an appropriate 
gateway to the city. 

124



2-23-12 AGENDA REPORT:  835 Bay Avenue Ideal Homes 2 

R:\Agenda Staff Reports\2012 Agenda Reports\City Council\02-23-12\6.F Bay Ave 835 Ideal Homes_Report.doc 

In terms of the general purposes of the CC district, Section 17.27.020 states: 

“The purpose of CC districts is to provide at readily accessible locations for a wide variety of 
retail, service and administrative establishments which are required to serve a large trading 
area population. Principal uses should be conducted within an enclosed building. No residential 
uses are anticipated in this district.” 

As proposed, the model home would be setback approximately 95’ from the sidewalk and maintain a 
27’ setback from the southern property line.  The existing wood fence and gate enclosing the property 
will remain.  Access will be gained via a proposed 4’ wide asphalt walkway that will connect the 
existing office to the model, meeting minimum ADA standards.  The model will not have a foundation, 
but will have side skirting to screen the underside of the structure.  Planter boxes are also proposed 
along the frontage of the model, including two 24” box trees.  Planter boxes will be planted with a mix 
of ornamental grasses and flowering ground cover.  In addition, a 2’ section of ground cover is 
proposed to be planted on both sides of the asphalt walkway. 

Access to the model will be limited to foot traffic via the proposed pathway, with clients parking in the 
adjacent office parking lot.  The model home will maintain the same hours of operation as the Ideal 
Homes office, which is 8:00am-5:00pm daily. 

FISCAL IMPACT - N/A

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment 1 – February 2, 2012 Planning Commission Minutes
Attachment 2 – February 2, 2012 Planning Commission Staff Report 
Attachment 3 – Project Plans 
Attachment 4 – Project description letter from the applicant 
Attachment 5 – Photo of the proposed manufactured home 
Attachment 6 – Letter from the applicant, dated February 14, 2012 
     

Report Prepared By:  Ryan Bane 
Senior Planner    Reviewed and Forwarded

           By City Manager:  _____ 

125



126

CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES - FEBRUARY 2,2012 DRAFT ATTACHMENT 1 

c. 835 BAY AVENUE .#12-001 APN: 035-011-03, 
035-381-01 

Conditional Use Permit to install a model manufactured home in conjunction with an 
existing manufactured home sales business (Ideal Homes) in the CC (Community 
Commercial) Zoning District. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Redtree Properties, owner/filed: 1/3/12 
Representative: Richard Emigh 

Senior Planner Bane presented the staff report. 

Commissioner Ortiz supported the hours of operation proposed in the conditions of approval, 
8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. rather than the hours proposed by the applicant, 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. 

Commissioner Smith clarified that the model home will be for display use only. 

The public hearing was opened. 

Richard Emigh, spoke in support of the application. 

John Barss, owner of Ideal Homes, spoke in support of the application. 

Commissioner Smith asked how many additional homes are anticipated to sell with the 
advertising of the model home displayed? And is there any additional advertising proposed, 
such as banners or signage, on the model home. 

Commissioner Ortiz asked the material and location of the landscape boxes proposed. 

In response, John Barss stated there would be approximately 15 additional units sold per year 
with the additional advertising. 

Richard Emigh explained the location of proposed landscape boxes. The materials and final 
design are not completed, but all the landscaping will be in removable boxes. There is no 
signage proposed. 

The public hearing closed. 

Commissioner Routh stated that the use is not allowable under the CC zoning district 
regulations and is a violation of the zoning ordinance. He stated the proposed model home is 
an outdoor display for the business office, Ideal Homes. 

Commissioner Newman stated that the proposal was not an appropriate use for a gateway to 
the city. He supported the general concept of the model home, but not at this location. 

Commissioner Ortiz stated that this is not an appropriate use for the site and concurred with 
Commissioner Newman. She stated that there are numerous illegal outdoor displays 
throughout the CC zoning district and could not support the proposal. 

Commissioner Smith stated that this was not an appropriate use in the zoning district and 
concurred with the previous Commissioner's comments. 



127

CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES - FEBRUARY 2,2012 DRAFT 

Chairperson Graves stated that the model home display was not an appropriate use in CC 
zoning district. He also commented that there are several outdoor displays throughout the city 
and could not be supportive of the proposal. 

A MOTION WAS MADE BY COMMISSIONER ROUTH AND SECONDED BY 
COMMISSIONER NEWMAM TO RECO.MMEND TO THE CITY COUNCIL THAT THE 
PROPOSED USE DOES NOT CONFORM TO THE ZONING DISTRICT STANDARDS, AND 
DOES NOT REPRESENT AN APPROPRIATE GATEWAY TO THE CITY. 

Commissioner Ortiz stated that there are existing outdoor sales issues and there is no reason to 
allow this proposal. 

MOTION PASSED 5-0 



Item #: 6.C 

 
S T A F F  R E P O R T 

 
TO:  PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
FROM:  PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
 
DATE:  JANUARY 26, 2012 (AGENDA:  FEBRUARY 2, 2012) 
 
SUBJECT: 835 BAY AVENUE          #12-001         APN: 035-011-03, 035-381-01 

Conditional Use Permit to install a model manufactured home in conjunction with an 
existing manufactured home sales business (Ideal Homes) in the CC (Community 
Commercial) Zoning District. 

 Environmental Determination:  Categorical Exemption 
 Property Owner:  Redtree Properties, owner/filed:  1/3/12 

Representative:    Richard Emigh 
 
 
APPLICANT’S PROPOSAL 
 
The applicant is requesting a Conditional Use Permit to display a model manufactured home on a 
vacant property located at 835 Bay Avenue (Grimes Property), adjacent to their office (Ideal Homes) 
at 831 Bay Avenue.  The parcel is located in the CC (Community Commercial) zoning district. The use 
is not listed in the Zoning Code; therefore the City Council will have to determine if the use will be 
consistent with the general purposes of the CC zoning and the General Plan, subject to a 
recommendation by the Planning Commission. 
 
 ARCHITECTURAL AND SITE REVIEW COMMITTEE 
 
On January 11, 2012, the Architectural and Site Review Committee reviewed the application.   
 

• City Landscape Architect Susan Suddjian encouraged more landscaping. 
• Public Works Director Steve Jesberg indicated that County drainage impact fees would likely 

be applied to the project. 
• Building Official Mark Wheeler explained that an ADA compliant path of travel would be 

required to access the model home. 
• Senior Planner Bane requested a more complete site plan as well a project description 

clarifying the proposal.   
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Ideal Homes is a business that sells manufactured homes, mobile homes and real estate.  Their 
primary business is to install new manufactured homes on private property or in mobile home parks 
throughout the county.  The Ideal Homes office is located in a multi tenant building at 831 Bay 
Avenue, facing directly on to Bay Avenue.  They are requesting approval to place a 1,500 square foot 

ATTACHMENT 2

128



 
 

display model home on the vacant property just to the north of their office at 835 Bay Avenue, 
commonly known as the Grimes property. 
 
While this specific type of use is not listed as a permitted or conditional use in the CC zoning district, 
Conditional Use Section 17.27.060(R) states that a Conditional Use Permit can be granted for:  
 

“Other uses similar to the above, not inconsistent with the general purposes of this chapter 
and the general plan, subject to approval by the city council upon the recommendation of the 
planning commission”. 

 
This section can generally be used as a “catch all” for uses that are not specifically listed in the CC 
zoning section, but would be seen as compatible and appropriate for the zoning district.  As it states, 
the Planning Commission will be making a recommendation to the City Council which will ultimately 
make the decision on whether to approve or deny the application. 
 
In terms of the general purposes of the CC district, Section 17.27.020 states: 
 

“The purpose of CC districts is to provide at readily accessible locations for a wide variety of 
retail, service and administrative establishments which are required to serve a large trading 
area population. Principal uses should be conducted within an enclosed building. No 
residential uses are anticipated in this district.” 

 
As proposed, the model home would be setback approximately 95’ from the sidewalk and maintain a 
27’ setback from the southern property line.  The existing wood fence and gate enclosing the property 
will remain.  Access will be gained via a proposed 4’ wide asphalt walkway that will connect the 
existing office to the model, meeting minimum ADA standards.  The model will not have a foundation, 
but will have side skirting to screen the underside of the structure.  Planter boxes are also proposed 
along the frontage of the model, including two 24” box trees.  Planter boxes will be planted with a mix 
of ornamental grasses and flowering ground cover.  In addition, a 2’ section of ground cover is 
proposed to be planted on both sides of the asphalt walkway. 
 
Access to the model will be limited to foot traffic via the proposed pathway, with clients parking in the 
adjacent office parking lot.  The model home will maintain the same hours of operation as the Ideal 
Homes office, which is 8:00am-5:00pm daily. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission carefully consider if the proposed use is consistent 
with the general purposes of the CC (Community Commercial) Zoning District, and whether it will be a 
compatible and appropriate use for the location.  Based on Commission discussion, the Planning 
Commission shall make a recommendation to the City Council.  If the Commission votes to 
recommend approval of application #12-001 to the City Council, it is recommended that the approval 
be based on the following Conditions and Findings for Approval. 
 
CONDITIONS  
 
1.  The project approval consists of a Conditional Use Permit to display a model manufactured home 

on a vacant property located at 835 Bay Avenue. 
 

2.  Any significant modifications to the size or exterior appearance of the structure must be approved 
by the Planning Commission. 

 

129



 
 

3.  The application shall be reviewed by the Planning Commission upon evidence of non-compliance 
with conditions of approval or applicable municipal code provisions. 

 
4.  Business hours will be limited to 8:00 a.m. – 8:00 p.m. 
 
5.  Prior to granting of final occupancy, compliance with all conditions of approval shall be 

demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Zoning Administrator or Community Development Director. 
 
FINDINGS 
 
A. The application, subject to the conditions imposed, will secure the purposes of the 

Zoning Ordinance and General Plan. 
 

Planning Staff and the Planning Commission have reviewed the application and determined 
that the proposed business is consistent with the purposed of the CC Zoning District and, for 
reasons indicated in the Staff Report, will meet the requirements of Zoning District.  Conditions 
of approval have been included to ensure that the use is consistent with the Zoning Ordinance 
and General Plan. 
 

B. The application will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood.   
 

Planning Department Staff and the Planning Commission have reviewed the project and 
determined that the model home use and related improvements maintain the character and 
integrity of this area of the City. Conditions of approval have been included to carry out these 
objectives. 
 

C. This project is categorically exempt under Section 15303(c) of the California 
Environmental Quality Act and is not subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the 
California Code of Regulations. 

 
Section 15303(c) of the CEQA Guidelines exempts construction of small facilities or structures 
not involving the use of significant amounts of hazardous substances, and not exceeding 
2,500 square feet in floor area if the project is in an area where all public facilities are available 
to allow for the development and the project is not located in an environmentally sensitive 
area.  This project involves locating a 1,500 square foot model home on a vacant parcel within 
an urban area.  No adverse environmental impacts were discovered during review of the 
proposed project  

 
 
Report Prepared By:  Ryan Bane                     
    Senior Planner 
 
Attachment A – Project Plans 
Attachment B – Project description letter from the applicant 
Attachment C – Photo of the proposed manufactured home 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P:\Planning Commission\2012 Meeting Packets\2-2-12\Word Docs\Bay Ave 835 Ideal Homes 2-2-12 PC.docx 

130



����������	


131

iTl 

" ". ., , 

lJlI 
t) 
~: 

/ 
, 
0;-

j 



132

1 
I , 
~ 
r 
", 
N 

J 
j 
1 

Ji J 

.," ; 
, 1 
" , 
.~ ~ 

~ . 
, t-; , , 

L 



133

SNVld ~oot:i 

'O'fUII H!J/W3 " O~IIH::>/~ SI«ld1JI'IlBd~ =-:, 

. , 
. . ,. 

---L' I. I 
I -

! 

I , 
r= f\ 

• Ip, 'C:i ~~ I 

~~~ I 
! .1 

, 

I 
/= I 

7!\: I 
I I 

3 L [D 

I 'ie ~ ~ I I • Q IQII 
, 

c!r. 



134

,--
rr= 
lI-

.' 

m ~ 

11-
"= 

.' ~ I 

l-
ii 

.' 

I I 



����������	


135

RICHARD L. EMIGH A.I.B.D. 
DESIGNING & LAND USE ANAL YSIS 

413 Capitola Avenue 
Phone: 831·479·1452 

Capitola , CA 95010 
Fax: 831479·1476 

January 18,2012 

City of Capitola 

RE: Ideal Homes Proposed Display Unit. 

Ideal Homes is requesting approval to place a display Model I lome just to the North of 
their Office located at 831 Bay Avenue. Enclosed as Exhibit A is a photo of the 
proposed unit showing the materials and colors to be used if approved. . 

As proposed the unit is to be placed on a part of the lot owned by Redtree Properties, LP . 
. Enclosed as Exhibit B is a aerial photo showing the location of the land to be leased by 
Ideal Homes from Redtree Properties. The front of the proposed Display Model will be 
approximately 95 ' from the back of the sidewalk line (We were able to move the unit to 
the East as recommended by the review committee) 

The Model will have electrical service and no other uti lities connected. The proposed 
unit will have skirting around all sides and will not have a roundation; it will be set on 
stands installed with the required earthquake anchors to prevent any structural faHure. As 
proposed there will be landscape planter boxes across most of the front and right (north) 
side. 
The Cover sheet shows the Proposed location, New Pathway, Existing office and existing 
HC parking area 
Sheet A-I shows the floor plan, leased area and elevations at 1/S" = 1 '0" 

. Sheet A-2 shows the floor plan at 1/4" = I' 0" 
Sheet A-3 shows the elevations at 1/4" = I' 0" 

. Ideal Homes requested me to help them through the planning process 
Please sec Exhibit C which is a copy of their letter. 

Respectfull Submitted 

( RihdLEOhC) c ar ... mlg 

RECEIVED 

JAN 18 2012 

CITY OF CAPITOLA 



ATTACHMENT 5 
136



137

" , ~'-"'" \ ~ \= 

1;)\,,- p ...... '-\ • .lL .. ,"\. (,";0' ~ • ...",., 

= ~""-~A<-..r"_ 

1'2. _'Z..-z. _-z...D 1\ 



ATTACHMENT 6

138

RICHARD L. EMIGH A.I.B.D. 
DESIGNING & LAND USE ANAL YSIS 

413 Capitola Avenue 
Phone: 831 ·479·1452 

Capitola, CA 95010 
Fax: 831-479-1476 

February 14, 2012 
City of Capi to la, CounciL 
RE: Application # 12-00 t APN: 035-011-03,035-38 1-01 
835 Bay Avenue (Ideal Homes, manufactured home sales business) 

The subject application, to place a modular display unit on the lot was recommended for 
denial by the Planning Commission. We are contest ing thi s recommendation for denial. 
The denial was primarily based on the opinion of one of the Commissioners (Mick 
Routh) that the proposal did not mcet the code because the un it wou ld be an outs ide 
display of merchandise. If this is a correct understanding of the Capito la Zoning 
regulations the Planning Department should not have accepted the application. 

The Planning Department report included the requi red findings needed if the Planning 
Commission chose approve the proposed use. We believe the use could be allowed wi th 
a Condi tional Use Permi t with Archi tectural Review. 

The Architectural Advisory Commi ttee approved the proposal and recommended the unit 
placed closer to Bay A venue. As suggested we moved the uni t some 50 feet east , which 
is closer to Bay A venue. The Capi to la Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 17.27 CC Communi ty 
Commercia l District Section G. lists "New Car Sales;" as a conditional use. Section R. 
states "Other uses similar to the above, not inconsistent with the general purposes of th is 
chapter and the general plan, subject to approval by the city counc il upon 
recommendation of the planning commission." 

Because the planning comm ission has recommended denial it seems YO Ulllust also deny 
the use permit. However we appeal to you that the reason fo r the recommended denial 
was based on an inaccurate j udgment on what "outdoor display" means. If the stance of 
the Planning Commission is correct, then the New Car Sales East of 4 1 SI Ave. should not 
be allowed to have any cars outside the ir bui ldings. It is our opinion that the restrictions 
on outdoor display applies to small items which are usually so ld inside a building such as 
books, cloth ing, shoes, and merchandise which can easily be put on a table or moved 
inside each evening. In other words the restriction of display docs not apply to large 
objects which cannot easil y be moved indoors. This use is unique as it can not easily be 
moved. It is Ollr opinion that the Application for a Condi tional Use Permit could be 
approved as it is similar to the Car Sales which have outside display of sales items in the 
same CC Zoning District. If thi s requi res sending the proposal back to the Planning 
Commission we req uest you do so. Jfyou agree with our perspect ive we hope you can 
approve the req uest Wi?t~sen({j-n the item bac a the Plann ing Commission. 

Signed, Richard L Emigh fo r John Barss, Ideal Homes 



139

Page I ot L 
17.27.060 Conditional uses. 

Capitola Municipal code 

up Previous Next Main Search Print No Frames 

Title 17 ZONlNG 
Chapter 17.27 CC COMMUNITY COMMERCIAL DlSTRlq 

17.27.060 Conditional uses.* 

* CodeAlert: This topic has been affected by 947. To view amendments and newly added provisions, please 

refer to the CodeAlert Ordinance List. 

The following are cond itional uses in a CC di strict, subject in each case to the securing ofa use penn it as 
provided in Chapter 17.60: 

A. Bakeries and supenn arkets: 

B. Profess ional, genera l administrati ve and business offices that occupy more than three thousand square 
feet of building area; 

C. Banks and financia l services that occupy more than three thousand square feet of building area; 

D. Personal serv ice establishments en tirely with in enclosed build ings that occupy more than three thousand 
square feet of bui lding area, stich as barbershops, beauty parlors. shoe repair shops, tailor shops, clothes cleaning 
and laundry agencies and self-serv ice launderettes, retail dry cleani ng establi shments provided the solvent s used 
in the cleaning process shall be non flammable and nonexplosive and are in fluid-tight cleaning units approved by 
the state fire marshal ; no dry c leaning is pennined of clothes other than those del ivered to the estab lishment by 
consum ers: 

E. Limi ted repair services conducted entire ly within enclosed buildi ngs that occupy more than three 
thousand square feet of building area, such as jewelry, domestic appliances. typewriter and business machine 
repair shops; 

F. Lodges, c lubs and restaurants, not including restaurants with dri ve-up windows or ca r service: 

• G. New ca r sa les; 

H. Vocat ional and spec ialized schools: 

I. Audi toriums, assembly halls and exhibition ha lls; 

J. Commercial entertainment establishmen ts such as theaters, bowling alleys. billiard and pool parlors 
danceha fls and skating rinks. and amusement centers; , 

K. Limited food preparation with retai l out lets on the same premises, such as bakeries; 

L. Business establishm ents thaI se ll a r d ispense alcohol ic beverages for consumption upon the prem ises; 
M. Mote ls and hotels; 

N. 

o. 
P. 

Serv ice stations; 

Wholesa le without stock, where the storage of merchandise is limited to samples only; 

Home eq uipment rental establishments conducted within a c losed building; 
Caterers; Q _R. 
Other us~s similar 10 the above, not inconsistent with the general purposes of this chapter and the 

general plan , subJcctto approval by the city cou ncil upon the recolllmendation of the planning cOlllmission' 
SA ' . , 

. ny actI vIty which inCludes any signifiCll1ll alteration of II historic fealtlre' 

T. Auto repair shops as a secondary use to II primary use; , 



140

17.27.060 Conditional Uses. Page2of2 

U. Reverse vending' machines lor beverage contnincr<:; mul small collection facilities of fh·c hundred square 
feel or less. are subject to the requirements of subsections 0 and E of Section 17.60.030: 

V. Selfstorage facilities located outside of the Coastal Zone Boundal'). subject to the considerations in 
Section 17.60.030(F): 

W. Multiple-famil) residences provided the residential use is secondary 10 a princip le permitted use 011 the 
saillc 101 subject to the fol low ing limitations \\ ithin the coastal zone: 

I. First floor uses shall be commercia l uses. 

2. Commercial ceiling height shall be greater in height than an) residential ceiling height located ahO\e 
commercial uses. 

3. First floor ceil ing heights sha ll be a minimulll of fifteen fect or one hundred I\\ent)" percent of the 
maximum ceiling height of the residential units located above the commercial uses. \\hichever is greater. 

4. Commerc ial entrances shall be the primary building entries and shall be accented \\ ilh strong 
archi tectural definition. Residential en trances shall be sccondal)' and de-emphasized (e.g., located at the real' of 
the bui lding, \ isua lly unobtrusive. etc.). 

5. Adequate separation of different t) pes of uses shall be maintained in order 10 avoid potential ad\ erse 
impacls from one use on anothcr due to noise. lighting. odors. \ ibration. and general nuisances. 

6. Adequate separation of differcnt types of uses shall be maintained to protect the aesthetic \ alues and 
primal') uses of the site. (Ord. 949 § 1,2010: Ord. 947 § 2, 2010:· Ord. 946 § 1.2010: Ord. 644 § 3.1987: Ord. 
556 § I (pan), 1984, Ord. 536 § I (pan). 1983: Ord. 515 § 5 (pan). 1982: Ord. 388 § 9.06. 1975) 

• J he pro\ isioll!> ofOrd. 9.\ 7 pertaining to areas 1\ ithin the Coas!n! lone II ill nO! ~comc ctl'i:c!i\ c umi! ccnificmion b~ !he Catit'ornia 
Coas!at Commission. 

http:I'qcode.uslcodeslcapitolahiew.php?topic;- 17-17 27-17 27 060&frames- on 211 3/20 12 



Item #: 6.G. 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF FEBRUARY 23, 2012

FROM:  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

DATE:  FEBRUARY 15, 2012 

SUBJECT: 101 GRAND AVENUE #11-120   APN: 036-114-12
Request for a 50-year extension to the amortization period for a legal nonconforming 
multi-unit residential use in the AR/R-1 (Automatic Review/Single-Family Residence) 
Zoning District.
Environmental Determination:  Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Papken S. Der-Torossian 
Representative:  Dennis Norton 

_____________________________________________________________________________

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  By motion, approve an 80-year extension of the amortization period to 
allow the Crest Apartments to continue as a nonconforming use in the R-1 Zoning District. 

BACKGROUND

The Crest Apartments is a 19 unit rental apartment building, which is a legal nonconforming use in the 
R-1 Zoning District.  Section 17.72.060 of the Zoning Code regulates nonconforming activities and 
structures on improved R-1 parcels.  Pursuant to 17.72.060(A): 

“A.   Amortization. Nonconforming activities in R-1 zones must be discontinued on June 26, 2019 
or fifty years from the date the activity first became nonconforming, whichever is later, …” 

In anticipation of the upcoming amortization deadline, the owner of the property is requesting an 
extension of the amortization period.  Pursuant to Section 17.72.060(C), owners of parcels having 
more than two dwelling units which are nonconforming only because they exceed the current density 
standard may apply to the City Council for one or more extensions of the fifty-year amortization period. 

DISCUSSION

Based on Section 17.72.060(C), the City Council can grant an extension to the amortization period if 
they are able to make the following findings: 

1. In this particular situation, the appearance, condition and management of the property is such 
that the property is not greatly detrimental to the single-family residential character of the 
neighborhood in which it is located;

2. The extension is necessary in order to prevent a major economic loss to the property owner 
and to lessen deterioration; and

3. That all reasonable conditions have been imposed for the purpose of repairing dilapidation and 
bringing, or keeping, the property up to neighborhood standards.

As part of the application, the owner has provided a letter requesting the extension which includes a 
list of repairs and upgrades that have been completed over the past 35 years (Attachment 1-2), as well 
as a number of photos showing the existing conditions of the apartment building (Attachment 3).  It 

141



2-23-12 AGENDA REPORT:  101 Grand Avenue – Nonconforming Amortization Extension 2 
should also be noted that the owner has requested an 80-year extension.  This appears to be 
consistent with Section 17.72.060(C), as it states that “Extensions granted under this section shall be 
at least fifty years from the date the application is granted”. 

Based on staff’s review of the material and upon inspection of the property, it appears that the 
necessary findings can be made to grant the extension. 

1. In this particular situation, the appearance, condition and management of the property is 
such that the property is not greatly detrimental to the single-family residential character 
of the neighborhood in which it is located;  

While the structure is designed with a 1960’s architectural style, the property appears 
maintained and managed such that it is not greatly detrimental to the surrounding single-family 
residential character of the neighborhood.  City records show that repair permits have been 
pulled on a consistent basis over the past 30 years, including deck repairs, solar water heating 
systems, roof replacement, and foundation repair.  The most recent improvements to the 
property include a series of major investments, including:

� New decks, windows, doors, waterproofing, stucco replacement, and new paint 
� New foundations and underpinning 
� Bluff top stabilization, including the infill of a sea cave 

2. The extension is necessary in order to prevent a major economic loss to the property 
owner and to lessen deterioration; and  

Denial of the extension would ultimately require the 19-unit structure to be limited to a single-
family house, thereby severely limiting the income and reducing the value of the property.  
Therefore, the extension is necessary in order to prevent a major economic loss to the property 
owner.

3. That all reasonable conditions have been imposed for the purpose of repairing 
dilapidation and bringing, or keeping, the property up to neighborhood standards.  

Based on the existing condition of the property, staff has not included any conditions for the 
purpose of repairing dilapidation or bringing the property up to neighborhood standards. 

It is anticipated that this section of the Zoning Ordinance will be reviewed as part of the General Plan 
process which includes revising the city’s zoning regulations. With the changes in state law which now 
require the city to provide an ever increasing number of housing units, the city is going to want to 
evaluate this ordinance to see if it still fits with the city’s Housing Element goals.  This review will be 
taking place in the spring of 2013. 

FISCAL IMPACT - N/A

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment 1 – Letter from the applicant 
Attachment 2 – Crest Apartment Permit History 
Attachment 3 – Photos of the property 
Attachment 4 – Crest Apartment Plans 
     
Report Prepared By:  Ryan Bane 

Senior Planner    Reviewed and Forwarded
           By City Manager:  _____
R:\Agenda Staff Reports\2012 Agenda Reports\City Council\02-23-12\6.H. Grand Ave 101 50 year nonconforming extension_Report.doc

142



ATTACHMENT 1

143

11-15-2011 

City of Capitola 

Community Development Department 

420 Capitola Avenue 

Capitola, Ca. 95010 

Re: 101 Grand Avenue, Capitola (Crest Apartments) 

19 Existing Apartment Units 

Dear City Planners and City Council, 

The subject, 19 unit Apartment building, is located in the AR/R-1 zone. The subject property does 

not meet the current density requirements and is legally-nonconforming use within the current zoning 

code. Per the Capitola Municipal Code, non-conforming activities in R-l zones must be discontinued on 

June 26, 2019 or fifty years from the date the activity first became nonconforming, whichever is later. 

Under the Ordinance, the owner may apply to the City Council for an extension of 50 or more years 

if the Council can make the following finding. In this particular situation, the appearance, condition and 

the management is such that the property is not greatly detrimental to the single family residential 

character of the neighborhood in which it is located. The extension is necessary in order to prevent a 

major economic loss to the property owner and to lessen deterioration. 

Attached is a chronology of repairs and upgrades that have been permitted over the past 35 years. It 

is dear that this structure has been maintained to the Community standards for R-l and neighboring 

Depot Hill. In the last 20 years, over 1.6 Million Dollars have been invested into this structure. The 

building has just completed major structural modifications, complete exterior facings with new doors I 

windows, decks, rails, pool and patio surfaces, new paint and roof in the past 3 years. Seven of the 

units interiors have been upgraded in past 4 years. We have made substantial investments in making 

this building compatible to the neighborhood and a pleasant environment for its tenants. It is a very 

popular place to live. 

The City of Capitola has issued three Coastal Permits for improvements to this structure in past 3 

years and the State Coastal Commission has granted a Coastal permit for the placement of a Sea Plug at 

the base of the Bluff to be "built this Winter. These permits were issued with the understanding that the 

City and Coastal Commission agree that this building has a substantial life to live and wilt remain as 

residential units. 



144

We are requesting a 80 year extension to be granted, which is in the power and preview of the 

Capitola City Council. Thank you for your consideration. 

?~Js(anl 0 



ATTACHMENT 2

145

CREST APARTMENT PERMIT HISTORY 

101 GRAND AVE. CAPITOLA 

PLANNING DESCRIPTION OF WORK [EsTiMA,.~ 
DATE PERMIT COST 

, " Zoning Foundation underpinning on 
90)()o<D #06-064 project. Gee tech evaluation and engineering. 

Coastal-
06/05/07 #07-037 Deck, window, door replacement, , ! and 

,repair, Paint to faces i ""n" 
Planning Install bluff top stabilization at bluff. Review single family 
#09-143 zoning. Environmental and Geological review. 
Coastal 

~ #11 -ms Reinforce footings for existing Apartment complex in 
AR/R-1 , 

1
07/ I Install: I 50' long intill of an approximately $80,000 

#3-10-044 20' high by 15' deep sea cave inland of the sea wall toe at 
I the beach and bluffs. 

~K'.v DATE BUILDING Ivr .. vnn 

PERMIT 

#9626 I I cat walks. 
#9878 Repa;, decks. 

#9911 Deck repair . 
#10771 I Solar hot water I 

Repair decks. 
#10420 Change Apartment complex from single meter to 

individual meters. 

~ Rehab .Iulam beams and , 
.. ,.V'OL New block and pier shear wall at cliff base for protection . 

Rehab · I and , 
New 1 y," gas line and water 

New 400 amp PG&E ' <and ) house panel. 

#1343 Electrical- relocate multi electrical service. 
damage repair. 

~90 
~42 I I • multi 

Demo six : units and partial I 1,000 
I OS, Demo 6 ; waste i I cap. 

1 of I , area. 

i..!2LW9O 

~ 
Demo- in lof 
Building, Electrical and Plumbing. Emergency 

>and 

I """LO Demo and I level . Fire protection $16,000 
I and structural 



146

04/24/95 #15446 Reroof $38,000 
04/25/95 #15446 Reroof & partial sheathing. $6,000 
01/06/97 #16136 Building - replace deck beam on Unit #13. $5,000 
10/21/97 #16148 Combo - bathroom addition $14,000 
12/02/97 #16465 Balcony and mezzanine repair $48,000 
06/14/99 #1999-260 Compliance wi 58-873 Swimming pool electrical. 

11/17/06 06-064 Replace Foundation underpinning on the West side of $190,000 
Zoning & Apartment project. Gee tech evaluation, engineering. 
Coastal 

02/09/07 #2006-186 Partial foundation underpinning, drilled piers. Geotech $120,000 
and soils evaluation. Deck and structural repairs. 

02/09/07 #2006-186 Partial foundation and underpinning at west perimeter. $200,000 
Structural repair. 

05/15/07 #2007-161 Demolition investigative. Repair work order per $5,000 
abatement order dated 5/8/07. 

06/05/07 07-037 Decks, windows, door, waterproofing and stucco $140,000 
replacement. Paint to South & West faces of existin,g 
building. 

07/25/07 #2007-245 Units 4 & 6 - remove stucco, water sealing at doors and $250,000 
windows. 
Units 1014, 16-19 - remove and repair all decks, new 
guardraits. Repair water damage interior- drywall, floor, 
insulation. Remove and replace windows and sliding glass 

doors. Includes structural and shear repair. Misc 
electrical and hearing repairs. Slope and geo evaluation. 

04/07/08 #2008-55 Residential remodel- kitchen and 2 bathrooms $60,000 
04/07/08 #2008-53 Residential remodel kitchen and 2 bathrooms $60,000 
06/25/08 #2008-166 Unit #6 - Residential remodel kitchen. $90,000 
03/20/09 #2009-62 Reroof garage, guilt up over one existing built up roof. $7,800 
07/01/10 Planning Install bluff top stabilization. Review Single family zoning. $160,000 

09-143 Environmental, Geologic review. 
Coastal 

3-10-044 
05/05/11 11-035 Reinforce footings for existing apartment complex in AR/R- $100,000 

1 zoning district. 

""Estimated Expenses in last 20 years - $1,649,800 



A
T

T
A

C
H

M
E

N
T

 3

ATTACHMENT 3 
147



148



149



150



ATTACHMENT 4

151

00 

-< 

\;~ "U 

!~ 
.~ ~"U 
I z • ,> <z 

N 
SI TE 

PLAN 

\ 
\ \ 

\ 
----, 

\" L-----

\ • \ 
'-:l I 

I 
\ 

-- \ 

I 

\ 
~ \ 

L..., ~ 
\ 
\ 
\ 
L--

.~ ... -
~\ , 
\ 

\ £ \ 
~ • ~ 

I ! 
~ I 
1 

CREST APARTMEN TS 



152

~ 
\ 

0+ I[==~E~XIST~ING ~l~~~~~,\ ~CREST~~~TMENT~S I&J I~ 101 GRAND AVE. 

FIRST FLOOR C~;~~.9~O;O 



153

~ 
x 
• :J 
z 
o 

• ~ 
o 
o 
6 ~, 

® "I 

o 

~~' -
'II'~" I~~' -

, 
-b "'-t--+--f---1 ~ 0 JI) " 

l • 

F -J>. ~ EXISTING 
V lll!lli! SECOND FLOOR 

I~"'" CREST APARTMENTS I I ~ 101 GRAND AVE. 
CAPITOlA, CA 95010 

APN OJ6-114 12 



154

" 
~ 
" " 

c 
x ~ w " :! 
z ~ Q 

-< " " I " • 0 " " "? , " r 
, 

·0 
~ 0 
I • I 
@ 

~ " 
I 
! 

-J'. EXISTING 
CREST APARTMENTS 

() THIRD FLOOR 



155

()l 
o 

EXIS TIN G 
ELEVATIONS 

CREST APARTMENTS 
101 GRANO AVE. 

CAPITOlA, CA 9501 0 



156

(Jl 
CT 

c 
r 
c 
< 
~ 
j 

· 0 
~ z 
I w 

EXISllNG 
ELEVATIONS 

CREST APARTMENTS 


	Agenda
	4.E.1. Mayor's Architectural & Site Review Committee Appointment Report
	4.E.1 Attachment 1 Letter of Resignation from Frank Phanton 2-6-12
	4.E.1 Attachment 2 Examples of Derek Van Alstin's work
	4.F.1 City Check Register Report
	4.F.1 Attachment 1 City Check Register 2-3-12
	4.F.1 Attachment 2 City Check Register 2-10-12
	5.A. Liability Claims Report
	5.B. Council-RDA Minutes Report
	5.B. Attachment 1 Council-RDA Minutes 1-26-12
	5.C. City Treasurer's Report
	5.C. Attachment 1 City Treasurer's Report for The Month Ended 1-31-12
	5.C. Attachment 2 PMIA Average Monthly Effective Yields 
	5.D. Homeland Security Grant 2012 Report
	5.D. Attachment 1 Draft Resolution
	5.D. Attachment 2 County of Santa Cruz Letter 1-17-2012
	5.D. Attachment 3 Budget Adjustment Form
	5.E. Smartmeter Opt-out Fee Objection Report
	5.E. Attachment 1 Draft Letter to California Public Utilities Commission
	6.A. Community Grant Funding for FY11-12 Report
	6.B. Long Range Fiscal Strategy Follow-up Report - Continued
	6.B. Attachment 1 Long Range Fiscal Strategy Follow-up Report 1-26-12
	6.C. Financial Management Improvements Report
	6.C. Attachment 1 Municipal Code Section 3.16
	6.C. Attachment 2 Purchasing & Procurement Administrative Policy
	6.D. Reduce Single-Use Plastic & Paper Bags Ordinance Report
	6.D. Attachment 1 Draft Ordinance
	6.E. 809-815-819 Bay Ave Recycling Facility Report
	6.E. Attachment 1 City Council Minutes 11-10-10
	6.E. Attachment 2 Staff Report 11-10-10
	6.E. Attachment 3 Project Vicinity Map & Photos
	6.E. Attachment 4 Conditions & Findings
	6.F. 835 Bay Ave Ideal Homes Report
	6.F. Attachment 1 Planning Commission Draft Minutes 2-12-12 
	6.F. Attachment 2 Planning Commission Staff Report 1-26-12
	6.F. Attachment 3 Project Plans
	6.F. Attachment 4 Project Description Letter from Richard Emigh 1-18-12
	6.F. Attachment 5 Photo of Proposed Manufactured Home
	6.F. Attachment 6 Letter from Richard Emigh 2-14-12
	6.G. 101 Grand Ave 50-year Extension Report
	6.G. Attachment 1 Letter from Papken Der Torrosian 11-15-11
	6.G. Attachment 2 Crest Apartment Permit History
	6.G. Attachment 3 Photos of Property
	6.G. Attachment 4 Crest Apartment Plans



